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Annual Report 2015 Business Online Public Company Limited - Message from Chairman of the Board and Executive Chairman

Dear Shareholders,

Year 2015 is our 20" anniversary in establishment of BOL. Throughout this period, the company strived to continue improving in data
management, decision support and risk management services amid external changes in technology, economy and most importantly

government policies which initiated the idea of storing and managing country information in electronic forms.

In the past year, the company participated in DBD e-Filing project hosted by the Department of Business Development, Ministry of
Commerce. This project would drive every registered business in the country to submit its financial statements in electronic forms. It is
expected to have all business registered on this platform by the end of year 2017. With regards to business development as aspect, the
company began to survey need for information in ASEAN countries, starting with Vietnam. It was found that businesses, especially in
financial sector, were aware of the necessity in using information-as part of their decision making processes. The company will continue to
pursue and develop market in this region. On service side, the company developed ‘ENLITE’ a new analytic platform to replace DSS. It was
designed to upgrade with new technology and enhancing new features that better served our customers’ needs. In addition, the company
changed the method of revenue recognition by spreading revenue throughout 12 month period to coincide with the actual customer usage
and company'’s operations. Another major milestone at the end of year 2015 was the expiration of the Commercial Service Agreement
(CSA) with D&B.The new CSA was signed under D&B (Thailand) Company Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of BOL, in order to create

flexibility in marketing and business expansion activities.

Although the company saw the revenue growth in online business information service this year, however, the revenue in one-off projects
decreased which caused the reduction of total revenue and net profit for year 2015 which stood at 341.71 million Baht and 61.19 million
Baht (a decrease of 25.01% and 22.67% respectively)

Lastly we would like to thank our customers, partners and stakeholders for their contribution and support throughout the company’s
memorable 2 decades. We are determined to deliver better services to sustain our growth while it is our goal to give back and nurture the

society that we live in.

(Mr.Noravat Suwarn) (Mr.Jack Min Intanate)

Chairman of the Board Executive Chairman
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un8usIIU goSstu Mr. Noravat Suwarn
Js=saunssunns, 01y 75 U Chairman of the Board, Age 75
ﬁmd'xum’a‘ﬁﬂﬁu T 30 6.A. 2558 : 0.52% Shareholding Percentage (as of 30 Dec 2015) : 0.52%
m'a‘L‘lJ?i‘iluLLﬂm'a’ﬁu'Juﬁ’uia:WiN?J : 235,000 u Changes in number of shares during the year : 235,000 shares
msﬁaﬁuwwé’au‘nm@:ﬂus'aLL@zqmﬁﬁé’q‘lﬂuiiqﬁﬁqu R The indirect shareholding of spouse and immature children : None
i’uﬁwaiaﬁ"'a/'a"mquﬂﬁtﬂunsmmi 1 24-10-2546/13 11 Appointment Date/Duration of Directorship : 24-10-2003/13 Years
mafne : Educations :
- Master of Science (Ag. Econ.), University of Wisconsin-Madison, USA - Master of Science (Ag. Econ.), University of Wisconsin-Madison, USA
- o a1ATHgANERTTIUAR NrAnedussINAans - BA (Econ) Thammasat University
- fyaynting Anendeileaiusaeinndng (1we.) §u 35 - Certificate National Defence College (Class 35)
- Usznafleding dnuEunsseiuge u 11 109 o, - Certificate Senior Executive Program (Class 11)
- dsznAiieting TA39n1g Role of The Chairman Program (RCP) - Certificate The Role of The Chairman Program (RCP) 12/2005 (I0D)
(12/2548) - Certificate Director Accredited Program (DAP) 2004 (IOD)
- sznnAieiing Tasanng Director Accredited Program (DAP) (2547) - Certificate The Director Certification Program (DCP) 15/2003(10D)
- sznnAfieiing Tasanng Director Certification Program (DCP) - Certificate Finance for Non-Finance Director (FN) 2003 (I0D)
(iu 15/2546) 5 Years’ Work Experience :

- sznnAiieiing Tasanns Finance for Non-Finance Director (FN) (2546) 2003-Present  Chairman of the Board
szaumsaidaunas 51 : Business Online Public Company Limited
2546-flaqiis dszaunssunig Usem U3 g paulail Tn (WunT) 2003-Present  Chairman of the Board KSK Insurance (Thailand) Public
2546-flaqiiy  Usza1unssunng USm ialedia Useiude (Uszwnalne) Company Limited

1A (NUTW) 2002-Present  Independent Director and Chairman of Audit Committee
2545-faqifil NIINNNIRATEULATLTEENUNIINNIMIIRABL IT City Public Company Limited

o
S ad

131 lo?l 3R S (Nvnm)
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Andaumstiau m 30 5.A. 2558 : 6.95%
maulAsuudasduiuiuseudng : 480,000 fu
msfaunedentesgansauazynsidslaivssqianae : Tl
Fuiusasysundliflunssums : 24-10-2546/13 1

a

Mr. Jack Min Intanate
Director & Executive Chairman, Age 61

Shareholding Percentage (as of 30 Dec 2015) : 6.95%

Changes in number of shares during the year : 480,000 shares
The indirect shareholding of spouse and immature children : None
Appointment Date/Duration of Directorship : 24-10-2003/13 Years

meAnE :

sayayn BRenansaeftindinfnfndna

Dominican University of California, 1/3¢inAguigaissn

Bryan 3wmﬁmm§ﬁm§ﬁmﬁmﬁﬂﬁuﬁnﬁr

A3 ULANSEUMATRNNITANNS AMANENEENINAN3AN
ﬂ?mmﬁﬁmﬁuﬁnﬁr%mm@m{ﬂm‘ﬁm (AnenraninaNnaAes)
AAAnIsuLazAluladnsinens, snanedamaluladousaa

dsenatiaing vangmsanenisdseiuiaseugs ui 1 dnineu
AnznIsuNIifuLAzduaInnstsznaugsnadseiuie (aun.) T 2554
1lsznAtlening TAzanns Role of The Chairman Program (RCP) (12/2548)
1lsennAilesing TAsen12 Director Accredited Program (DAP) (2547)

Uszaumsaldaunas 51 :
2546-flaqifiy  nesuNNTLATLITEIUNIINNITLTING

Ao as

1319 T7wua eaulail S1ie (N9n1w)

2556-ifaqtiu  n3sunng 1B ailate A1in (Mwngw)
2554-ffaqiiy  n3sunTg W3 1eg A 3 la d1rin (uunaw)
2551-ifaqtiy  n3sunTg W3 wiad Anaaaiwus 4rin

2549 -flaqifis  Usra1unasunng Usim A weud 4 (Uszndlna) 4ain
2543-laqtii  n9suNNg UTEN dayainsAnusienid aarin
2542-aqifis  nINNNT LTEN Leenfled anin

2539-f1aqifil  nITNANTUAZAlITETUNTINANILEING LSt Taf
2538-f1aqifil  NITNNNIUAZLIILENULBEY UK Aafleudia d1rin

= o

X,
Bl AT (MUNT)

2538-11aqifiy  N9IUNNT LT 1oLl Anfip

2532-flaq1iy  nNesuNNTUALLIZEIUNITNNTLITNT

3

131 1eansladl Ain (umnow)

& o o

2530-ifaqtis  NITNNTT UFEN nguuenud TIATT Arin

o o

{laqiiy n3suNTg W3 1waed tnslnd A1

Educations :
- Honorary Doctoral Degree of Laws,
Dominican University of California, USA

PhD in Science (Honorary) Information Technology for Management,
Mahasarakam University

- Bachelor (Honorary) of Science, Engineering and Agricultural,
Rajamangala University of Technology Thanyaburi

Bachelor of Architecture, Fu Hsing Institute of Technology (Taiwan)
- Certificate Thailand Insurance Leadership Program Class 1/2011,

Office of Insurance Commission (OIC)
- Certificate The Role of The Chairman Program (RCP) 12/2005 (I0D)
- Certificate Director Accredited Program (DAP) 2004 (I0D)
5 Years’ Work Experience :
2003-Present  Director & Executive Chairman

Business Online Public Company Limited
2013-Present  Director SVOA Public Company Limited
2011-Present  Director S P V | Public Company Limited
2008-Present  Director ABIKS Development Co., Ltd
2006-Present  Chairman of the Board D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
2000-Present  Director National Credit Bureau Co., Ltd
1999-Present  Director ARIT Co., Ltd.
1996-Present  Director & Executive Chairman IT City Public Company Limited
1995-Present  Director & Chairman Core & Peak Co., Ltd.
1995-Present  Director ANET Co., Ltd.
1989-Present  Director & Executive Chairman
ARIP Public Company Limited

1987-Present  Director Advanced Research Group Co., Ltd.
Present Director Venture Profile Co., Ltd.
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Mr. Prayoon Rattanachaiyanont
Director, Age 52

dndaumstiau o 30 5.A. 2558 : 0.40%
mmjgzmLLﬂmf-iwquﬁuﬁzwiN?J : 480,000 1
mafiaunssantasgansauaznsgslaiussaianng : il
Fudtussnasuailiiilunssums : 24-10-2546/13 1

Shareholding Percentage (as of 30 Dec 2015) : 0.40%

Changes in number of shares during the year : 480,000 shares
The indirect shareholding of spouse and immature children : None
Appointment Date/Duration of Directorship : 24-10-2003/13 Years

msAnEn

- Master of Business Administration, University of Scranton, USA

- Enyayn wleAansindgin iansaiuninende

- nyny Lvnsganatioudin inanenduglaieassunass

- senAtieiing Tasanns Director Accredited Program (DAP) (2547)
dszaumsnidaunas 51 :

2546-ifaqtiyy  n3sunTg Us Dwa eeulad 4aia (unaw)

>
= o -

2555-11aqifiy  N9INNNT L3N 18,815 uBARILES PeuTALAUT A11iR

o

2555-1faqiiy N3NNI W3 el seulail Anrin
2553 -ffaqiiiy  n3sunng W3 wensleil A1in (Wwnaw)
2551 -flaqify  nesunng W3Em wied Anasethuus a1fin

2551 -flaqiii,  nIsunng 13w Ay Fasiud aarie

2545 -flaqifiy  nesuNg UTEN Loilln Ain
2543 -flaqifis  n9TNNAg UM et Aefilawsdu a1in
2542 -flaqiiyy  n3suNIg UTEN Aefuausiia Anrin

]

2542 -flaqtfyy N3NNI U3 wwensledl Anrin

2539 -flaqiiy  garusanisdhediyduasnistu
13 nquuenud 5185 arin

4 uanosluws annaosruy

nssunsiiazgannisiked, 91g 54 U

Educations :

- Master of Business Administration, University of Scranton, USA

- Bachelor of Commerce, Chulalongkorn University

- Bachelor of Business Administration, Sukhothai Thammathirat University
- Certificate Director Accredited Program (DAP) 2004 (10D)

5 Years’ Work Experience :

2003-Present  Director Business Online Public Company Limited
2012-Present  Director A.R. Accounting Consultant Co.,Ltd.
2012-Present  Director Health Online Co.,Ltd.

2010-Present  Director ARIP Public Company Limited

2008-Present  Director ABIKS Development Co.,Ltd.

2008-Present  Director D2 Systems Co.,Ltd.

2002-Present  Director Anet Co.,Ltd.

2000-Present  Director Anew Corporation Co.,Ltd.

1999-Present  Director Core & Peak Co.,Ltd.

1999-Present  Director ARIT Co.,Ltd.

1996-Present  Financial Controller Advanced Research Group Co.,Ltd.

Ms. Chamaiporn Apikulvanich

Director & Chief Executive Officer, Age 54

dndrumstiavu tu 30 5.A. 2558 : 0.50%
maulasuulasduiuiusewdng : 240,000 Hu
miﬁaﬁuymw’a"’au‘um@:aumLmzqmﬁé’fﬂﬁuﬁqﬁﬁm’ax Claid
Jufusanaduauilfiilunssams ; 24-10-2546/13 I

Shareholding Percentage (as of 30 Dec 2015) : 0.50%

Changes in number of shares during the year : 240,000 shares
The indirect shareholding of spouse and immature children : None
Appointment Date/Duration of Directorship : 24-10-2003/13 Years

mMSANE ©
- WauLTsenanfuntudaneatiAlszgnst AesAtiaumnn
antfuiudnimulTnsaans

- By wssgananiiudia Neshtlanduiuans snanendauenisénlng

- 1lsznnAileiing TAsen9 Director Accredited Program (DAP) (2547)
- dsznAileting Fostering a Board and Management Team (2548)

o

- sznAtiening 1ANgM? Executive Development Program (EDP) $147 6

Uszaumsaidaunas 51 :
2546-aqtis  nesunTsuardanisiugy

139 D3 eawlad a1in (Lvnaw)
2557-1laqti  n3sNNNg WM BAnsnanhle Anrin

a o o o= o

2549 -flaqifiy  NIgsNNNg W3 A weus O (Uszmalne) 4arin

Educations :
- Master of Applied Statistics (Computer Science, HONS), NIDA
- Bachelor of Arts (Economics, 2nd, Class Hons.),

University of the Thai Chamber of Commerce
- Certificate Director Accredited Program (DAP) 2004 (10D)
- Certificate Fostering a Board and Management Team 2005
- Certificate Executive Development Program (EDP) Class 6
5 Years’ Work Experience :
2003-Present  Director & Chief Executive Officer

Business Online Public Company Limited

2014-Present  Director Ecartstudio Co.,Ltd.
2006-Present  Director D&B (Thailand) Co.,Ltd.
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Mr. Wilson Teo Yong Peng

Director, Age 49

ﬂmmuminawu 7w 30 6.A. 2558 : 0.06%
minJazlul,l,ﬂmmmuuuﬁwmnﬂ 480,000 714
msn’auumwaummmmﬂmemimﬂuussauﬁm’a: aidl
quwumm/mmuﬂwLﬂunﬁumi 15-02-2549/10 1

Shareholding Percentage (as of 30 Dec 2015) : 0.06%

Changes in number of shares during the year : 480,000 shares
The indirect shareholding of spouse and immature children : None
Appointment Date/Duration of Directorship : 15-02-2006/10 Years

MaANE :
- ASEP, Advanced Senior Executive Program,
Kellogg School of Management (U.S.A.)
MBA, Oxford Brookes University (U.K.)
FCCA, Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (U.K.)
FCA, Fellow of The institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants
FCPA, Fellow of Certified Pratising Accountants (Australia)
- 1A, The Institute of Internal Auditors (U.S.A.)

- sznnAtieiing Tasans Director Accredited Program (DAP) (57/2549)
szaumsnidaunas 51 :
2549-laqify  nITHNNT UTEM DT g aaulal 4179 (HuwnTw)
2555-2556 N9TNNNT L3HM A B 41w (wuna)
2554-laqiTiy  n9sunng W3Em weansleil anrin (uunaw)
2551-ffaqtiy  n3sunTs W3 wiad Anaaatwus 4rin
2549-flaqtiyy  n3suNTg W3 andindu leidie (Uszmalve) 4arin
2549-flaqifiy ne3ung UTE Lafly Aefeisdu 4nin
2547-flaqifiy nesuNg UTEN 10Fa peNfiaines 411R
2545-1faqtiu  n3sNNNg W3 eailele A1in (Wwngw)
2543-flaqtiy NITNNTT UTEN nguuBAud ST Arin
2543-flaqifiy  n9INNg UTEN LIEN A

6 urgBuws INYsAUUNIUA

NsSsSUNISIIazEauuNIsueusKis, 91y 44 U

Educations :

- ASEP, Advanced Senior Executive Program,

Kellogg School of Management (U.S.A.)

MBA, Oxford Brookes University (U.K.)

FCCA, Fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (U.K.)
FCA, Fellow of The institute of Singapore Chartered Accountants
FCPA, Fellow of Certified Pratising Accountants (Australia)

- 1A, The Institute of Internal Auditors (U.S.A.)

- Certificate Director Accredited Program (DAP) 57/2006 (IOD)

5 Years’ Work Experience :

2006-Present  Director Business Online Public Company Limited
2012-2013 Director Lease IT Public Company Limited
2011-Present  Director ARIP Public Company Limited
2008-Present  Director ABIKS Development Co.,Ltd.
2006-Present  Director Dataone Asia (Thailand) Co.,Ltd.
2006-Present  Director Anew Corporation Co.,Ltd.

2004-Present  Director Asys Computer Co.,Ltd.

2002-Present  Director SVOA Public Company Limited
2000-Present  Director Advanced Research Group Co.,Ltd.
2000-Present  Director Acerts Co., Ltd.

Mr. Chaiyaporn Kiatnuntavimon
Director & Chief Operating Officer, Age 44

Andaumstianl o 30 8.A. 2558 : 0.47%
mmJ@ﬂul,l,ﬂmmmuuusmmﬂ el
minauummammﬂamﬂmemmm‘luussaummqw aidl
Fufnresasnundfiiiunssums : 13-08-2558/4 ieu

Shareholding Percentage (as of 30 Dec 2015) : 0.47%

Changes in number of shares during the year : None

The indirect shareholding of spouse and immature children : None
Appointment Date/Duration of Directorship : 13-08-2015/4 Months

mMaAnE :
- 1Beyayn 1ivsgsianmnLinugin University of South Australia
- USyun nenAansiinein (@mmumiumﬁ)
anntiumatuladnszaeunddgmmnisaiansels
- UsznnAfiating u@ﬂmmfmmmiﬂavnunmvmum iu*n 1
muﬂmummxﬂﬁummﬁﬂuLm:m Lﬂmnﬁiﬂnﬂﬂugiﬂ@ﬂ@muﬁﬂ (Aln) 112554
- dsznAtieiing IAsenns Company Secretary Program (CSP) (@uﬁ 8/2547)
szaumsnidaunas 51 :
2546-laqiis  nesumsuazfruisnsdening
139 DFua aeulad aia (Wnmw)

ao o o

2549 -laqiiy  nesung U3 A weus 1 (Uszinalng) aarin

Educations :
- Master of Business Administration, University of South Australia
- Bachelor of Science, Major in Chemical Industry,
King Mongkut’s Institute of Technology Ladkrabang
- Certificate Thailand Insurance Leadership Program Class 1/2011, Office of
Insurance Commission (OIC)
- Certificate the Company Secretary Program (CSP) Class 8/2004 (IOD)
5 Years’ Work Experience :
2003-Present  Director & Chief Operating Officer
Business Online Public Company Limited
2006-Present  Director D&B (Thailand) Co.,Ltd.
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Mr. Anant Tangtatswas
Independent Director & Chairman of Audit Committee &
Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, Age 65

dndrumstiavu o 30 5.A. 2558 : 0.10%
mstlanuulassruauiuszudng : 100,000

mstadundanasgansauarynsndeliussy
o a4 ¥ o a
Tuiussnysuaulimiunssams : 09-08-2553/6

PN -
ARnae : 14l
bl

Shareholding Percentage (as of 30 Dec 2015) : 0.10%

Changes in number of shares during the year : 100,000 shares
The indirect shareholding of spouse and immature children : None
Appointment Date/Duration of Directorship : 09-08-2010/6 Years

meAnE :

Wseyoyn Winnsgsfianmniiudin unidvendeladude
anuasilageda auigaiiEng

iy AregAraniiugn unningdusrsudans
nangmnistlesiumaennndnsniaigiouendu
Anendetlasiusgennindns (adse. 377)

1JsenAtlating Insanns Director Accredited Program (DAP) (2553)
1lsennatieing Tasanns Risk Management Committee Program (RMP)

(iuﬁ2/2557)

szaumsnidaunas 51 :
2553- flaqifiy N9sNNNIRAITUAZLIEANUNITUNTAIIREDL

151 T7ua aaulail s1dn (M)

2557-1aq1f Usa1unITNNNIATIMIUAT AR TUNAIMBLILNY

139 D% aeulad d1in (Wnmw)

2555-‘11"!‘11514 NITNNNIBATLUAZNITNNIATIRNADL

139 1eailawe AAm (NuN)

2552-2553 N9IUNNT LT tNAL SR (N1n1)
2548-flaqiiu  n3sunNg W3 nsualen a1iin

Educations :
MBA (Finance), Columbia University, NYC, USA
- BA (Economics), Thammasat University

- Thailand National Defence College

(Joint Government-Private Sectors Program-Class 377)

Certificate Director Accredited Program (DAP) 2010 (I0D)

- Certificate Risk Management Committee Program (RMP) Class 2/2014 (IOD)
5 Years’ Work Experience :

2010-Present  Independent Director & Chairman of Audit Committee
Business Online Public Company Limited
2014-Present  Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Business Online Public Company Limited
2012-Present  Independent Director & Audit Committee
SVOA Public Company Limited
2009-2010 Director Crown Seal Public Company Limited
2005-Present  Director Green Spot Co.,Ltd.
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ua12UITMN BUIUaSIIUU

NSSUNISOES:, NSSUNISHNSIVEDU

lla: NSSUNISAsSsHIIIazWIISTUNIAMBUINU, 91y 49 U

Ms. Manida Zinmerman
Independent Director & Audit Committee & Nomination
and Remuneration Committee , Age 49

dndrumstiavu 30 5.A. 2558 : 0.52%
maulaguuilasdusuiuseudng : 1
msfiaunssantasgansauaznsidslaiussaianng : il
FuiusenysundiTunssums : 24-10-2546/13 11

Shareholding Percentage (as of 30 Dec 2015) : 0.52%

Changes in number of shares during the year : None

The indirect shareholding of spouse and immature children : None
Appointment Date/Duration of Directorship : 24-10-2003/13 Years

meAnE :

Bryny Lisnegsianviiudin andnandudadudoy
- USnyayn WAAaRFIMNLTUAR Columbia University

- fSnyyn ARANARFTIUNR WNAINEAEBIINANARS

Graduate Diploma Business Law N9M3NenaesssuAans
1lsennAtlesing TAsen12 Role of the Nomination and
Governance Committee (RNG) iu 2/2555
tlsznafieing Tassns Director Certification Program (DCP) §u 8/2544
Uszaumsnidaunas 51 :
2546-{aqifiy  NITNNNIBATE WATNITNNIIATIAGDL
151 97 s aaulail S1dn (Wun1w)
2557-1a91fl  NITNNIATIMIUATANANTUNIAIMELILNY
139 D%wa aeulad d1in (Wnmw)
laqifiy Partner 131 s wous aidend (Inauaus) $11in

ua104gss1 ASTwyag

NSSUNISDES:, NSSUNISNSIVEDU

lla: NSSUNSASSHIIA:WANSTUIARMBUINU, 91 62 U

Educations :

- MBA Assumption University
- LL.M., Columbia University

- LL.B., Thammasat University

Graduate Diploma Business Law, Thammasat University

Certificate the Role of the Nomination and Governance Committee
(RNG) Class 2/2012 (I0D)

- Certificate the Director Certification Program (DCP) Class 8/2001 (IOD)

5 Years’ Work Experience :

2003-Present  Independent Director, Audit Committee
Business Online Public Company Limited

2014-Present  Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Business Online Public Company Limited

Present Partner Hunton & Williams (Thailand) Limited

Ms. Suteera Sripaibulya
Independent Director & Audit Committee & Nomination
and Remuneration Committee , Age 62

dndrumstiau o 30 8.A. 2558 : 0.12%
mmﬁﬂuLLﬂm'i’mquﬁusdeﬂ £ 200,000 #u
msfaunedanrasgansauazynsidaliuseg
Suusarasuatlilunssums : 17-09-2551/8

PN -
ARnae : 14l
b

Shareholding Percentage (as of 30 Dec 2015) : 0.12%

Changes in number of shares during the year : 200,000 shares
The indirect shareholding of spouse and immature children : None
Appointment Date/Duration of Directorship : 17-09-2008/8 Years

mMaANE :
- AMP, Advanced Management Program, 2013, Harvard University (USA)
- Bryon nenAansiiudin (Adnenans) umnanandedeslad
- ANgRIELEMNIIZALAS AnTANENNNINAIANY (MANGRT 90M.) q'u‘?i 4
- dsznAtleiing IAsens Director Accredited Program (DAP) (2552)
Uszaumsnidaunas 51 :
2551-]aqifis  N9IINNTIBATL WATNITHNNINIIRGDL
13 D% aeula] d1dn (Wuaw)
2557-1a31fik  NITHNNIATIMIUATNANTUIAIMBLILNY

a o as

13 D% aeula] d1dn (Wuaw)

2556-laqtiiy  n9sunng U3EM dayainsAnusisana aarin

2554-Tlaqiiy seefdnnislug) anewalulad
LFHN FUIANINTUNW A7TA (M1NTU)

flaqifuy N9TUNTT LFEN LWNBN 4NMNITA Tamud Arin
flaqifuy N97UNNT L3 Laile Aafilalati 41nin
flaqifuy szaunssung Ui wduuua lefidudng aaia

flaqifuy N97UN"T L3EY Audlsranana d11n

Educations :
- AMP, Advanced Management Program, 2013, Harvard University (USA)
- Bachelor of Science, Chiangmai University
- Certificate Senior Executive Program (Capital Market Academy) Class 4
- Certificate Director Accredited Program (DAP) 2009 (IOD)
5 Years’ Work Experience :
2008-Present  Independent Director, Audit Committee
Business Online Public Company Limited
2014-Present  Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Business Online Public Company Limited
2013-Present  Director National Credit Bureau Co.,Ltd.
2011-Present  Senior Executive Vice President, Technology Division

Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited

Present Director Bangkok Smartcard System Co., Ltd.

Present Director Anew Corporation Co.,Ltd.

Present Chairman of Board of Directors National ITMX Co.,Ltd.
Present Director Processing Center Co.,Ltd.
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AUNSSUNISUSUN
WrA.AS. N1sh 1auolwlsau Asst.Prof. Karndee Leopairote
NSSUNNSads:, NSSUNISASIvd0U Independent Director & Audit Committee & Nomination
lla: NSSUNISassKlla:waIsuNANMauInU, 91g 41 U and Remuneration Committee , Age 41
ﬁ’md'sumsﬁ@ﬁu W 30 6.A. 2558 : 0.06% Shareholding Percentage (as of 30 Dec 2015) : 0.06%
mitﬂgﬂuLL‘lJm‘-i’m'Juﬁ'uixW:i’]ﬁl - 480,000 %1 Changes in number of shares during the year : 480,000 shares
msfiaunssantasgansauaznsidslaiussaiannog : il The indirect shareholding of spouse and immature children : None
'3'14!17;LLﬁialﬁ'ﬁi/’i’lu’:uﬂﬁLﬂunﬁumi - 29-03-2556/3 T Appointment Date/Duration of Directorship : 29-03-2013/3 Years
meAn : Educations :
- Ph.D., Industrial Engineering Department, - Ph.D., Industrial Engineering Department,
University of Wisconsin-Madison, USA University of Wisconsin-Madison, USA
- M.S., Industrial Engineering Department, - M.S., Industrial Engineering Department,
University of Wisconsin-Madison, USA University of Wisconsin-Madison, USA
- B.Eng., Industrial Engineering Program, - B.Eng., Industrial Engineering Program,
Sirindhorn International Institute of Technology Thammasat University Sirindhorn International Institute of Technology Thammasat University
- dsznnafieting TAsenns Director Accreditation Program (DAP) (gﬁﬁi 110/2557) - Certificate Director Accredited Program (DAP) Class 110/2014 (I0D)
dszaumsnidaunas 51 5 Years’ Work Experience :
2556-1aq1fs  NITINNTIBATL WATNITNNNINTIRGLL 2013-Present  Independent Director, Audit Committee
151 T7ua aaulail s1dn (Hun1w) Business Online Public Company Limited
2557-1a91fk  NITHNNIATIMIUATNANTUIAIMBLILNY 2014-Present  Nomination and Remuneration Committee
151 T7ua aaulail s1dn (Hun1w) Business Online Public Company Limited
2558-flaqii  nIsNNTg BN T 0 G Snrim 2015-Present  Director C A C Co. Ltd.
2548-2557 é‘ﬁ')ﬁmﬂm’]ma‘fj 2005 - 2014 Assistant Professor Department of Accounting,

ADLTNENTE ANARTUAZNNT Vn;l?ﬁ (Thammasat Business School) Thammasat Business School
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ANUINSSUNISUSHKAIS

1 UeIIA IJUNS BIASIUFA

NSsUNISIia:us:s1UNSSUNISUSKHAS, 91¢ 61 U

Mr. Jack Min Intanate
Director & Executive Chairman, Age 61

dndrumstiavu o 30 5.A. 2558 : 6.95%
matlanuuilassruauiuszudng : 480,000 i

- v > ' Ao ' aa 1=l
mstiajunedantasgansauazynsiddlaussqiinie il
Tunussnysuautimiuguims : 24-10-2546/13 1

Shareholding Percentage (as of 30 Dec 2015) : 6.95%
Changes in number of shares during the year : 480,000 shares
The indirect shareholding of spouse and immature children : None

Appointment Date/Duration of Executive Committee : 24-10-2003/13 Years

mMeANE ©
- 15eynyn ﬁﬁmam@wﬁﬂwﬁmﬁmﬁm‘hﬁ
Dominican University of California, szinAgnigaiiann
Beyeyn ‘f‘mmmzﬂm’@wﬁﬁmﬁmﬁmﬁuﬁnﬁ
AMILILAIAUNATNENITANS W AnedannanzaN
ﬂ?mmnﬁmﬁmﬁnﬁrawmmm{ﬁm‘ﬁm AnenAanfAannaaes)
AngAAanssuuazmaluladnisinems, snanendumeluladnguana S
1By anntinanssuanfiingia Fu Hsing Institute of Technology (L&)
dsznafiating nangasinenisdssiuivsziugs qfw?i 1 dwinanu
AMznssuNNIiLLazduaINNsUsTneuganalseiuie (aun.) 1l 2554
1lsznAilening IAsan1s Role of The Chairman Program (RCP) (12/2548)
1lazntleting TAanne Director Accredited Program (DAP) (2547)
Uszaumsaidaunas 51 :
2546-laqifs nITNNILAZLITAIUNIINNNTLEMNS

151 TFiua oeulat] A1An (nTu)
2556-1faqtiu  NITNNNg U3 eailele AR (Wwngw)
2554-Taqifiy  N9sung 131 Lea A 3 le Anria (wmnaw)
2551-ffaqiiy  n3sunTg W3 iad Ananaiwus drin
2549 -laqifiy  13va1unssunig U A waus 1 (Uszmalne) 41dn
2543-laqtii  N9suNNg UFEN dayainsAnusieand aanin
2542-flaqtiyy N3NNI U3 lwensledl Anrin
2539-flaqtiu  nasumsuazLlsEsUNsINLAYS L3 a7t B St ()
2538-flaqtiy  nIsuNIsuATUsTaULTET U5 Aefieudiia Arin
2538-flaqifiy  N9gNNNg LT wailln A
2532-faqifs  nIsuNILAzUITaIUNIINNNTLEMNS

131 anflail aim (W)

s ag o o

2530-faqifs  nITHNNT LT nguuanud AT i

flaqifus N3uNNg UTEY uaef Inslid aarin

a

Educations :

- Honorary Doctoral Degree of Laws,
Dominican University of California, USA

- PhD in Science (Honorary) Information Technology for Management,
Mahasarakam University

Bachelor (Honorary) of Science, Engineering and Agricultural,
Rajamangala University of Technology Thanyaburi

Bachelor of Architecture, Fu Hsing Institute of Technology (Taiwan)

Certificate Thailand Insurance Leadership Program Class 1/2011,
Office of Insurance Commission (OIC)
- Certificate The Role of The Chairman Program (RCP) 12/2005 (I0D)
- Certificate Director Accredited Program (DAP) 2004 (IOD)
5 Years’ Work Experience :
2003-Present  Director & Executive Chairman

Business Online Public Company Limited
2013-Present  Director SVOA Public Company Limited
2011-Present  Director S P V | Public Company Limited
2008-Present  Director ABIKS Development Co., Ltd
2006-Present  Chairman of the Board D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd.
2000-Present  Director National Credit Bureau Co., Ltd
1999-Present  Director ARIT Co., Ltd.
1996-Present  Director & Executive Chairman IT City Public Company Limited
1995-Present  Director & Chairman Core & Peak Co., Ltd.
1995-Present  Director ANET Co., Ltd.
1989-Present  Director & Executive Chairman

ARIP Public Company Limited
1987-Present  Director Advanced Research Group Co., Ltd.
Present Director Venture Profile Co., Ltd.
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ANU=NSSUNISUSKHIS

2 ua198luws oNnasruy

nssunsiia:ygInnisikey, o1g 54 U

Ms. Chamaiporn Apikulvanich
Director & Chief Executive Officer, Age 54

Andaumstiaviu o 30 5.7, 2558 : 0.50%
maulAsunilasdruauiuszuing : 240,000 %u
msfaumesantasgansauazynsagslaiussaianiag : Tl
Fuiussnvanuadiifiuguivg : 24-10-2546/13 1

Shareholding Percentage (as of 30 Dec 2015) : 0.50%

Changes in number of shares during the year : 240,000 shares

The indirect shareholding of spouse and immature children : None
Appointment Date/Duration of Executive Committee : 24-10-2003/13 Years

mMSANEN :
- WAL IAnaRfuvnTudiaeatAdszgns \ReshtenAnin
AT AN ULEIN I AN ART
- PSyay wsugeansioudin Ausiflosduiuaes imdnendavenisdnlng
- 1lsvnAilenTng TA29nn2 Director Accredited Program (DAP) (2547)
- 1lsvnAilarTng Fostering a Board and Management Team (2548)
- dsznnAieting NaNgM3 Executive Development Program (EDP) i"uﬁ 6
Uszaumsnisiaumna 51 :
2546-laqifs nesunIsuazEdanislgy
131 93 ma eaulai] d1dn (Nvn1w)
2557-flaqiTy  nIsunng 13 BAnnagile Snrin
2549 -flaqify  nssunng W3 A weus O (Uszmalne) aarie

3 ulgBuWS INgsAUUNILA

NSSUNISIIAEE1UENISWIBUSHIS, 91y 44 U

Educations :
- Master of Applied Statistics (Computer Science, HONS), NIDA
- Bachelor of Arts (Economics, 2nd, Class Hons.),

University of the Thai Chamber of Commerce
- Certificate Director Accredited Program (DAP) 2004 (IOD)
- Certificate Fostering a Board and Management Team 2005
- Certificate Executive Development Program (EDP) Class 6
5 Years’ Work Experience :
2003-Present  Director & Chief Executive Officer

Business Online Public Company Limited

2014-Present  Director Ecartstudio Co.,Ltd.
2006-Present  Director D&B (Thailand) Co.,Ltd.

Mr. Chaiyaporn Kiatnuntavimon
Director & Chief Operating Officer, Age 44

Andaumstiaviu tu 30 5.A. 2558 : 0.47%
maulasuuilasdusuiuszudng : 18
msfajumssantasgansauaznsgslaiussaianng : i
Fuiussnaanuadiifiuguivg : 12-12-2546/13 1

Shareholding Percentage (as of 30 Dec 2015) : 0.47%

Changes in number of shares during the year : None

The indirect shareholding of spouse and immature children : None
Appointment Date/Duration of Executive Committee : 12-12-2003/13 Years

mMaANeA :
- Bryayn UIMnegsiianmiudin University of South Australia
- fFyyn Inenanansiingie (fqmmuﬂiimﬂﬁ)
antiunszasindEIALMINIAIANIZLN
- dszmaflating uangrainenisdssiuiasziug g'wﬁ 1
AThvuaniznssumsmiuuazdadunstsenaugsnadssiuie (adn.) T 2554
- sznnAfiaring Tasenns Company Secretary Program (CSP)
szaumsnigaunas 51 :
2546-faqiis  nIsuMIIuATEEWIENseLETIg
151 D3 ua aaulail S1in (Mvn1w)
2549 -flaqifiy  n3sunTg W5 A weus O (Uszmalne) aaria

Educations :
- Master of Business Administration, University of South Australia
- Bachelor of Science, Major in Chemical Industry,

King Mongkut Institute of Technology Ladkrabang

Certificate Thailand Insurance Leadership Program Class 1/2011, Office of
Insurance Commission (OIC)
- Certificate the Company Secretary Program (CSP) (IOD)
5 Years’ Work Experience :
2003-Present  Director & Chief Operating Officer
Business Online Public Company Limited
2006-Present  Director D&B (Thailand) Co.,Ltd.



Annual Report 2015 Business Online Public Company Limited - Executive Committee

19

4 uvadnavwanj ysruisueg

Wduosn1sueUnygia:nN1snu, 91g 42 U

Ms. Kanyapan Buranarom
Chief Financial Officer, Age 42

dndaumstiavu o 30 5.A. 2558 : 0.47%
mswlasunlasduauiuszuing : il
msfeunedanasgansaLazynsidaliuseg
Fuiusenyiuandiduguims: 12-12-2546/13

[md )

Shareholding Percentage (as of 30 Dec 2015) : 0.47%
Changes in number of shares during the year : None
The indirect shareholding of spouse and immature children : None

Appointment Date/Duration of Executive Committee : 12-12-2003/13 Years

msAnEn
- 13eynyn AadAansuunindia (mmﬁqﬂqmﬁ@ﬂﬁw)
NMINUNRUBITNAART
- PSrygyn WBwnsgsnanmiudin anndnendueiuasunsilom
- By Toyddindia smdngdangamm
- Fnyny WEvnsganatioudin iunanenduglaieassungsns
- dszmadlating Tsanns Director Accredited Program (DAP) (@'w‘?i 105/2556)
Uszaumsaidaunas 51 :
2546-Taqiiy  feaenisthetyduaznistu
159 D% ua aaulad S1n (Wvnaw)
2549 -flaqiiyy  n3sunng W3 A weus I (Uszndlne) 4aiia
flaqiy Haeuiinydiuewmyin

3

UWEa08UNS1 BUNSAU

WouannsNolU,
Whewsuunwannourina:usnns, a1g 46 U

Educations :
- Master of Arts (English for Careers), Thammasat University
- Master of Business Administration, Major in Management,

Srinakarin Tharavirot University
- Bachelor of Accounting, Bangkok University
- Bachelor of Business Administration, Sukhothai Thammathirat University
- Certificate Director Accredited Program (DAP) Class 105/2013 (I0D)
5 Years’ Work Experience :
2003-Present  Cheif Financial Officer

Business Online Public Company Limited

2006-Present  Director D&B (Thailand) Co.,Ltd.
Present Certified Public Accountant (Thailand)

Ms.Intira Inturattana
Assistant General Manager &
Product & Service Development , Age 46

dndrumstiau o 30 5.A. 2558 : 0.02%
msulasuuilassituauuszudne : 47,000 i

o v v ' sy aa 1
mstiajunedantasgansauazynsiddladussqiinie : Tl
Tuussnysuauimiugudms : 01-03-2558/10 e

Shareholding Percentage (as of 30 Dec 2015) : 0.02%

Changes in number of shares during the year : 47,000 shares

The indirect shareholding of spouse and immature children : None
Appointment Date/Duration of Executive Committee : 01-03-2015/10 Months

msAne :

- 1Bayayn W siaumiudin a129n19mane dantiuiodin
WNULFTINIANART

- Uszmatiatine MenAunans avAInedEATLY CRERELI TR BT

- Usyayn AadAandiioudnn ussaninuAaniiaza1simafans
NUNINLNARITDULY

szaumanisaunas 51 :

2558-1laq1iu éﬁqﬂrﬁmmaﬁﬂﬂ dheimunaninaiuaTLTNe

13 D% aeulad d1in (Wnmw)

Educations :

- Master of Business Administration, Major in Marketing, National Institute of
Development Administration (NIDA)

- Certifcate of International Language, Major in Madarin, Jinan University, The
People’s Republic of China

Bachelor of Humanity and Social Sciences, Major in Library and Information
Sciences, Khon Kaen University

5 Years’ Work Experience :

2015-Present  Assistant General Manager

Product & Service Development

Business Online Public Company Limited



s1991uUs:910 2558 USUN 081ud ooulau 919a (UML) - Voyanwnisiiulngasy

20

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

voyantinisiiulnoasy

(Vo Ln)

dnsull dugndun 31 SuonAu

**2556

Aumdnedaan 534,192 449,034 533,733 533,130 448,298
AU 164,859 195,862 162,753 160,535 195,812 152,703

douzasfiaru 373,845 338,330
selldsan 341,710 455,683
i"]f_lyl.ﬁ’l”“l’mﬂ"li"ll’]f_lLLﬁZU?‘ﬂ'ﬁ‘ 323,768 440,178
fnledudu 169,945 186,584
nlsgninaund 71,079 96,037
nlsgns 61,187 79,127

296,281 373,198 337,317 295,595
404,478 337,905 455,681 404,468
388,319 319,964 440,178 388,319
190,125 169,923 186,584 190,125
110,225 71,514 95,710 110,138
90,035 61,5563 78,801 89,947

BRFTIAIUNINMSFIIY

'a"m"nmuﬁﬂﬂ’fuﬁu(%) 42.39 48.96
ansdauninleqna(%) 17.29 22.24
ANINAIUHARALUNUADAUNTNE (%) 14.78 20.06
fnadounanauunusiadouadiian (%) 23.36 30.43
'a"mi"n'dquaum*wﬁmguﬁausiw%wguﬁﬂu (i) 1.78 2.09
'a"mwmwﬂauwi'amumméﬁaﬁu (1) 0.58 0.52
wSauinutayasaiy (umn)

ﬁﬂiﬁiaﬁuﬁ?uﬁug’m 0.10 0.11
yarmwltydsiedu (um) 0.43 0.38
uﬂ@ﬁﬁﬁmaﬁii’ﬁiaﬁu (um) 0.10 0.10
Ruilunssiatiu (umn) 0.05 0.09
Sutlupaans (@1uumn) 39.38 70.88
[uauuansy - puaanzien (@u) 826.00 787.50
Suaurfuanity - quiteenuazFandnrzuda (@) 787.50 787.50

*

MsrguaniznasunsLim fufewiilfauedsRuiunadszardanuanisafiveusydnt 2558 fuaz 0.06 U (91AMIFfuas 0.10 L)
(spensTRangfiaiu lunisdssguansdtydfiaullszantl 2559 vaeizim)

* \ull 2556 umsgIuNstyRif 12 Gee "mERWLE Iignusznaald uasfinateduldluseninaihduniusn
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(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statement The Company Only
For the year ended December 31 -

014 2015 201

534,192
Total Liabilities 164,859 195,862
Total Equity 373,845 338,330
Total Revenues 341,710 455,683

Total Assets 449,034 533,733 533,130 448,298
152,753 160,535 195,812 152,703
296,281 373,198 337,317 295,695
404,478 337,905 455,681 404,468
388,319 319,964 440,178 388,319
190,125 169,923 186,584 190,125
110,225 71,514 95,710 110,138

90,035 61,553 78,801 89,947

Revenue from sales and services 323,768 440,178
Gross Profit 169,945 186,584
Profit before tax 71,079 96,037
Net Profit 61,187 79,127

Financial Ratio

Gross Profit Margin (%) 42.39 48.96
Net Profit Margin (%) 17.29 22.24
Return on Total Assets (%) 14.78 20.06
Return on Equity (%) 23.36 30.43
Current Ratio (times) 1.78 2.09
Debt to Equity Ratio (times) 0.58 0.52
Comparison of Information per share (Baht)

Basic Earning per share (Baht) 0.10 0.11
Book Value per share ( Baht) 0.43 0.38
Par Value per share ( Baht ) 0.10 0.10
Dividend per share (Baht) 0.05 0.09
Dividend payment (Million Baht) 39.38 70.88
Number of shares - Registered ( share : Million ) 826.00 787.50
Number of shares - Issued and paid-up ( share : Million ) 787.50 787.50

*

The Board of Director Meeting of the company passed a resolution to approve of annual dividend payment based on its operating results for the year 2015 at the
rate of Baht 0.06 per share (par value of 0.10 Baht)
(The annual dividend payment is subject to the approval of the Annual General Meeting of shareholders in 2016).

** The new accounting standard (TAS12), “income taxes” , has been announced in 2013 and this year was the first adoption of BOL.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

voyad1Aryn1anisiu

IJSguingusele
Revenue Comparison

275,609

KUY 1 WUUIN
Unit : Thousand Baht

S19lASoU
dnsutl 2558
Total Revenues
for the year 2015

341,710

} 15,505
} 93,313

255,169

S19lRASoU
dmsSul 2557
Total Revenues
for the year 2014

455,683

usSNsAUvola USNNSAUNISUSIISAONUIZEY

Information Services Risk Management Services

USMIS3UY selsduY (S1elsineniJusu Ruduwasu 1a:3ue)
Other Services Other Income (Interest & Dividend & Other)
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Voyanolu

Faudum

Ui‘i:f'VI T3 aaulal ]
Wi nsdETu
2423(7)/2556 laFunisdaaiunisaesuluiianis geWduas dszinm
ENTERPRISE SOFTWARE Waz DIGITAL CONTENT dszinn 5.8 Aanng
gansiag

Aouiing

1847 900/8-10 1Ansieailate n1aLes 41 11, 12, 14 nuUNSYIN 3
WL TN LLAENUUINT NTINNS 10120

Uszinngsna

138 0%wa aaulal d1dn (Hm7) Lﬂumm‘lumﬂummwﬂmLW@
n1sfndulaniegsna Vlﬂ‘iﬂ'i_lﬂmJmLL[ﬂﬂ’]i‘MﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂN QREGERELEH
foyauazanuisinuuegAiniegsia ﬂ'mLm%mmmu'ﬁmmmm
NIUATAR Iﬂﬂﬂ’]iu’]ﬂﬂﬂ’ﬂﬂm@mﬂﬂum’]iuwﬁﬂwMLLQ?LL@ LLawwaLmu
nsldATnenaegsia ‘Vlﬂuﬂ';‘ymﬁLLﬂvﬂﬂJﬂ’]ﬁﬂ’]Lsﬁﬂu Fasaudenns
BBNUULLATHAUITULEANTAUNA FLUUAANNTRIAAINNE AABARUNIT
Aamusinn1zén Lw'aﬂ'mmimmﬁmwmmmmuumﬂu

o

Q1R (W) (BOL)

RN g uULEEN 0107546000407
Tnadni +66 2657 3999
Tnsans +66 2657 3900-1
Wulasusen https://www.BOL.co.th
NuAannziday 82,600,000 U

wisaandunuiieanuazdiszuaa 79,399,325 Um
gamuinsliiuay 0.10 UM
FuARAzAUIUAURSIMINEUAY  Fuanslty 419w 793,993,250 T

FarFundan

v eiled Aranatluugd A11in

Anuing

827 131 DUUIEFUTOUL WANIH]TYIOLY

IRTIEFYIUT NN 10140

szinngsna

Anfiugsiantsdnuadansuning mmummmwulumu 81A17
An1nanu Lw'ﬂluﬂ@mmn@uw,l,m@nmmvl,ﬂmwuw AABAAUATEUNT
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1519 TFua aeulad 18m (WunTw) wavisEmeas
r-%

ammmgﬁuzmiwu

U N 31 FuAN 2558

(Mg un)

JUNISIUIDWA:N2NIS
Aunsng
Aunsnduyuidau
RuaauazraeniafieumnSuan 7 25,779,380 64,066,276 25,106,672 63,699,711
Guamu«fqmm 8 60,045,004 - 60,045,004 -
qnuﬁmsﬁq 9 80,848,115 39,101,199 74,263,898 39,101,199
el iAnesu 127,740,286 218,298,371 130,410,735 218,298,371
aum“wﬁmuﬁﬂuéu 32,813,082 13,250,796 32,803,585 13,237,519
FANRUNTNEMNUITY 327,225,867 334,716,642 322,629,894 334,336,800
Aundndlaivguidau
furnsuAsRszAnUszAY 10 17,200,100 17,200,100 17,200,100 17,200,100
Ruaauluisnees 11 - - 999,930 399,930
SuamuluiFemion 12 31,265,992 31,016,864 30,000,000 30,000,000
@umnumzmq%u 13 80,805,288 80,805,288 80,805,288 80,805,288
dautlfuilyeenansuazgiingnl 14 21,568,506 21,017,304 21,568,506 21,017,303
Aunsndlaidfamu 15 52,485,848 41,448,433 52,446,544 41,382,879
AunindmBRulAsanssniiod 23 6,353,271 6,427,786 6,284,345 6,427,786
aum”wﬁ‘l,simuﬁauﬁ'u 1,798,423 1,559,778 1,798,423 1,659,778
sanRunswalaivguiiau 211,477,428 199,475,553 211,103,136 198,793,064
FaNRUNTNE 538,703,295 534,192,195 533,733,030 533,129,864

winewesznatunsRuiiudounilsaewunis{ull



JUIAAYZIUNISITU - JUIAAVIIUNISITU (1)
77
1519 TFua aeulad S1dm (EunTw) waviEmeos
_ 1
AUULARIFIUTMINY (D)
24 AUR 31 fuanAN 2558
(Mg un)

NURULAZAIUTBIN DD
ndAUUYUALY
ANy
o o -y
Wnninasuazidmiian
S a Yy '
AnE#RulFAEe
X I
NHRUMYUREURY
gelAsusamiin
AdnslsvlamiAeany
douresildunudnynidini st
= o o =
eAvuatiszn e luniled
B
Fa -
FINUURUNYUITEY
niAulsinyuieu
Frsasnalsvlamiszazenqraaninanu
saaniRubinguiiau
7N
FINNURY
] ey v
fauaagnau
A 2
U
Nuannzifou
fuansizy 826,000,000 U yaA%uaL 0.10 UM
yueanaMaLazd1szIANYaA1LAY
Yuanadny 793,993,250 i yartiuaz 0.10 UM
(31 FuanAn 2557: Fuanslty 787,500,000 i
yaruaz 0.10 1)
AouiiuyaA Uy
Aaunuuainnianalaeldiudunnet
inlsazan
AnaTIUET - A389RINNgUNE
fslailAdnass
douaesfDaduressFime
douaasfiidouldiAunlaidduianiunuaedineden
sANAUARINDANY
7N s B
sINNURULATAIUTRIG DAY

] 3
winewmesznatunsRuiiuduniisaewun1s{ull

20

20
20

JUNISIUSOU

JUNISNUIAWI:NINNS

HUNBINR 2558 2557 2558 2557

= 40,000,000 = 40,000,000
44,787,322 57,562,533 40,924,606 57,512,533
382,235 4,989,235 382,235 4,989,235
72,157,064 48,906,747 71,721,233 48,906,747
25,000,000 20,000,000 25,000,000 20,000,000
= 1,156,924 = 1,156,924
13,530,050 15,089,796 13,504,832 15,089,796
155,856,671 187,705,235 151,632,906 187,655,235
9,002,084 8,157,231 9,002,084 8,157,231
9,002,084 8,157,231 9,002,084 8,157,231
164,858,755 195,862,466 160,534,990 195,812,466
82,600,000 82,600,000 82,600,000 82,600,000
78,318,325 78,750,000 79,399,325 78,750,000
88,867,513 77,149,671 88,867,513 77,149,671
4,276,327 2,296,560 4,276,327 2,296,560
8,260,000 7,875,000 8,260,000 7,875,000
193,041,353 172,258,470 192,394,875 171,246,167
373,844,518 338,329,701 373,198,040 337,317,398
22 28 = =
373,844,540 338,329,729 373,198,040 337,317,398
538,703,295 534,192,195 533,733,030 533,129,864
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1519 TFua aeulad S1dm (EunTw) waviEmeos
< <

aumlsmanuidnigsa

Amiutlaugn Jun 31 fuanan 2558

(Mg un)

JUNISIUSOU JUNISNUIAWI:NINNS

HUNBINR 2558 2557 2558 2557

ilsaavu:
sela
meldannisliBnisdeyaeeulal 249,347,810 230,748,404 243,506,318 230,748,404
meldmnnisliingau 74,420,060 209,429,784 76,458,180 209,429,784
meldau 17,941,918 15,504,843 17,940,451 15,502,818
sansnala 341,709,788 455,683,031 337,904,949 455,681,006
Anlgane 22
FAununnsliEng 153,822,686 253,594,265 150,041,976 253,594,265
ArldanelunisuEung 116,505,214 103,425,080 115,797,200 103,547,595
FauAT Ldane 270,327,900 357,019,345 265,839,176 357,141,860
milsnaudauutsmlsanfuamulunsensan
AnldananemsRuuazatldanan#dule 71,381,888 98,663,686 72,065,773 98,539,146
douutiarinlsannRuamuluiBimsan 249,128 201,862 - -
flsraualdaraniamsduuazaldarameRula 71,631,016 98,865,548 72,065,773 98,539,146
AldanenI9n1sRu (552,085)  (2,828,821) (552,085)  (2,828,821)
lstaualganameRuls 71,078,931 96,036,727 71,513,688 95,710,325
A ldana &Rl 23 (9,891,874)  (16,909,541) (9,960,800)  (16,909,541)
lsdmsull 61,187,057 79,127,186 61,552,888 78,800,784
mausiluils

douiliuresdfeduren i 61,187,063 79,127,191 61,552,888 78,800,784

douilifuresdidnulideilaifisnna

ATLANTBILITENERE (6) (5)
61,187,057 79,127,186

lssiau 24
ﬁﬁiiﬁﬂﬁu%uﬁugm

fnladauiilusesdieduren i 0.08 0.10 0.08 0.10

ﬁ’mquﬁumﬁ’ryﬁqmﬁlﬂdwﬁfmﬁﬂ () 790,706,697 787,500,000 790,706,697 787,500,000
fnlssiaiulsuan

frladauiiduesdfeduren i 0.08 0.10 0.08 0.10

AUTUANTTYTR \Atastimin G 796,745,628 792,621,560 796,745,628 792,621,560

wingwnlsznausunisRududounilaressunisiuil



aurlsvaanuidaiags - sunnlsvianuidniase (o)
79
1519 TFua aeulad 18R (HuNTw) waviisEmeas
o (=1 (=3 1
qum"lsm'mv;ummmq (1)
AmFuTlAugnium 31 fuanan 2558
(Mot Um)

JUNISIUSIU JUNISUIDW:N2NIS

HUNBINR 2558 2557 2558 2557

fladnsal 61,187,057 79,127,186 61,552,888 78,800,784
inlsmayuifingiadu:
menialigniuinludiusesiilavierayuluniavie
HATIANUAINNNTLTZH NS
paVaNAIRANdA sz iU 19 (805,225) - (805,225) -
9n: Hansznuasn HRulA 23 161,045 = 161,045 -
semsfagllgnifuiinludeuresils
WreAUlUNENAY - gnaannnERulE (644,180) - (644,180) -
inlsaanuidinaiadudmsuil (644,180) - (644,180) -
ilsranuidinadasandniudl 60,542,877 79,127,186 60,908,708 78,800,784
msutisifumlsmanuidaiadason
douliuresdfeduren i 60,542,883 79,127,191 60,908,708 78,800,784
dqw?iL‘flmlmQ’ﬁdau’lﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬂﬁé'\m@mu@mmﬁﬂ'mj'aﬂ 6) (5)

60,542,877 79,127,186

- = - &
NHY mrﬁlﬂiznﬂmunwmmﬂuz&quuuwmwmmuu
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U390 T4 fa'auiaﬁ. ]RA (NVNT) waZLFENt g
v

suuanImsilaaunlasdIuaasdtiaiy

Qq

AmFuTlAugnium 31 fuanan 2558

(Mot L)
JUNISNUSOU douvoy
douveaugifioiuvesusénd wieouls
- ELRINY]
dourfiunu rnlsa:au soudoy | SUW
' vouiiiio | oA
Inol8Au | grsoumu L VOuuUSEN
e 5 Auussnd ;
1Wumnauri | nprune : o8

nuiouru | goulnu
nooniia:z | yaAn

- o o
HABAAILUAD T IUN 1

NNFIAN 2557 78,750,000 77,149,671 - 7,875,000 132,506,279 296,280,950 33 296,280,983
nlsdniud - - - - 79,127,191 79,127,191 (5) 79,127,186
Slsmanuidaigfadud il - - - - - - - -
fnlsranuiiaaiasud miud - - - - 79,127,191 79,127,191 (5) 79,127,186
nazanetaeldfuiunnet 20 - - 2,296,560 - - 2,296,560 - 2,296,560
Ruflunaaneg 28 - - - - (39,375,000) (39,375,000) - (39,375,000)
HRAANUWAD U Uil 31

SUAN 2557 78,750,000 77,149,671 2,296,560 7,875,000 172,258,470 338,329,701 28 338,329,729

- o o
SABAAILUAD B IUN 1

NNTIAN 2558 78,750,000 77,149,671 2,296,560 7,875,000 172,258,470 338,329,701 28 338,329,729
fnlsdmiudl - - - - 61,187,063 61,187,063 (6) 61,187,057
ﬁﬁiimﬁmnuLﬂmﬂ%@%‘lua‘hﬁuﬂ s = - = (644,180)  (644,180) - (644,180)
ilsranuiiaaiasudmiud - - - - 60,542,883 60,542,883 (6) 60,542,877
ﬁumﬁmﬁmmﬁu%umnmﬂ%

ansmnuludnAtyuans&nd 20 649,325 11,717,842 (1,003,979) - - 11,363,188 - 11,363,188
nsanglaeldfudunouat 20 - - 2,983,746 - - 2,983,746 - 2,983,746
Andssd1seImNNgUNIe 21 = - = 385,000  (385,000) - = -
Sutlunaane 28 - - - - (39,375,000) (39,375,000) - (39,375,000)
HARAIVAD T UR 31

fUNAN 2558 79,399,325 88,867,513 4,276,327 8,260,000 193,041,353 373,844,518 22 373,844,540

- = - X
NNe LMﬁ;ﬂizn@mummmﬂuzﬁquuuwmmmmuu



wuiananisiasunladdouvet for u - Julldaninisiua sunlasaouvedy for u (no) 91
U390 T4 fa'auiaﬁ. ]RA (NVNT) waZLFENt g
=l 1 ey v 1
suugnimstlasuuilasdiurasgnany (sa)
AmFuTlAugnium 31 fuanan 2558
(Mot L)

nuISauru douinu douinunu - - :
noonia: yann 0?23%5‘;3 Y| dndssiao- | oo ol | SOUEOUNS]
$S:13 Al disouny Y wioru
KNIk | OIS0 Kuaniny Fune S 5mAsS JNON
HanAUVAD 4 Uf 1 unsIAN 2557 78,750,000 77,149,671 - 7,875,000 131,820,383 295,595,054
fnlsdmsul - - - - 78,800,784 78,800,784
flsmanuidaig§adud il - - - - - -
fnlsnpypnaiasandmind - - - - 78,800,784 78,800,784
nazanetaeldfuiunnet 20 - - 2,296,560 - - 2,296,560
Autlunaane 28 - - - - (39,375,000)  (39,375,000)
HAAALURE 4 UTt 31 SuanAN 2557 78,750,000 77,149,671 2,296,560 7,875,000 171,246,167 337,317,398
HAAAIVAD T4 UR 1 NNSIAN 2558 78,750,000 77,149,671 2,296,560 7,875,000 171,246,167 337,317,398
fnledwmiudl - - - - 61,552,888 61,552,888
ﬁﬁiimﬁmnuLﬂmLﬂ?ﬁﬁuéW%’uﬂ = . s = (644,180) (644,180)
fnlsranuiiaaiasudgmiud - - - - 60,908,708 60,908,708
ﬁ:umﬁnalﬁﬂﬂﬂLﬁu%umﬂmﬂ"ﬁ%w%
muludrAtyuansdns 20 649,325 11,717,842  (1,003,979) - - 11,363,188
nasanetaeldfuiunnet 20 - - 2,983,746 - - 2,983,746
GYmmmhimmungmw 21 - - - 385,000 (385,000) -
Autlunaane 28 - - - - (39,375,000)  (39,375,000)
HAAALURE 4 UTt 31 SuanAN 2558 79,399,325 88,867,513 4,276,327 8,260,000 192,394,875 373,198,040

] ¥
wnnawmesznatunsRuiiudouniisewunis{ull
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1519 TFua aeulad 18R (HuNTw) waviisEmeas
r-%

JUNTTLALIUR R

AmFuTlAugnium 31 fuanan 2558

(Mot L)

JUNISNUSOU JUNISNUIAWI=NINAS

2558 2557 2558 2557

NFEUARUAARNNNANITNANBUNY

Anlsraunn@ 71,078,931 96,036,727 71,513,688 95,710,325
d5usenisnssnunnlsneunEifluRuansy (ans)
AINAANITNANTUNIU
r’h‘l@mnmﬂﬂﬁlﬂuuﬂmu’,@ﬁﬁﬁumnu{aﬂiw (45,004) - (45,004) -
AndaNIAULaT NGRS 19,788,531 18,408,681 19,762,281 18,382,431
douutiarinlsannFuamuluiBimsan (249,128) (201,862) - -
ﬁﬂ’h‘qﬂﬁLﬁmmﬂmidw‘[mﬂlﬁ'ﬁmﬂumm% 2,983,746 2,296,560 2,983,746 2,296,560
Anaanatsrlemiszazennananiineu 1,145,628 1,135,586 1,145,628 1,135,586
1A UANEAT uanulatudlaiifntuas 260,867 67,744 250,382 67,744
lszanunisAnliuainauanda 11,520,655 1,047,800 11,520,655 1,047,800
ﬁﬂLﬁﬂMﬁﬂdﬁﬂ@tQm (Taundw) (1,415,113) 1,415,113  (1,415,113) 1,415,113
AniflannsdesAnTag Ruawuluiizemedes (launay) . = (600,000) 200,000
(fla)zanuannisdminegnnl (1,351) 10,039 (1,302) 10,039
fnlsarnnissnuallsunInmeniomes (1,557) - (1,557) =
selaRutiung (17,456,250)  (15,006,250)  (17,456,250)  (15,006,250)
Anldananenide 552,085 2,828,821 552,085 2,828,821
penLiasy (460,468) (471,643) (459,050) (469,617)
fnlsannfanssusiinauneuniswaeuudadly
FumneuazutAuATILY 87,701,572 107,567,316 87,750,189 107,618,552
Rum”wﬁéhLﬁumuamm(ﬁuﬁu):
Qnuﬁmsﬁ'ﬂ (40,376,674) (1,015,632)  (33,792,457) (1,015,532)
sellgiAnau 90,558,085  (38,549,060) 87,887,636  (38,549,060)
aum“wﬁmgufmu%"u (19,571,645) 34,117,102  (19,575,425) 34,117,111
Aunindlaivauidaudu (238,645) 35,644 (238,645) 35,644
uﬁauﬁmﬁummﬁuﬁu(amm):
viinsdnuazdmian (30,860,272) 23,593,155  (34,662,503) 23,593,155
sell st 23,250,317 1,155,470 22,814,486 1,155,470
AnandilsslamiAngans 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000
wﬁﬁuuguﬁﬁuﬁlu (1,578,773) 4,488,960  (1,603,991) 4,488,960
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(60,000,000) = (60,000,000) =
= (200,000) = (200,000)
= (52,941,177) = (52,941,177)
(8,236,588) (5,882,066) (8,236,588) (5,882,066)
16,347 9,907 16,297 9,907
(16,807,156) (13,022,901)  (16,807,156)  (13,022,901)

1,567 = 1,567 =
17,456,250 15,006,250 17,456,250 15,006,250
469,827 493,271 468,409 491,245
(67,099,753) (56,536,716)  (67,101,221)  (56,538,742)

11,363,188 = 11,363,188 =
(40,000,000) 40,000,000  (40,000,000) 40,000,000
= (30,816,000) = (30,816,000)
(1,156,924) (1,466,757) (1,156,924) (1,466,757)
(39,355,973) (39,356,999)  (39,355,973)  (39,356,999)
(69,149,709) (31,639,756)  (69,149,709)  (31,639,756)
(38,286,896) 27,742,651  (38,593,039) 27,791,870
64,066,276 36,323,625 63,699,711 35,907,841
25,779,380 64,066,276 25,106,672 63,699,711
4,217,916 643,317 4,217,916 643,317
2,130,494 (1,145,337) 2,130,494 (1,145,337)
19,027 18,001 19,027 18,001
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Joint Venture name

Business Online Public Company Limited ABIKS Development Co., Ltd.

Certificate No. Address

131 Ratburana Rd., Ratburana, Bangkok 10140
Type of Business

Company’ s name

2423(7)/2556 To be encouraged to invest in the software
TYPE: ENTERPRISE SOFTWARE and DIGITAL CONTENT
(Type 5.8 Software)

Address estate development business including investment in land, office
900/8-10 SVOA Tower 11, 12, 14 FI., Rama Il Rd., Bangpongpang,
Yannawa, Bangkok 10120

Type of Business

Incorporated and domiciled in Thailand to principally engage in real

building for rental and to render property management services to
shareholders and other customers.

150,000,000 Baht

150,000,000 Baht

information for decision making on business. Our services help Par value 10 Baht

Type and amount of Outstanding

Registered capital
Business Online Public Company Limited is the leader in business Paid-up capital
clients in finding new customers, monitoring the information of business

partners and identify them. In addition, our analytics and credit risk Shares Ordinary shares 15,000,000 Ordinary shares

management services are derived from big data which require secure

date warehouse. Furthermore, BOL provides comprehensive

Joint Venture name

Ecartstudio Co., Ltd.

knowledge management system and commercial debt collection Address

129 Rama IX Rd. Huai Khwang, Huai Khwang, Bangkok 10310

solutions such as business consulting for both domestic and ASEAN

markets including the design and development of information system,

for the business growth and sustainability.

Company Registered Number : 0107546000407 Type of Business

Tel: +66 2657 3999 Software consultancy activities

Fax: +66 2657 3900-1 Registered capital 11,764,730 Baht
Homepage: https://www.BOL.co.th Paid-up capital 11,764,730 Baht
Registered capital: 82,600,000 baht Par value 10 Baht

Paid-up capital: 79,399,325 Baht Type and amount of Outstanding
Par value: 0.10 Baht

Type and amount of Outstanding

Shares Ordinary shares 1,176,473 Ordinary shares

Shares Ordinary shares: 793,993,250 Ordinary shares

Investor Relations : ir@bol.co.th

Mr. Chaiyaporn Kiatnuntavimon

Subsidiary name

D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Address

900/8-10 SVOA Tower Rama lll Rd., Bangpongpang, Yannawa,
Bangkok 10120

Type of Business

International credit reporting & Database activities
Tel: +66 2657 3939
Fax: +66 2657 3901
1,000,000 Baht
Paid-up capital: 1,000,000 Baht
Par value: 10 Baht

Type and amount of Outstanding

Registered capital:

Shares Ordinary shares: 100,000 Ordinary shares

Director & Chief Operating Officer
Ms. Kanyapan Buranarom

Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Srisunun Anuchornphan
Company Secretary

OTHER RELEVANT INFORMATION
« Share Registrar
Thailand Securities Depository Co., Ltd.

93 The Stock Exchange of Thailand Building, Ratchadapisek Rd.,

Din-Daeng,Din-Daeng, Bangkok 10400

Tel: +66 2009 9999
Fax: +66 2009 9476
« Auditor

Ms. Siriwan Suratepin

C.P.A.(Thailand), Registration No. 4604

EY Office Thailand

193/136-137, 33 Fl., Lake Ratchada Office Complex
Ratchadapisek Road Bangkok 10110 Thailand

Tel: +66 2264 0777
Fax: +66 2264 0789-90
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BUSINESS OBJECTIVES

BOL is striving to be the leading provider of business information and analytics tools to enable our customers achieve a fast and ef-
fective decision making process. The company continuously develops and updates its existing business registry and financial database
while searching for new information sources. Leading innovations from around the world are harnessed to offer new dimensions in analyz-
ing and interpreting business risks and opportunities. The security of our database and network is at heart of business, ensuring a smooth

running of customer experience. Moreover, the company has initiated our services venture aboard.

The company’s main target customers can be divided into 3 main categories as follows:
1) Financial Institutions
2) Private Businesses and Industries

3) Public Organizations

A majority of our customers integrated our services in various stages of their operation, from searching new target customers, supporting
their corporate decisions in evaluating and managing risks associated with business transactions, and preventing delinquency payment.
Moreover, BOL'’s services equipped customers with analytic tools for a better formulation of business strategy to broaden their market
opportunities and enhance revenue performance. In addition, we have brought in a data visualization technology to analyze big data that

transforms complex information into charts and graphs. This genuinely allows business executives to make more effective decisions.

Furthermore, the company continuously establish new business partnership with a leading company in order to excel our services and
satisfy the growing needs of our clients. For instance, BOL has collaborated with a leading global debt recovery agency to expand on its

comprehensive debt recovery service.
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NATURE OF BUSINESS OF THE COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY

Business Online Company Limited was founded on 26 April 1995 with registered capital of 10 million baht. On 1 December 2003, the company
converted its status to a public company and was renamed as Business Online Public Company Limited with registered capital of 75 million
Baht and listed on the “Market for Alternative Investment (mai)” on 21 April 2004. The company increased its registered capital to 78.75 million

Baht on 18 April 2007 and second time, increased its registered capital to 82.6 million Baht on 9 April 2014.

Our business activities are to provide information that has been analysed and validated, as well as related news, to improve customers’
decision making process. The information is compiled from many sources such as the Department of Business Development, Ministry of
Commerce, under the agreement which allows BOL access to basic information, including company status, Board of Directors, and financial
performance of more than 1,000,000 registered companies in Thailand. The company also gathers other information such as related news
from various industries through leading newspapers and other respectable business news sources. In addition, the company stores and
analyses trade payment information from existing customers while the information received is thoroughly checked, evaluated, analyzed

and stored in our online system that can be accessed through the company’s website: https://www.BOL.co.th

The company’s joint venture with D&B has increased BOL'’s capabilities; not only have we gained knowledge in data management and
analysis from a world'’s leading company but this has enabled the company to extend our service to international markets via D&B'’s network.
From this, we had launched a service that offers information on overseas companies for our local customers as a decision tool which is
beneficial in strengthening the country’s credit risk management and promoting transparency of business transactions. On 22 March
2006, BOL established a wholly owned subsidiary, D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd. (Company Registration Number: 0105549038501) with a

registered capital of 1 million baht.

With information of more than 1,000,000 registered companies in Thailand and more than 240 million registered companies in 214 countries
around the globe and expertise in developing Database Management Systems, Risk Management, in conjunction with information technology
know-how that make the company to become one of the leading companies in providing fully-integrated information services ranging from
basic information such as basic information and company operation results which include: news services, information analysis and validation.
These can be used as effective tools that are effective and accurate while reducing risks associated with investments and building more

confidence and business opportunities.

The company has been selected as the data processing center for credit information submitted by financial institutions which are members of
National Credit Bureau Co., Ltd. (NCB) since its establishment.

In 2004, BOL introduced a comprehensive Financial Analysis System to the market. This system enhanced the efficiency in analyzing

financial information and assisted managers to confidently devise strategies.

BOL began providing in-depth data analysis to improve its capability in business risks and opportunity analysis. Since 2005, the company
has developed a new generation of product that specifically caters for financial institutions which is called Decision Support System
(“DSS”). DSS enables the integration of BOL’s and customers’ databases to help customers better organize their databases to capture

market opportunities and improve their risk management.

Atthe end of 2007, BOL launched a new product called “CORPUS”. CORPUS is a new concept of information service that integrates information
on companies’ profile, shareholder information, director details and financial statements. Users could easily access the information of over
1,000,000 companies to analyse threats and opportunities of any given company. Corpus was designed to answer the needs for information

which may vary from industry to industry or from one job function to another.

In 2010, the company has finished developing a risk forecasting tools that indicates an organization’s probability in running into financial
crisis and displays the result in a form of a score or Financial Stress Score (FS Score) that achieves international standards. The tool is a
result of collaboration between BOL and the analyst team of D&B in the United States. It is expected that the tool will help customers to

understand the financial standings of their business partners while diversifying their risks though better risk management strategies.
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In 2014, a new product launched under the name of ‘ENLITE’, the system specifically caters for the decision support process of banking
and financial institutions. Highlight features include data integration with Thailand’s business registration database which can be analyzed,
evaluated with reports in forms of data visualization while premium features include Risk Score/Risk Class that predict future probability of
a financial crisis; News, that gather information from leading sources domestically and internationally; Auditor Flag that contains financial
commentary from the auditors; Location Based Intelligence, which displays information in a map form and Account Relationship Management,

which gives a picture of how each company, shareholders and directors are related.

Furthermore, the company has jointly developed a system that electronically receives financial statements under the name ‘DBD e-Filing’
with the Department of Business Development (DBD) and other partners with the intention to support DBD in improving its service while
providing convenience and a new channel to receive financial statements from registered companies. DBD e-Filing’s increases the integrity

of financial information while it is expected that the service would be available for 2014 financial year filings.

Type of Services

BOL's services are divided into 3 main groups as follow:
1. Information Services

1.1 Basic Information

1.2 Decision Support Information

1.3 Analytic Information

2. Risk Management Services
2.1 Risk Management Solution

2.2 Risk Management Consultancy

3. Other Services
3.1 Special Project
3.2 DebtlLine

1. Information Services

Information service is BOL’s main business. In order to compete, the company must adapt to changes that occur both internally and
externally. As a result, information for decision making has become even more crucial to organizational management and that is why BOL
continues to develop a variety of information service for customers who may have different degree of needs for information. In addition, we
put great emphasis on adding value to information and discover new perspectives in interpreting information so that our customers can
better manage their risks and opportunities. Our information service is delivered in the following categories:
1.1. Basic Information Service
This covers both domestic and international company information through online and offline channels. The service is provided to
private businesses and organizations, as well as governmental agencies by gathering business information from various sources
thus giving different levels of users comprehensive and in-depth information which is offered in many forms such as:
« Web-based application that has the following functions:
- Access to updated, multi-dimensional information gathered from various sources
- In-depth financial analysis that helps users to easily understand complex numbers
- Alert changes to target companies that may have effects on the users’ organizations
- Finding new customers according to user-defined criteria which helps with devising organisational strategies

- Advanced search that enhances marketing effectiveness

Reports

Customised database — users can choose data items from our database in compiling reports tailored to their specifications
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2.

1.2 Decision Support Information
This is provided as a Decision Support System that suits large organizations such as financial institutions where overview of
business information is essential to their operations. This also includes applications, systems and information that are regularly
updated.

1.3 Analytic Information
This is provided in forms of scores and ratings by compiling business and financial information of over 260,000 companies in our
database. This is then analysed by using statistical methods before a score is given. Users then use this score to predict the
probability of a company facing a financial crisis which leads to bankruptcy, receivership, foreclosure or rehabilitation so that they
understand their customer’s business, diversify their risks, and effectively employing suitable risk management strategies for their

portfolio.

Risk Management Services

2.1. Risk Management Solutions
Through cooperation with a leading international company, we are able to provide risk management tools to financial institutions
such as financial analysis system, business rule engine.

2.2 Risk Management Consultancy
We also serve as risk management consultants by bringing our experience and expertise on data analysis to serve our customers

through consulting sessions and seminars.

Other Services

3.1 Special Project
Special project is one that the company provides by using our expertise in data management and auditing, and IT infrastructure
development that satisfy our customers’ unique requirements.

3.2 DebtLine
The company provides debt collection service to enhance financial and liquidity management to customers. This helps them to

reduce bad debts while maintaining good relationships with their trading partners.

Milestones of BOL

1995 Established Business Online Co., Ltd. (BOL).

1996 Signed a memorandum of understanding (MOU) with the Department of Business Development, Ministry of Commerce to

provide online information of registered companies in Thailand.

1998 Entered into a joint venture with D&B, a world leading information provider.

2003 The company converted its status to a public company.

2004 Listed on The “Market for Alternative Investment (mai)” The Stock Exchange of Thailand.
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2006 Established D&B (Thailand) Co.,Ltd. as a fully-owned subsidiary with the registered capital of 1 million Baht.
2008 + “Bai Pho Business Award” by Sasin 2008 Outstanding in “Value Creation” and “Customer Focus”
+ “200 Best Under A Billion” Award from Forbes Asia Magazine (September 2008 issue) conducted a survey on listed
companies in Asia Pacific region consisting of 24,155 companies. The purpose of this award was to give “200 Best
Under A Billion” Award to listed companies which had revenues of less than a billion US Dollars and had outstanding
performances.
* Inverted 20% of 150 million Baht registered capital with other partner to establish ABIKS Development Co.,Ltd.
2009 BOL was certified on the Information Security Management System (ISMS) in accordance with standards of
ISO/IEC 27001:2005 from Bureau Veritas Certification (Thailand) Co., Ltd. (BVQI). This is the best standard in the
Information Security Management System. This is one of the achievements which demonstrate our commitment to
professionally serve our customers with highest quality and efficiency.
2011 » D&B Worldwide Network Awards 2011 “Excellence in Information Quality” Award from D&B International.
« Established iBOL Co., Ltd. as a fully-owned subsidiary with the registered capital of 25 million Baht. (Increased the
registered capital to 25 million Baht)
2012 » BOL and DBD has reached an agreement to extend the Agreement for a period of 5 years (from 2016 — 2020). In
addition, both parties has signed a memorandum of understanding on the cooperation of business information service
having a term of 15 years (from 2021 — 2035)
» Be considered registered traders. The group hired a consultant, information technology and communications. Airports
of Thailand Public Company Limited (Thailand) (AOT) was approved on 16 August 2012.
» The net cash flow from operating performance, by 9 listed companies in the “mai stars” The dividend for five years
(2007 — 2011) which corporate-governance scores rated “Good”(3 STAR) or more benchmark.
« Built network infrastructure that connects the database of Department of Legal Execution, Ministry of Justice and National
Credit Bureau. The contract came into effect from 1 January 2012 to 31 December 2021
2013 With the collaboration with government, the new released project “Smart Province” is the executive information system
(EIS) that connects the information of all sectors to visualize satellite imagery in different dimensions on the map to set the
strategic planning of provinces or territory for the optimization outcome.
2014 « Invested in a 15% stake of Ecartstudio Company Limited
+ Begin cooperation with RMS Company Limited (Hong Kong) as trade debt collection representative in Thailand and 150
countries worldwide
» Receive BOI under category 5.8 Enterprise Software and Digital Content (certificate number 2423(7)/2556)
2015 BOL was certified on the Information Security Management System (ISMS) in the new version reviewed by ISO/IEC

27001:2005 to ISO/IEC27001:2013 of certification from Bureau Veritas Certification (Thailand) Co., Ltd. (BVQI). This is the

best standard in the Information Security Management System.
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RISK FACTORS

Risk factors are considered as factors which may have adverse effects on the company’s operation and performance. The factors not

being mentioned are considered to be insignificant or beyond the company’s anticipation.
1. Risks related to the security of BOL's database

Since the company is in the business of providing information, database are therefore the most crucial assets of the company. Any loss of
information or illegal break-in (hacking) to steal or destroy the database or any network problem will have detrimental impact on the

company’s operations and services.

Risk Mitigation

The company has therefore implemented a set of policies and procedures to protect database and to ensure network security. The company
also performs backing up all fles at the production site and back-up facility on a daily basis. Both facilities are equipped with high levels
of security. The company appoints a list of personnel who have access the database according to their authorization. The company also
implements a number of physical security systems such as access card to allow only authorized personnel to access to the specific area,

the installation of close-circuit television, and fingerprint scans to record personnel who access to the data center.

Moreover BOL'’s network system, hardware and software are maintained and updated to ensure that they function properly at all times.
Data Center staff are dedicated to monitor the status of the system. The company implemented firewall, an international standard network

security system to prevent system intrusion and the company has never experienced a security breach with its database.

In the year 2008, BOL implemented a system procedure to comply with 1ISO27001:2005 (Information Security Management System). We
have been certified with this international standard by Bureau Veritas Certification (Thailand) Co., Ltd. in June 2009 and such standards are
reviewed annually. At present, the company has adopted and is certificated in the new version, ISO/IEC27001:2013, which is reviewed

annually.
2. Risks on for Information Sources

Nowadays, the major sources of information supporting the company’s services is supplied Department of Business Development, Ministry
of Commerce; based on information received from the organization, BOL develops, analyses, and adds value so as to provide relevant
information services to customers. However, there are some risks associated to these information sources, such as quality of information

and the continuity of the support from the organization.

Risk Mitigation
The company is working closely with the organization by checking and correcting data errors which improve the quality of their information.
BOL also searches for other respectable sources i.e. by gathering data from interviews, researches and questionnaires, etc. BOL also

develops these information by turning them into a more in-depth analysis.
3. Competition risk

In the current information age, an information service available on the internet is expanding in an unprecedented speed. There is always a

possibility for new entrants to the market.
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Risk Mitigation

The company always emphasizes on value perceived by customers. With 20 years experience in a business that provides business
information, the company continuously researches and develops its database. In the meantime, the company also concentrates on human
resource development by having staff exposed to new technology trend from joining local and international events. The incremental
knowledge is used to enhance the company’s strategies to create value to the service that best fit to user’s requirements. Moreover, we
have received support from our business alliances who mostly are global leaders in the business information industry through constant

collaborations in order to improve our company’s business in the future.

4. Risks from major shareholders pursuing their own interests

BOL’s major shareholders are Mr. Min Intanate and Keppel Communications Pte. Ltd., with a combined 52.57% of BOL total paid-up capital
(including ARG, in which Mr. Min Intanate and Keppel Group are major shareholders). The major shareholders are able to control
resolutions of shareholders’ meetings regarding issues which require at least 50% of the total number of shareholders who attend the

meeting and have the right to vote.

Risk Mitigation
The company has appointed independent directors which make up 40% of the Board of Directors to promote transparency. Furthermore,

the company has also allowed common stock holders to suggest the names of directors and set the agenda in the annual general meeting.

5. The company depends on its management and senior employees. Unable to retain them could adversely affect the company’s

performance.

Most of management and senior employees have been with the company for long period. Their skills and experience are very specialized
and critical to the company’s success. If the company is unable to retain them and has no proper succession plan, it may create negative

impact on business and financial performance.

Risk Mitigation

The company regards employee retention as its priority. One of the significant factors for company’s sustainable success is maintaining
skilled and experienced personnel in management, sales, marketing and production. Furthermore, BOL consistently trains its human
resources to assure that they could provide effective product development and selling. ESOP for senior employees’ scheme is used to

encourage them to work with the company in long-term and binding their interest to company’s performance.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk management is an important tool to ensure that the external and internal risks affecting the company’s goals will be addressed and
mitigated for the effective and efficient operations. The risk management, in addition to being comprehensive and company-wide, also
focuses on control activities and monitors to ensure that the risk management is appropriate and can be adopted throughout the
organization with oversight by the accountable management team. The information and communication of the risks is also available to
everyone in the organization to enhance the responsiveness in handling the risks effectively. The risk management policy is developed

based on the Good Corporate Governance practice.
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The types of risks with direct impact to business operation can be classified into 4 categories as follows:

1. Operational risk
Operational risk is a risk resulting from operations, including IT equipment and operation staffs, which may affect the operation of the
firm. To address the risk, the company has set up a clear procedure and operating manual, including supervision of each business

units that might consistently cause damage to the company, to ensure that the operations are properly executed.

21T risk
IT risk is a risk that could be present to any organization today. Within IT Risk, the key risks are Information Access Risk, Business
Continuity Risk, Infrastructure Risk, and Availability Risk. Information Access Risk is the risk which employees have unauthorized
access or access beyond the responsible areas in the system. Business Continuity Risk is the risk which the disruption in technology
affects the firms’ operations and business continuity. Technology infrastructure Risk is the risk which may occur when the purchase
of IT equipment does not fit the nature of the firm’s business and IT application. Availability Risk is the risk which occur when
employees or management could not access the information under his/her responsibility. To address the risks above, the company
has setup the system and structure to manage the IT system to prevent unauthorized access to customers’ information, created

backup data, developed business continuity plan around IT, and managed IT resources as appropriate to the business.

3. Industry risk
Industry risk is unique risk which is present only in the firm’s business sector because of the particular business information derived
from government. The risk may occur from unforeseeable events, such as the uncertainty of or change in regulation concerning rule
on the receipt of information and the lack of support from government office. These uncertainties and changes may lead to risk events
affecting the firm’s success. To address the risk, the company has been working closely with related government agencies, planning
for alternative sources of information, and building necessary alliances. The company also strives to offer the information with

analysis and applied services in addition to delivering generic information.

4. Financial risk
Financial risk is the risk resulting from financial unpreparedness, default of debts, reimbursement mistakes, liquidity, interest rate,
foreign exchange, and the risk factors affecting the operations and financial position of the company. To address the risk, the
company has considered the funding arrangement to ensure adequate and timely funding and has analyzed the firm’s debtors’
financial situation to mitigate the risks that could affect the firm’s investment. The company also conducted a feasibility study of the
applicable of foreign exchange rate risks control system. The Risk Management above must be conducted continuously and
systematically with further developments to integrate the practice into the company’s culture through the engagement of everyone in
the organization. This must be communicated to everyone in the organization and reviewed regularly to ensure the Risk Management

is current and appropriate in today’s business context.
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SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE

Top Ten major shareholders as of 30 December 2015 include :

\[o} Shareholder No. of shares % of shareholding

1 Advanced Research Group Co.,Ltd. 167,508,000 21.10
2 Keppel Communications Pte LTD. 164,224,000 20.68
3 Wissunu Sakulphichetrat 97,721,300 12.31
4 Dun & Bradstreet International, LTD. 71,250,000 8.97
5 Mr. Min Intanate 55,210,000 6.95
6 Bangkok Bank Public Company Limited 32,845,000 414
7 Pan Pacific Consultant Co.,Ltd. 30,484,000 3.84
8 Mrs. Parinya Khancharoensuk 22,300,000 2.81
9 CITIBANK NOMINEES SINGAPORE PTE LTD-UBS AG 15,428,800 1.94
LDN BRANCH A/C CLIENT NRBS
10 Thai NVDR Co., Ltd. 14,432,500 1.82
" Other Shareholders 122,589,650 15.44

Dividend Policy
The company'’s dividend policy is to pay dividend not less than 50 percent of consolidated net profit after tax. However, the payout ratio
may be lower if the company plans to expand its operations. The dividend payment shall not exceed the retained earnings in the company’s

financial statements.

Business Structure

Business Online
Public Company Limited

D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd. ABIKS Development Co., Ltd.

Shareholding 99.99% Shareholding 20%

National Credit Bureau Co., Ltd. Ecartstudio Co., Ltd.
Shareholding 12.25% Shareholding 15%
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MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE

As of 31 December 2015

Board of Directors

Nomination and

Remuneration Committee el EEmI R

Executive Committee Internal Audit & Compliance

Chief Executive Officer

Company Secretary

Sales, Marketing & Operations & Svstem Accounting, Finance
I
Business Development . 4 & HRA

D&B Business

Board of Directors

\[o} Name Position

1 Mr. Noravat Suwarn Chairman of the Board
2 Mr. Min Intanate Director

3 Mr. Prayoon Rattanachaiyanont Director

4 Ms. Chamaiporn Apikulvanich Director

5 Mr. Wilson Teo Yong Peng Director

6 Mr. Chaiyaporn Kiatnuntavimon Director

7 Mr. Anant Tangtatswas Independent Director
8 Ms. Manida Zinmerman Independent Director
9 Ms. Suteera Sripaibulya Independent Director
10 Asst.Prof. Karndee Leopairote Independent Director

Company Secretary

Ms. Srisunun Anuchornphan (Appointed by the Board of Directors on August 14, 2015)

The Authorised Directors

The authorised directors are Mr.Noravat Suwarn, Mr.Min Intanate, Ms.Chamaiporn Apikulvanich, and Mr.Prayoon Rattanachaiyanont. Any

two signatures of the four directors with the company’s seal shall bind the company.
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Director Meeting Attendance for the year 2015

. Total Meeting Director Meeting Attendance
\[o} Director name

(times) (times)

5
5
5
5
5
2
5
5
5
5

N

Mr. Noravat Suwarn

Mr.Min Intanate

Mr.Prayoon Rattanachaiyanont
Ms. Chamaiporn Apikulvanich
Mr. Wilson Teo Yong Peng

Mr. Chaiyaporn Kiatnuntavimon'”
Mr. Anant Tangtatswas

Ms. Manida Zinmerman

© ©® N O g b~ W N

Ms. Suteera Sripaibulya

W o w N B~ O aa a O,

-
o

Asst.Prof. Karndee Leopairote

UMr. Chaiyaporn Kiatnuntavimon was appointed by the Board of Directors on August 14, 2015

Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors shall honestly and prudently perform their duties in accordance with the laws of Thailand, the objectives of the

company as contained in the Articles of Association of the company, and minutes of shareholders’ meetings, all with the aim to protect the

interests of the company. A summary of the duties are as follows:

1.

The Board of Directors shall hold an annual general shareholders’ meeting within four months after the last day of each fiscal year.

The Board of Directors shall hold a meeting at least once every three months.

The Board of Directors shall prepare the statement of financial position and statement of comprehensive income as at the last date of

the fiscal year for reporting to the shareholders in Annual General Meeting for their consideration and approval.

As deem appropriate, the Board of Directors may designate any director(s) or any person as their proxy to act on behalf of the Board
on specific issues for a period of time under the Board supervision. The Board may change, amend or cancel the proxy whenever it

deems appropriate.

The Board of Directors may assign their proxy to Executive Committee to perform certain activities. However, the proxy shall limit the
authorized person(s) not to make decision on any transaction that may have any conflict of interest with the company or its subsidiaries,

except for the transactions which are already or under guidelines approved by the Board.

The Board of Directors shall determine the company’s target, policy, business plan and budget and supervise the management of the
Executive Committee to ensure that they are in line with the company’s policy, with an exception for the following matters which require
the approval of shareholders: a capital increase, capital reduction, debenture issuance, disposal or transfer of the business or a
significant part of there to other parties, the purchase or transfer of other businesses, and an amendment of Memorandum of

Association or Articles of Association.

The Board of Directors shall ensure the company complies with regulations of the SEC and SET, i.e. connected transactions, the

disposal or acquisition of assets, etc.

The Board of Directors shall determine the management structure, appoint of the Executive Committee, Chief Executive Officer, and

members of other Committees.
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7. The Board of Directors shall monitor the company’s performance in comparison to the business plan and budget.

8. Director(s) shall not engage in any business which is similar or in competition with the business of the company or become a partner
in an ordinary partnership or become a director of a private company or any other company operating a business which is similar or in
competition with the business of the company, unless he or she notifies the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting prior to the

resolution of his or her appointment.

9. A director shall notify the company without delay if there is a conflict of interest, whether directly or indirectly interest in any contract
which is made by the company; or holds shares or debentures of the company or an affliated company, and shall indicate any increase

or decrease in the number of the director’s total number of shares.

Executive Committee

Position

1 Mr. Min Intanate Executive Chairman

2 Ms. Chamaiporn Apikulvanich Chief Executive Officer

3 Mr. Chaiyaporn Kiatnuntavimon Chief Operating Officer

4 Ms. Kanyapan Buranarom Chief Financial Officer

5 Ms. Intira Inturattana'” Assistant General Manager; Product & Service Development

(' Ms. Intira Inturattana was appointed on March 1 2015

Duties and Responsibilities of the Executive Committee

The duties of the Executive Committee are to manage the company according to strategies and policies set by the Board including the
determination of policy, business plan, budget, management structure and overall management of the company. The Executive Committee
is to report the plan to the Board for its consideration and/or approval and also monitor the company’s performance in accordance with the

policies. The Executive Committee’s duties are summarized as following:

1. Prepare and propose annual budget to the Board of Directors. In urgent case, the Executive Committee shall consider and approve
any changes of annual budget and shall report to the Board in the next Board meeting.

2. Approve the expenditures under the authority of the company (Level of Authorization) that have been approved by the Board of
Directors.

3. Approve major investment as contained in the annual budget that are assigned or approved by the Board of Directors.

Provide advice to management in respect of financial, marketing, human resource management, and others.

The Executive Committee has the authority to make decisions relating to any normal business transaction of the company, which do not
include approval of transactions which may cause a conflict of interest with the company or its subsidiary (if any) according to the SET's
regulations. The Executive Committee is required to obtain approval from the Board or Shareholders for connected transactions in
accordance with the company’s Articles of Association or relevant laws, except for normal business transactions already covered by

existing guidelines approved by the Board.
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THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors of Business Online Public Company Limited approved the appointment of an Audit Committee on 24 October 2003.
The Audit Committee consists of Directors with qualifications specified by Securities and Exchange Act. The Audit Committee currently

consists of four (4) Independent Directors, at least one of whom shall possess qualifications in accounting and finance.

Other positions

1 Mr. Anant Tangtatswas(1) Chairman of Audit Committee « Independent Director
« Chairman of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee
2 Ms. Manida Zinmerman Audit Committee « Independent Director
» Nomination and Remuneration Committee
8 Ms. Suteera Sripaibulya Audit Committee « Independent Director
» Nomination and Remuneration Committee
4 Asst.Prof. Karndee Leopairote Audit Committee « Independent Director

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Audit Committee who with qualifications in finance and accounting

The Audit Committee’s secretary

Ms. Tida Limthongvirat Senior Internal Audit Manager

Duties and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee

1. To review the company'’s financial reporting process to ensure that it is accurate and adequate;

2. Toreview the company'’s internal control system and internal audit system to ensure that they are suitable and efficient, to determine an
internal audit unit's independence, as well as to approve the appointment, transfer and dismissal of the chief of internal audit unit or any

other unit in charge of an internal audit;

3. To review the company’s compliance with the Securities and Exchange Act, the Exchange’s regulations, and the laws relating to the

company’s business;

4. To consider, select, nominate, reselect, and lay off an independent person to be the company’s auditor, and to propose such person’s

remuneration, as well as to attend a non-management meeting with an auditor at least once a year;

5. To review the connected transactions, or the transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests, to ensure that they are in compliance

with the Securities and Exchange Act, and are reasonable and for the highest benefit of the company;

6. To prepare, and to disclose in the company’s annual report, an Audit Committee’s report that must be signed by the Audit Committee’s
Chairman and contain of at least the following information:
» An opinion on the accuracy, completeness and creditability of the company’s financial report,
« An opinion on the adequacy of the company’s internal control system,
» An opinion on the compliance with the Securities and Exchange Act, the Exchange’s regulations, or the laws relating to the
company’s business,
» An opinion on the suitability of an auditor,
» An opinion on the transactions that may lead to conflicts of interests,
» The number of the Audit Committee meetings, and the attendance of such meetings by each committee member,

» An opinion or overview comment received by the Audit Committee from its performance of duties in accordance with the charter, and
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« Other transactions which, according to the Audit Committee’s opinion, should be known to the shareholders and general investors,

subject to the scope of duties and responsibilities assigned by the Board of Directors.

7. To perform any other acts as assigned by the Board of Directors, with the approval of the Audit Committee. In the case that the Audit
Committee’s duties are changed, the company shall report on a resolution to change their duties, and shall prepare a list and scope of
work of the Audit Committee according to such change in the form as prescribed by the Stock Exchange of Thailand (SET). Such list
and scope of work must be submitted to the SET within 3 (three) business days from the date on which the change is made in

accordance with the procedures under the SET’s regulations relating to reporting via an electronic media.

Audit Committee Meeting Attendance for the year 2015

1

Mr. Anant Tangtatswas

Ms. Manida Zinmerman

e
W AN A

2
3 Ms. Suteera Sripaibulya
4

Asst.Prof. Karndee Leopairote

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Under the resolution of the Board of Directors of BOL on 13th November, 2014, the company’s Nomination and Remuneration Committee

is set up by appointing a group of qualified directors which consists of 4 directors as follow;

Name Other positions

1 Mr. Anant Tangtatswas « Chairman of the Nomination and + Independent Director
Remuneration Committee + Chairman of Audit Committee

2 Ms. Manida Zinmerman « Member of the Nomination and « Independent Director
Remuneration Committee * Audit Committee

] Ms. Suteera Sripaibulya * Member of the Nomination and + Independent Director
Remuneration Committee * Audit Committee

4 Asst.Prof.Karndee Leopairote * Member of the Nomination and + Independent Director

Remuneration Committee Audit Committee
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee’s secretary

Ms. Tida Limthongvirat Senior Internal Audit Manager

Duties and responsibilities of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

The committee is to nominate and consider remuneration as assigned by the Board of Directors. The committee’s duty and responsibilities

are:

1. Nomination
1.1 Setting guidelines and policies in nominating Board of Directors and other sub-committee members by considering what would
be the appropriate number, structure and composition of members, and outlining necessary directors’ qualifications, and
proposing these ideas for approval by the Board of Directors and/or Shareholders’ Meeting as appropriate.
1.2 Nominating and proposing appropriate persons to assume the position of the Board of Directors whose terms have expired

and/or became vacant, including newly appointed director.
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1.3 Executing other tasks related to nominations as assigned by the Board of Directors.

2. Remuneration
2.1 Preparing guidelines and policies in determining the Board of Directors and other sub-committees’ remuneration, and proposing it
to the Board of Directors and/or Shareholders’ Meeting for approval as appropriate.
2.2 Determining necessary and appropriate monetary and non-monetary remuneration, for individual members of the Board of
Directors by taking into consideration each director’s duties and responsibilities and performance. The report will be submitted to
the Board of Directors for consent and to the Shareholders’ Meeting for approval.

2.3 Being responsible for any other tasks related to the remuneration as assigned by the Board of Directors.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee Attendance for the year 2015

Total Meeting NRC Meeting Attendance
\[o} Name . .
(times) (times)
1 Mr. Anant Tangtatswas 2 2
2 Ms. Manida Zinmerman 2 1
&) Ms. Suteera Sripaibulya 2 2
4 Asst.Prof. Karndee Leopairote 2 2

The definition of “Independent Director”

The company has defined the “Independent Director” in accordance with the requirement set by the SEC and SET, as follows:

An Independent Director is a director who independently provides opinions to the Board of Directors, as follows:

Holds shares but not exceed 1 percent of the company paid-up capital.
Does not take part in the management of the company, or its subsidiaries.
Is independent from the management and shareholders who have the authority in the company.

Is not a related person or close relative of any management member or majority shareholder of the company or the authority person.

o M 0 bh

Does not have any significant business relation with the company which may refrain from providing or expressing his/her independent
opinions.
6. Is notanemployee, staff member or advisor who receives a regular salary from the company during the 1 year period before becoming

an independent director.
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Remuneration for Directors and Management

Director's Remuneration

Monetary Remuneration (Baht)

Position
Year 2015 Year 2014

1 Mr. Noravat Suwarn Chairman of the Board 4,304,300.00 4,279,600.00

2 Mr. Prayoon Rattanachaiyanont Director 470,600.00 370,000.00

3 Mr. Teoh Khiam Boon " Director 40,000.00 260,000.00

4 Mr. Wilson Teo Yong Peng Director 225,600.00 125,000.00

) Mr. Anant Tangtatswas Independent Director Chairman of Audit Committee 1,039,000.00 1,012,000.00
Chairman of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

6 Ms. Manida Zinmerman Independent Director 605,000.00 595,000.00

Member of Audit Committee
Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

7 Ms. Suteera Sripaibulya Independent Director 615,000.00 605,000.00
Member of Audit Committee
Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

8 Asst.Prof. Karndee Leopairote Independent Director 600,000.00 610,000.00
Member of Audit Committee

Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

(1) Mr. Teoh Khiam Boon had resigned from his position as director effective on February 28, 2015.

Criteria and procedures for director’s remuneration

Nomination and Remuneration Committee had considered the duties of Board of Directors and the responsibilities including type, how to
pay and the amount of remuneration in compliance of the responsibilities, the intention of Board of Directors, type and size of business,
commercial market and the competitors. The remuneration must be appropriate in order to retain the quality directors within the Company.

Type of the remuneration is monthly retainer, meeting allowance, and other benefits.

However, the criteria of remuneration of top management had been considered by Executive Chairman and the company’s performance
including compliance with the responsibilities of top management.
Remarks: The meeting allowance of year 2015.

- The Board of Director meeting allowance amount 5,000 Baht per attendance.

- The Nomination and Remuneration Committee meeting allowance amount 5,000 Baht per attendance.

- None of other benefits.
Executive Committee’s Remuneration

The overall remuneration for Executive Committee and the Directors who involve with management will be received in forms of salaries

and bonus.

Year 2015 Year 2014

Total 5 persons Total 5 persons
Total amount 14,208,029.62 Baht Total amount 15,070,615.53 Baht
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Other Remuneration

The company contributes to the provident fund for the management.

Year 2015 Year 2014

Total 5 persons Total 4 persons
Total amount 461,875.00 Baht Total amount 383,805.00 Baht

In the year 2015 Directors, Executives and Employees exercised ESOP warrant as detail below:

| eww
Directors, Executives 2,375,000 827,000
Employees 17 3,021,375 6 269,875
Total 26 5,396,375 10 1,096,875

The detail of ESOP warrants:

Numbers of Warrants under ESOP warrants 38,500,000 units

Number of Ordinary Shares in reserve for the ESOP warrants 38,500,000 share

Date of issuance and offering 19 May 2014

Exercise ratio 1 warrant : 1 ordinary share
Exercise price 1.75 Baht per share

Term 4 years from the warrant issuing date
Balance of the total ESOP warrants 32,006,750 units

Total capital increase for the year 2015 649,325.00 Baht

Paid-up Registered Capital for the year 2015 79,399,325.00 Baht

Registered Capital 82,600,000.00 Baht

Remaining Register Capital 3,200,675.00 Baht
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ORPORATE GOVERNANCE POLICY

The company sees the importance of good governance and has put appropriate monitoring process in place while instilling the value of

business ethics in dealing with our customers, partners, competitors, members of the public and our staffs.

We

believe that good corporate governance policy, which consists of competent management, qualified and accountable directors,

mechanism of checks and balances for transparency and auditable operations, respect for the rights of all shareholders, and equitable

treatment for all stakeholders are the key factors in maximizing the economic value of the company and increasing the sustainable long-

term return on investment to our shareholders.

The Board of Directors aims to manage the company by using the corporate governance policies in order to operate the company with

efficiency while achieving the company’s objectives. The corporate governance policies can be divided into 5 categories as follow:

[
I
1.
IV.
V.

Rights of Shareholders

Equitable Treatment of Shareholders

The Roles of Company Regarding Stakeholders
Disclosure of Information and Transparency

Responsibilities of Board of Directors

I. Rights of Shareholders

Shareholders including institutional investors are the owners of the company. They control the company through the appointment of the
Board of Directors to serve their interests in making significant decisions for the company. Therefore the company should encourage

shareholders to exercise their rights.

Fundamental rights of shareholders including institutional investors:

- Trade or transfer shares, receive share certificates, and have the rights to access, obtain relevant and adequate information,
operational results, and management policies in the timely manner and on a regular basis.

- Have the rights to receive dividends.

- Participate and vote in the shareholder meetings to elect or remove members of the Board, appoint the external auditors, including
all of remunerations and make decisions on any transactions that affect the company such as dividends payment, making
amendments to the memorandum of association, capital increases or decreases, and the approval of extraordinary transactions, etc.

- Shareholders including institutional investors should be fully informed of the criteria and procedures governing shareholders
meetings that include sufficient information regarding the issues to be decided in each agenda. This should be provided in advance
of the meeting. Shareholders should be able to query directors both in the meeting and by sending their questions in beforehand.
They should also be allowed to propose an agenda and vote by proxy.

- The Board of Directors must recognize shareholders rights and avoid any actions that violate those rights.

- The company had invited legal advisor to be the inspector for counting process

The company sent out the notification of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders to all shareholders and all regulatory institutions.
It contains the date, time, venue and details of the agenda with precise and sufficient facts and reasons as well as clear and adequate
comments provided by the Board of Directors and relevant Committees. Also enclosed were the registration process and list of
documents required to present to officers prior to attending the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, both in person and by proxy.
Furthermore, the company also provided duty stamp service. In this respect, the company set non-complicated conditions for proxy
appointment. In this regard, the company neither added any agenda nor changed any significant information without prior notice to the

shareholders.

Chairman of the Board shall attend the meeting to answer shareholders’ queries or appoint other directors or managers to elaborate on

the answers in greater detail.
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5.

6.

Subsequent to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, the summary of meeting and voting results of each agenda would be
proposed to the Chairman of the Board and all members of the Audit Committee for review of the correctness and completeness. The
company expressed gratitude to all shareholders for exercising their rights and entrusting the company’s directors with their proxies.
The Annual General Meeting of Shareholders on an accurate and complete basis was submitted on https://www.BOL.co.th within 14

days of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders date.

The company has a dividend policy to all shareholders as shareholder’s rights and the equal treatment.

Shareholder Voting Rights for the Selection of Directors

The Board of Directors shall be appointed by shareholders in Annual General Meeting according to the following procedures:

1.

Each shareholder shall have one vote per one share.

Each shareholder shall cast his/her vote for one or more candidates for Board membership but shall not divide his/her voting rights

amongst more than one candidate.

The persons receiving the highest number of votes in respective order shall be appointed as Directors. In the event that a number of
persons receive an equal number of votes for the last directorship, resulting in the number of Directors being more than is required at

such time, the Chairman of the meeting shall have the deciding vote.

. Equitable Treatment of Shareholders

. The company encourages shareholders to exercise their legal rights, such as rights to receive their share of profits in the form

dividends, rights to freely transfer the company’s stock, rights to access the company’s news and information, rights to attend and vote

in the shareholders’ meetings under the policy relating to the equitable and fair treatment to shareholders.

Shareholders shall receive necessary information from the company that is sufficient, fair and timely, and the company shall not display

bias towards any one group of shareholders by providing them with information that have not been disclosed.

In the shareholders’ meetings, the shareholders shall be treated with fairness.

. The notification of the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders was issued both in Thai and English, dispatched together with the

annual report in 14 days prior to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders date and published on the company’s website more than
30 days prior to the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders date. The company respects the right of all shareholders equally and

responsible for taking care of shareholder’s interest by complying with laws and regulations.

. The company encourages all shareholders and institutional shareholders who cannot vote in person to vote by proxy. The company

has provided proxy forms to be used as appropriate for shareholders. In order to facilitate the proxy, the company has provided an

independent director to act on behalf for shareholders.

The company arranged to provide 3 types of Proxy Form, similar to those set by the Department of Business Development, Ministry of
Commerce, for shareholders. In addition, the company explained in detail how a shareholder can assign his/her rights as a shareholder

to a proxy in writing, as an attachment to the letter of meeting invitation.

. The company uses voting cards for all agenda items in the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. In addition, for accurate and

timely report, the company uses technology of barcode system and electronic PDAs for registration and vote-counting.
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7.

The company has mechanisms to prevent insider trading in order to protect fraud and the leak of information.

The company shall comply with the law on securities and exchanges, regulations, announcements and notifications issued by the SEC
as well as requirements on the disclosure of related party transactions, acquisition or disposition of important assets of the company or
its subsidiaries. The company shall consider the conflict of interest issue with care, fair and transparent. The disclosure of information
is with completeness. Moreover, the company has taken measures to prevent wrongful use of inside information (Insider Trading) of
individuals involved, such as Directors, executives and employees as well as their spouses and immature children. The company also
imposes penalties on disclosing of company’s information or using the information for personal benefit according to Anti Insider Trading
Policy. Also Board of Directors informs the directors and top managements to notify Company Secretary (Appointed by Board of

Directors) at least one day before trading the securities.

The Roles of Company Regarding Stakeholders

. The Board of Directors must be aware of the rights of stakeholders as stipulated by law, and should support cooperation between the

company and stakeholders in the creation of prosperity, employment and activities with a sustainable financial status. The Board of

Directors shall be sure that the rights of stakeholders are being protected and practiced.

. The Board of Directors must take into account the benefits received and given by stakeholders in generating competitiveness and

profits for the company.

Caring deeply about the community and the environment, the company encourages employees and customers to be concerned about
environment protection through a “rethink, reduce, recycle” lifestyle. The company continuously operates projects and activities with

strategies to conserve energy, reduce waste, save the wildlife and the environment and increase participation in the local communities.

. The company recognizes the rights of all parties, and issue policies concerning the stakeholders right to reassure the shareholders,

employees, customers, business partners, creditors, competitors, including public and society they are suitably benefited from the
company’s operations and must encourage the collaboration of these parties to ensure a stable future of the company this is fair for all
the parties concerned.
4.1 Shareholders
The company determines to be a good representative of shareholders in carrying out the business in order to maximize shareholder
satisfaction with regards to sustainable long term growth while disclosing transparent and reliable information.
4.2 Employees
All members of staff are valuable assets and a critical factor for success, so the company must place emphasis on developing and
promoting a good culture and working atmosphere, teamwork, courtesy, and respect for individuality. The employment, promotion
and transfer of all staff members shall be conducted in a fair manner based on ethical standards whilst maximizing human resource
utilization along with to support staff for knowledge development, potential, career development. The company is responsible for
implementing and maintaining a safe working environment to protect the lives and property of all of our employees, no disaster or
stop working statistics. The company must also strictly adhere to employment law.
4.3 Customers
Customer satisfaction and consumer confidence are very important to the company. The company aims to provide high quality goods
and services at reasonable prices, and maintain good relationships with our customers. The company has thus determined the
following guidelines:
4.3.1 Products and Services
The company shall provide high quality products and services, while continuously improving their standards. Meanwhile, we aim

to disclose all of the information that is related to the products with integrity.
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4.3.2. Confidentiality of Customers’ Information
Directors, management, and staff members at all levels shall not disclose any information on customers without prior permission
from those customers or authorized personnel of any company in the Group. The only exception to this is information requested
by law enforcement officers in accordance with the law. In addition, the company recognizes the importance of keeping
customers’ information confidential, systematic, safety and prevents wrongful use of information.

4.3.3 Suggestions
The company provided the business unit continuously seek customer feedback through various channels including customer
satisfactions surveys, analysis of comments and market surveys.

4.4 Business Partners and Creditors

The company’s dealings with any business partner shall be conducted in a manner that upholds the reputation of the company and all

relevant laws. The company does not support partners with unethical business practices, illegal actions, corruption, intellectual

property or human rights violations. All company personnel must be aware of the common interests of the company’s business

partners and treat them equitably. The company determines clear policy and guidelines for business partners selection with fairness.

The company shall also consider its business partners to be the key factor in jointly creating a value chain for customers.

Treatment of Creditors, the company is committed to conducting business with the principles and discipline to establish a trust for the
creditors. The company adhere to the contract or the terms of the agreed requirements. In case of non-compliance with the conditions
agreed to. The company will notify the creditors in order to jointly find solutions.

4.5 Competitors
The company has a policy of free and fair competition and will not try to monopolize the industry. The company will not force its
business partners to distribute only the company’s products. The company shall not acquire information on its competitors by any
illegal or unethical methods.

4.6 Responsibility to Society and the Environment
The company is aware that it is a Thai company and has a responsibility to Thailand and Thai society. The company is committed to
making a contribution to society by supporting activities of public interest and cooperating with the communities in which those

activities are located under the company’s CSR policy.

The company supports whistle blower by encouraging all shareholders to request information, complain or report any misconducts
relating to financial reports, internal control system, human rights or business ethics by sending an e-mail to independent directors or the

Audit Committee through e-mail: BOLwhistleblowing@bol.co.th posted on the company’s website.

The company has anti-corruption policy and do not pay bribes to the business interests of the company including risk assessment,

guidelines on the supervision and control to prevent, monitor, and evaluate the risk of anti-corruption.

. Disclosure of Information and Transparency

. The company encourages disclosure of information with correctness, completeness, transparency and financial information/reports,

operational results, and other related information in a timely manner, in order for investors and all relevant parties to use these information
when making decisions to trade via distribution channels and media of SET (Stock Exchange of Thailand) and Security and Exchange
Commission which may include websites of companies, annual report, annual information report (56-1), and e-mail: ir@bol.co.th, investor
relations function to publicize the information to shareholders and investors that provide security trading services while providing

information in Thai and English.

. The company provides a summary of the Corporate Governance Policy approved by its Board of Directors through various channels

such as the annual report and website.
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3. The company provides a statement of the Board’s responsibilities concerning the company’s financial report. This statement is
presented alongside the auditor’s report in the company’s the Financial Statements (56-1) and annual report (56-2). The company
submitted the financial statements within the submission deadline and no corrections were required for these financial statements by

the Office of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

4. The company discloses the list of the Board of Independent Directors, Roles, Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and
Audit Committees, Remuneration, the Number of Total Meeting Attendant, the Number of Director Meeting Attendance in previous year,

Directors’ History in the Annual Registration Statement (Form 56-1) and the Annual Report (Form 56-2).

5. The company provides the Investor Relations Department with the key mandate of managing investor relations-related duties and
activities, in particular, the disclosure of both financial and non-financial information under the governing disclosure and transparency
policy. This information includes comparative financial performance and status, current operations, ability to compete in the industry

and future plans and policies.

6. The company discloses the information of Directors and Executives’ shareholding and interest transaction in the Board of Directors’

Meeting quarterly to report the company’s stock trading transaction of Directors and Executives.

7. The company discloses the information of shareholder structure and Directors and Executives’ shareholding.

8. The company has hired an auditor who is independent and qualified to be recognized as an auditor. By auditors such as auditors have

been approved by the SEC. and revealed the other audit fee that paid to the auditor.

V. Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

1. Structure of the Board

1.1 The company’s Board of Directors comprises of 10 directors who specialize in various aspects of business. The Board of Directors’
structure is as follows:

- Three Executive Directors who represent 30% of the Board.

- Seven non-Executive Directors who represent 70% or more than three-fourth of the entire Board. This composition represents a
good balance in monitoring management’s decisions. There are four independent directors which represent 40% of the Board
(over one-third) who meet the qualifications under the Stock Exchange of Thailand and Securities and Exchange Commission’
regulations.

1.2 The Board of Directors has a policy which states that Chairman and Managing Director must not be the same person in order to
separate their responsibilities between policy setting, supervision and management of operation and in order to check and
balance each other.

1.3 The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will consider the qualifications of candidates through transparent and pre-
selection procedures and propose to the Board. The candidates selected by the Board will be included in the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders agenda for shareholders’ approval. All directors’ information including experience, qualifications, history
and shareholding in the company will disclosed in the annual report, which is disclosed on the company’s website.

1.4 Directors can take a position as director of listed companies for maximum of five. In addition, the role shall not impede the duties
of director and have no conflict of interest.

1.5 At every annual general meeting of shareholders, one-third of the directors shall retire. If one-third is not a round number, the
number closet thereto shall be the applicable number. The directors to vacate office within the first and second year following
company registration shall draw lots. In subsequent years, the directors serving the longest shall resign. The directors who vacate

office are eligible for re-election by shareholders.
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1.6 The Board of Directors shall consider qualifications for Independent Director basing on qualifications and prohibitions according to the
Public Limited Companies Act, Securities and Stock Exchange Laws, Notifications of SEC and/or related rules and regulations.
(According to page 123)

1.7 The Board of Directors has assigned Corporate Secretary (appointed on August 8, 2008) to be in charge of the following
responsibilities;

1.7.1  Stipulate that the Board of Directors shall comply with the Code of Best Practices for directors of listed company under the
guidelines of SET. The Board must understand and be aware of their roles and responsibilities as well as carry out their
assignment in accordance with law, objectives, regulations of the company

1.7.2  Advise the rules and regulations related to the directors’ duties and responsibilities

1.7.3 Prepare and file Board and shareholders’ documents which are the directors’ registration records, notices of Board and
shareholders’ meetings, minutes of Board and shareholders’ meetings, and the company’s annual report quarterly
financial reports

1.7.4  Hold the Shareholders’ meeting and the Board of Directors’ meeting in accordance with law, regulations of the company and
the Code of Best Practices

1.7.5 Record the Shareholders’ meeting and the Board of Directors’ meeting and disclose the essence of the meeting resolutions

1.7.6  Provide and store directors’ registration, the annual report, the notice of Shareholders’ meeting, the notice of the Board of
Directors’ meeting, the Shareholders’ meeting report and the Board of Directors’ meeting report

1.7.7  Disclose the information of the conflict of interest issue with care, fairness, and transparency with completeness. The Directors
and Executives including their related person have to report their possible related transaction according to the form of
reporting

1.7.8  File reports on the conflict of interest of directors and management

1.7.9 Disclose information includes agenda and important details for shareholders, investors and public with the laws and
regulations

1.7.10 Communicate to shareholders for right of all shareholders equally and responsible for taking care of shareholders’ interest.
Shareholder has rights to make decision on important policies and has rights to access information accurately and
adequately

1.7.11 Administer other activities as directed

1.7.12 Monitor and evaluate performance of the management and operation teams, report progress of the management and
operation to the Board of Directors on regular basis

1.7.13 Coordinate between the Board of Directors and Executives.

2. Sub - Committee
The company arranged to set up a sub-committee, which is the Audit Committee to assist the Board in monitoring the work of each director.
2.1 Audit Committee
The Audit Committee is a part of the Board of Directors. Besides, the Audit Committee who has been appointed by Board of
Director and shareholders consists of 3 persons, one of whom must possess qualifications in accounting and finance (as of 31
December 2015, the company consists of 4 persons). Their qualifications comply with the regulations of the Stock Exchange of
Thailand with regards to independence. There must be a chief of Internal Audit Department who will also act as a secretary to the
Audit Committee. The Audit Committee has the following duties and authorities.
2.1.1  Qualifications of Audit Committee members
2.1.1.1  Any Audit Committee member and his or her related person shall hold not over 1 percent of the paid-up capital of
the company, companies within the group, partner companies and related companies.
2.1.1.2 Audit committee shall be directly and indirectly independent from the company’s financial operations and
management. This extends to companies within the same group and its subsidiaries. The committee shall not
hold such interests for the period of 1 year prior to their appointment with the exception that the Board of Directors

has decided that such interests do not affect the committee’s independent views.
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2.1.1.3 Audit Committee members shall not be appointed to act as representatives to take care of interests of major
shareholders or others related to the major shareholders.

2.1.1.4 Audit committee members shall not be involved in the company administration, and shall not be employees, staff
or consultants who receive a regular monthly salary from the company, companies in a group, partner companies,
related companies or the company’s major shareholders.

2.1.1.5 Audit committee members shall not be involved with, or the close relatives of, the company’s executives or major
shareholders.

2.1.1.6 Audit Committee members must be able to provide comments or assessment of the work delegated by the
company’s Board of Directors, without being under control of the executives or major shareholders of the
company, including their relatives.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Audit Committee (According to page 121)

Duration of Office

Members of the Audit Committee shall remain in office for two years, including additional appointments and withdrawals from

the Audit Committee. Members of the Audit Committee whose term in office has expired may be re-appointed. Resignation

from the Audit Committee, member(s) of the audit committee shall submit his (her) letter of resignation to the Chairman of the

Board of Directors at least 30 days in advance. The Board of Directors shall approve resignations and send copies of

resignation letters to the Stock Exchange of Thailand.

If a directorship of the Audit Committee becomes vacant for any reason other than by rotation, the Directors shall appoint a

person with all the necessary qualifications to replace the resigned person. The appointed person shall remain in office only for

the remaining term of office of the person whom they are replacing, and the Stock Exchange of Thailand shall be notified

accordingly.

Audit committee meetings

2.1.4.1 The Audit Committee shall hold meetings once every each quarter to deliberate the quarterly budget and other
issues in accordance with Audit framework. The Chairman of the Audit Committee may call for meetings in special
instances to deliberate issues that are necessary or urgent as deemed appropriate.

2.1.4.2 In calling a meeting of the Audit Committee, the Chairman of the Audit Committee, or the secretary of the Audit
Committee through the order of the Chairman of the Audit Committee, shall send a letter to the members of the
Audit Committee no less than seven days prior to the date of the meeting. An exception may be made in urgent
circumstances, the meeting may be announced by other means or scheduled for an earlier suitable period.

2.1.4.3 The Chairman of the Audit Committee shall report the minutes of the meeting to the Board of Directors on the
following day.

2.1.4.4 The secretary of the Audit Committee shall not have the right to vote.

2.2 Nomination and Remuneration Committee Charter

The NRC is to be appointed by the Board of Directors company’s committee or management has to comprise of not less than three

persons, being the Company’s directors and executives by at least half of the total number of NRC’s members must be independent

directors.

2.21

222

Term of Office and Retirement

2.2.1.1 The NRC's member has the office term of two (2) years. The NRC’s members who complete the term of office may be
reappointed.

2.21.2 In case of vacancy of the NRC’'s members due to the reason other than the expiration of the term, the Board of
Directors shall appoint a director who is suitable to fill in the vacancy to serve the remaining term of the position.

2.2.1.3 If any member of NRC’s members wishes to resign before the end of the term, the company shall be notified in
advance, not less than 30 days, in order for the Board of Directors to consider replacing the position.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (According to page 122)
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3.

4.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors

3.1 The Directors shall honestly and prudently perform their duties in accordance with the laws of Thailand, the objectives of the
company as contained in the Articles of Association of the company, and minutes of shareholders’ meetings, all with the aim to
protect the interests of the company. A summary of the duties are as follows: (According to page 119)

3.2 Formulate a Good Corporate Governance in writing as it is a vital mechanism that can lead the company to effective and
transparent management by reviewing at least once a year.

3.3 Ensure the establishment and communication of the Code of Conduct and business ethics for directors, executives and company’s
employees at all levels.

3.4 Set directors’ meeting to consider, review and approve the company’s vision mission and 5-year strategic plan.

3.5 Ensure effectiveness Internal Controls, Internal Audit & Compliance procedures are in place.

3.6 Establish a formal risk management policy and procedure and reviews it annually in order to assess any negative impact of internal

and external risks to the company for the survival of business.

Meeting of the Board of Directors

The annual general meeting of shareholders will be organized and take place within 4 months after the end of company’s fiscal or
accounting year. There are also Board meetings every 3 months whose yearly schedule is announced in advance and special meetings
can be organized as necessary, The minimum of quorum directors as of resolution need to have no fewer than two in three of all
member. In addition, non-executive directors to meet among themselves and freely discuss and concerns without participation of the
management. To schedule a meeting of the Board of the Directors, Chairman of the Board of the Directors and Executive Chairman will
consider and approve agenda. The company secretary of the Board will then deliver letter of meeting invitation, agenda and related

documents to the directors at least 7 days in advance, to allow directors time to study the information before meeting.

The Chairman of the Board of the Directors acts as Chairman of Board of Directors meeting and shareholder’s meeting, and the role of
chairman is to allocate the appropriate time on each agenda for directors to discuss and express their opinion freely, especially on
critical issues to achieve a fairly balanced benefit for shareholders and stakeholders. The Chairman will ensure that the management
presents relevant information to support the discussions. Also acts as leader of directors and be responsible to monitor Executive
Committee and sub-committee in order to achieve the objectives as planned. Moreover, the Chairman will be the casting votes in case

of two sides of directors are equal votes.

The company secretary will take note and prepare Minute of Meeting within 14 days. He or she will keep record of the minute of meeting
on file together with other reference documents as well as supporting the Board of the Directors to perform their duties in compliance
with laws, regulations and resolutions of Shareholders’ Meetings. The company secretary will also coordinate with other parties

concerned.

Evaluation of Performance of the Board of Directors

5.1 The Board conducts Board Self-Assessment annually both in overall group and individual. The Board use criteria of evaluation
which is proposed by the Stock Exchange of Thailand as a guideline for the evaluation. The Board has emphasis on good
preparation of human resources development especially, top management positions (Chief Executive Officer).

5.2 The directorship of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) in other listed companies shall not hold CEQO’s responsibilities as the
company’s CEO. However, in holding a director position in other listed companies, the CEO can contribute his/her experience to

other companies while at the same time applies the knowledge learned to the company.

Remuneration

6.1 The company has a policy to remunerate Directors and management team at an appropriate level which is sufficient to attract the
Directors and management team with the company.

6.2 The company has a policy to increase remuneration to Directors who are assigned to be the Audit Committee at an appropriated

level.
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6.3 The remuneration of management team must comply with the principles and policies set by the Board of Directors, which is also
based on obligations, responsibilities and performance of each management as well as the operating results of the company.

6.4 The remuneration is at comparative rates when compare to other companies’ remuneration within the same industry. Factors to be
considered include experiences, duties, roles and responsibilities of the Directors. Moreover, the remuneration of the Directors

must be approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

7. Development of the Board and Executives
7.1 The company encourages and facilitates training for the New Directors by providing the Board’s handbook. Training and site visit
to the Company and Subsidiaries are introduced. Directors are entitled to acknowledge and sign the Business Code of Conduct
before commencing his/her function.
7.2 The company also encourages to take outside training courses and sit for certification exam in order to develop specific skills in

their profession continuously. This would improve competitiveness of the company.

8. Succession Plan
The Board of Directors has planned the succession plan of top management positions of company. The Investors, Organization
including employees can trust that the company’s business will be sustainable, if the important positions are vacant, the

Human Resources Department will be authorized to consider the criteria of succession plan and revise this plan annually.

Supervision the Operation of subsidiary and affiliated companies

The Board of Directors of the company has always put a strong emphasis on good corporate governance as it a vital mechanism that can
be lead the subsidiary and affiliated companies to effective and transparent management in taking of company’s investment. The Board of
Directors will be appointed as members to the Board of Directors or Executives, in proportion to the number of shares held by the company.
As a representative of the company, the director(s) will receive policy mandates from the company for the control or supervision of the

subsidiary and affiliated companies.

In the case of an affiliate company, the company conducts business in compliance with “The Principle of Good Corporate Governance”
such as accurate, complete and transparent information disclosure of affiliated company’s financial information and related parties
transactions, purchasing of assets or other important transactions, employ the suitable accounting policy that suits the business and in

accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Standard, and keep accounting documents as required by laws and regulations.
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Department

Management
23 Sales & Marketing

Customer Service

Product & Business Development

D&B Business

Data & Information Operation

Software Development & Data Management
Network and Security Management

News Online

-

Data Center

Internal Audit

Special Project

Business Consultant

Accounting, Finance and Credit Control

Human Resource

I N O 0o o w3 o o»
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-

Administrative

Total of employees as of 31 December (persons)

Compensation for Employees

169 persons 169 persons

Salaries and Bonuses (Baht)
Provident Fund (Baht)

Welfare
. Annual health check
. Group health insurance (consist of life insurance,

accident insurance and health insurance)
. Social Security

. Provident Fund

99,364,467.69 93,502,138.35
2,345,529.00 2,043,739.50
. Subvention Wedding
. Subvention funeral
. Subvention maternity patient visit
. Performance Bonus
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Human Resource Development Policy

The company places great emphasis on training and development of employees. The objectives are to develop specialized and technical
knowledge, skills and experience of employees. These knowledge are the cornerstone of human development, allowing them to perform
assignments effectively and prepare the employees towards their career goals. This process will, in turn, strengthen operations of the
company. New employees are provided with orientation programs that cover information about the company. It also provides sales skill
training including customer service techniques and techniques for creating better experience for customers and product knowledge and
demonstrations including knowledge on product innovation from the company’s business partners. In addition, the company stresses the
importance of follow up on development and evaluate employees’ performance in light of the established goals and objectives, in order to
set compensation, including salary, bonus and equity and non-equity incentive compensation and creating the employees’ loyalty in long-
term. The company recognizes the importance of improving on employees’ performance and enhance their efficiency by providing the
training programs to develop specific skills in their professional continuously. Regarding this, the company has set up policy on management

decentralization and giving the importance on the company’s unit/staff coordination effectively.
Legal Disputes Over the Past Three Years

None.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board of Directors and Executive Committee have continuously emphasized on the importance of the internal control system in order
to have an adequate internal control system suitable for the company’s business operation to achieve the highest management efficiency
as well as taking care of property, reducing mistakes and waste that might occur to the company, managing finance and risk, managing
and keeping security of data and information technology system, and supervising the performance and compliance with rules and
regulations of authorities agencies to ensure that company’s operations would be able to achieve the objectives and create the highest

additional value in the long-term. The evaluation of internal control system could be summarized as follows:
1. Control Environment

1.1 The company clearly set its business operation goals which were reviewed by the Board of Directors. The goals are assessed and
used as employees’ jobs guidelines.

1.2 The company clearly and functionally designed its organizational structure and chains of command together with assignment,
authority and responsibilities in writing. All employees are to possess the perception concerning roles, authority, duty, and
responsibility.

1.3 The company has set up an anti-corruption policy and whistle blowing mechanism to ensure that directors, executives and staff
can perform their duties with transparency, proper, just, and check and balance under good governance.

1.4 The company emphasized the importance of honesty and ethics in doing business by setting policies and regulations in writing.
The Code of Ethics are classified as follow.

1.4.1 Business Ethics
1.4.2 Code of Conduct for Executives

1.4.3 Code of Conduct for Employees
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2. Risk Evaluation

The management identified risks from internal and external factors which might have negative impact on the achievement of organizational

objectives. The company analysed and managed risks to ensure that its operations are in line with the set goals.

3. Control Activities

The company has effective, suitable, and adequate control activities as follows: setting policies and regulations on working in writing;
reviewing financial reports and non-financial performance reports by the management and the Audit Committee so that both teams can
monitor each other; imposing scope of authority and the level of authorised and delegation financial in writing; preparing supporting
documents that aids the delegation of duties to relevant divisions and persons to ensure that the risk management system, internal control
system, and business supervision process of the company were sufficiently and efficiently provided in accordance with the company’s

objectives.

4. Information Technology and Communication

The company continuously develops its information technology system and data system and sufficiently made various important data to be
used in making decisions. The minutes and opinion of the meetings of the committee were summarized, classified and filed accordingly.
Account entry was made in accordance with the generally accepted accounting principles to fit the company’s business characteristics.
Moreover, the company had the information technology system to facilitate its works, financial and operation result reports, compliance with
the policy and regulations used in controlling and carrying out the organization’s activities to ensure that the information technology and

communication, both inside and outside the organization, enabled the organization to achieve its objectives and goals.

5. Monitoring and Assessment

The company’s performance monitoring and assessment system has been, consistently, followed by the Board of Directors. The annual
actual operation results are in line with the set target and meet the company’s goals. The Board of Directors has delegated the Audit
Committee to review the company’s internal control system to ensure sufficient and appropriate internal control for efficient business
operation, and to report to the Board of Directors and shareholders. The company’s Audit Committee independently conducts inspection,
reviews financial statements, reviews risks and legal compliance, expresses opinions without conflicts of interest, reviews and supervises

the internal audit, and considers and proposes the annual auditor of the company.

The Board of Directors is of the opinion that, presently, the company has sufficient internal control system and in line with the requirements
forinternal control assessment of SET. The company has sufficient internal control system for business transactions with major shareholders

of the company, directors, executives or related persons, and misuses of company’s assets.
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MONITORING OF INSIDER TRADING

The Board of Directors has recognized the importance of preventing the company’s internal information against use for personal benefis,
and therefore made a policy to keep confidential information that have not been made available to the public. Such confidential information

shall only be disclosed to the parties concerned.

The company has advised executives of their duties to report on the company’s stocks held by them as well as their spouses and their
minor children, and to report changes to the Securities and Exchange Commission in section 59 and the penalty in section 275 according
to the Act on Securities and Securities Exchange B.E. 2535. Moreover, the company prohibits directors, executives including their spouses
and their minor children from purchasing, selling, transferring, or taking transfer of, the company’s stock using internal information not yet
disclosed to the public, and from trading of stocks particularly during 1 month and to notify Company Secretary (appointed by Board of
Directors) at least one day before trading the securities before disclosure of financial statements to the public, In the cases where directors,
executives’ including their spouses and minor children purchase, sell, transfer, or taking transfer of the company’s stocks do not fall under
the above categories, all such transactions shall be reported to the Securities Exchange Commission and the Stock Exchange of Thailand
within three (3) working days of their occurrence. There are reports for the company’s stocks held by directors and executives at the

quarterly Board of Directors Meeting.

As for employees, the company includes this subject as a matter of ethics to be observed by employees. Employees must not use their

positions, duties and the company’s confidential information to seek benefits for themselves and related parties.

If any of the above persons are found to use the company’s internal information for their own benefits, the company shall deem that such
persons have committed a serious disciplinary offense and will be subjected to penalization pursuant to the company’s Articles of

Association.
Appointment of External Auditors and Consideration of Audit Fees

The Audit Committee considers the qualifications and performance of external auditors for recommendation to the Board of Directors for

their annual appointment, and the proposed audit fees for further consideration and approval by the General Meeting of Shareholders.
In the year 2015, the remuneration for external auditors included:

1. Audit Fees:
In the year 2015, EY Office (Thailand), an appointed audit firm of the company and its subsidiary is at 0.87 million Baht per year. EY Office
(Thailand) has no relationship or any interest with the company, executives or related persons, which may have an impact on performing

task independently.

2. Non-Audit Fees:
In the year 2015, the company paid professional service fee to perform an audit on the company’s operation report for tax exemption on
the basis of the guideline laid down by the Office of the Board of Investment and other fees such as out-of-pocket expense to EY Office

(Thailand) approximately amounting to 0.14 million Baht.
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LIST OF DIRECTORS AND CONTROLLING PERSONS
IN THE COMPANY
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Remark B Chairman ® Director A Executive Committee

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Company’s Vision

To be the leader and internationally recognized provider of critical information, know-how, knowledge and services through sophisticated
applications and media, to empower individuals and organizations in making informed decisions, devising proper business and

development strategies and being competitive.
Mission

The objective of the company is to be the leader in provider of information, analytics and monitoring the data to serve as tools in business
decision making. The company has continuously developed and updated the existing database and also developed the projects in
searching the new information sources including developed online computer system continuously. The company will add value to the
information provided by expanding the analysis and validate process in order to offer the maximum benefits to make timely decisions. The
analysis will focus on the overall reduction of overall risk and enhance more opportunities. Moreover, the company also has the project to

develop the database management system and the data business model in order to expand the market to the overseas.

To create added value of the information as information provider company whose mission is to provide information for customers to make
timely, standardized and accurate decisions and enhance more opportunities through the following aspects:
- To provide quality, completely and creditable data.

- Maintain high standard of the information security management.
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Corporate Social Responsibility policy (CSR)

The company is aware of how the organization can sustain growth by employing corporate social responsibility policy. Therefore, the

company has adopted CSR (Corporate Social Responsibility) policy as follow:

1. Employees are confident of their job security and fair career progression.

Operating projects and activities with strategies to conserve energy and reduce waste.

Condoning any illegal use of products that violates property rights.

2
3. Promoting customer satisfaction by delivering quality products and services at fair prices.
4
5

Exercising environmental stewardship of accepted standards and helping to improve the quality of life for community and society.

The company has continuously communicated CSR policy and the sustainability development to employees through the internal

communication channels, such as new employees orientation, newsletter, information board, e-mail, intranet, and the meeting in order to

raise awareness and understanding of the employees’ roles for social and public responsibility.

Stakeholders

Stakeholder’'s engagement

Stakeholders

1. Employees

2. Customers

3. Partners,

Competitors

4. Shareholders

5. Community

Objectives

Better quality of life

To communicate information to all
employees

Promoting professional capability

building

Provide the quality products and
services
Meet the customers’ need

Satisfaction of customers

Anti-Corruption

Operating profitable business to
sustainable growth while generating

optimum returns

Building a sustainable society by
growing the philosophy of social

responsibility

Strategies

To develop the employees
Compliance to labor legislation and
human rights

Quality of working environment

Develop service to meet each
customer's need

Security of information

Operating business under the strictly

legal framework

Disclosure and transparency

Create and participate in social
related activities to benefit the
communities and wider society
Operate business sustainably and

add value to society

Actions

Internal communication such as
newsletter, information board, intranet
Internal and external training

To do activities in several occasion

Fair benefits

Privacy policy

Channel for customers’ complaints

Deal with partners who conduct
business with transparency
Procurement policy

Not accepting bribeny

Strictly comply to contractual

conditions with partners

Annual General Meeting

Pay dividend

Disclose information completely

on the company’s website and all of

release documents

Channels for customers’ complaints
Provide cooperation and support
for policies and activities which
benefit communities and society
overall

Cooperate with government sectors
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Corporate Social Responsibility Reporting (CSR)

This CSR reporting is disclosed according to the Annual Registration Statement (Form 56-1) of The Securities and Exchange Commission.

The company has revealed activities that occur in business process in the past year.

Business Online Public Company Limited specializes in developing database management system and risk management with the
knowledge of information technology. The company is leader of providing comprehensive service of business information; basic
information and the company’s performance including news service, analyzing and verifying the data for being the reliable tool in business
decision. Our objectives and commitment are to provide the quality, reliable, creditable data through computer system and advanced
technologies. The company also has the efficiency method of security data. Therefore, the company got continuously support and trust
from the customers that are the corporate groups, organizations, leading banks and financial institutions. Aside from the conducting
business to drive the economy, the company has committed in Corporate Governance policy, truly adhering to ethical principle and
awareness in corporate social responsibility so the company engages in all sector of stakeholders both internal and external, and also

support the social benefits for Thai society to reach sustainability development.
From the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) framework, the company defines direction of CSR activities which is summarized as follow:
1. Customer Responsibility

To verifying the quality of information and services.
Due to core business of the company is providing information business through the major channels; computer system and internet.
Therefore, it needs to control and verify the quality and service regularly by various tools and analyzing technology to ensure the customers’
satisfaction.

Strategic framework:

1. New Data Management program to assist in improving data integrity and support business functions.

2. Strictly monitoring and maintaining information security

Action to verify the quality of information and service

a) Develop more user-friendly interface on website.

b) Classify data to provide products and services that are easy-to-use.

c) Improve and verify data to be updated, corrected and completed regularly.

d) Deliver innovative products and services that simplify customers’ experience continuously.

e) Provide training for products knowledge and demonstrations including knowledge on product innovation.

f) Maintain the high standard of information security management including developing computer systems and security networks. In

the past year, the company was certified in the Information Security Management System (ISMS) under the new version reviewed by

ISO/IEC 27001:2013 standard. The company has confidentiality agreement in accordance to ISO/IEC 27001:2013 standard.
2. Customer Care and Protection

To protect the data of customers and prevent use of personal, are top priority of business process. The company strictly adheres to
regulations, ethics, rules and legal regulations and aware of the respect to individual rights in order to maintain the customers’ trust.
Strategic framework:
1. Keeping customers’ information confidential.

2. Standard security of information.
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Action to Customer Care and Protection

a) Continuously improve the quality of its goods and services, in order to maximize the benefit and satisfaction of its customers.

b) Policy to protect the privacy of customers.

c) Training the employees to be aware of customer’s privacy rights and impose punishment on the offender or break the rules.

d) The privacy of the customer information is kept by the Board of Director, Executive and all of employees’ level if it is not allowed by
customers.

e) Systematically secure data sources

Furthermore, the company was awarded the project “Bai Pho Business Awards by Sasin” in year 2008 that was honored by Thai

entrepreneur to praiseworthy the successful and distinguished businesses. Also being the role model to develop SME business on “Value

Creation” and “Customer Focus” dimensions. These can guarantee that the company continuosly emphasizes and develops the

importance of listening and understanding the customers’ need.

3.

Fair Business Operation

Not violating intellectual-property

The company operates business under fair rules, honesty, not contradicting the rules nor violating intellectual-property including avoiding

partners who abuse human rights or violate intellectual-property.

4.

To

Strategic framework:

1. Must not present works from others for any company’s benefis.

2. Must not copy, reproduce, distribute or pass ideas from others for any use.

3. Strictly adhere to code of conduct and intellectual-property law.

Action to do not violating intellectual-property

The company realizes the importance of intellectual property rights and will not encourage any violation of patents, copyrights,
information technology and any other aspect of intellectual assets. If the work is subject to intellectual property rights, the company
shall review terms and conditions and strictly abide by them. The company will prepare agreements with partners that are standardized,
taking into consideration fair terms and conditions for both parties. The company will set up a system to monitor and ensure the
compliance of all terms and conditions and to prevent unfair treatment or corruption throughout process. In addition, as part of the
efforts to minimize corruptions, the company holds an anti-corruption training course to educate employees regarding company’s
policy and guidelines towards anti-corruption actions and to encourage all employees to fight against corruptions in all forms. It
prescribes, matters of which employees should be aware and to which they are to adhere as well as setting out penalties in case of

violations

Community Social Development

support the quality life of community

The company realizes that the responsibility towards local community, society and the environment is integral to sustainable development.

Strategic framework:

1. Promoting the value leisure time of youth.

2. Building jobs and helping to improve the quality of life.

Action to support the quality life of community

a) Employing the university students within the community as part-time data entry staff to earn money during studying and leisure time.
b)By employing “Part-time”, the company supported occupational and income development in several communities that it is the

implementing for community income sustainability and continuity.
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5. Environmental Management

Environmental conservation

The company is committed to taking into account environmental responsibilities for sustainable growth in the future by adding value to the

use of resources, aiming at achieving maximum benefits throughout the entire production process.

Strategic framework:

1. Paperless process.

2. Developing and supporting the society and environment, in harmony with the company’s sustainable growth objectives through
various campaigns and activities.

Action to environment management

a) Encourage printing on both sides of the paper.

b

c

d

e

Campaign to separate waste properly.
Campaign paperless operations and work flow automation.

Campaign to donate used staples to recycle as the equipment for disabled and older person such as crutches and Ken walkers.

Use copier products that are friendly to environment including awareness to community and environmental responsibility.

6. Fair Treatment of Workers and Respecting Human Rights

To develop and support the employees

The company believes that the employees are very important resources to drive and lead the company to achieve goal. Therefore, the

company had recognized equality and human rights and also opens the opportunities to work for career path without discrimination.

Strategic framework:

1. Provide proper and fair treatment to employees.

2. Comply with labor legislation.

3. Respect the employees’ rights to express their opinion.

4. Provide enhanced training and career mapping, clarifying roles and responsibilities.

5. Protect and promote the safety and health of employees.

Action to develop and support the employees

a) The company has compensation and welfare policy based on fairness and motivation including competitive with the same type of
business or related industry. In addition, the company has the management of remuneration system by researching the remuneration
in the related industry regularly. For other wages such as the overtime wage and working on holiday, the company will pay
compensation based on labor legislation.

b) The provident fund for executives and employees.

c) Employees at all levels received more training for their roles, are counseled about their career path and engaged more effectively

with each other.

In-house and public training courses for the year 2015

: Year 2016
Details :
In-house courses public courses
Amount of courses 8 30
Amount of attended employees 126 48

The average hours per employee 6 12.5
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d) Hire disable employees on work basis and give the opportunity to suitable person.

e) Support the benefit or voluntary activities by chance

f) Channel to communicate and acknowledge the employees opinion such as e-mail address bolwhistleblowing@bol.co.th and also
put top secret box for employees opinion and their suggestion which directly send to CEO.

g) Provide the annual health check.

h) Provide sanitized working environment such as eliminate termites, washing carpet, changing drinking water filter regularly, and also
Installing the de-aerator inside the rooms where there are a lot of copying machines to filter dust, pollution and the smell that causes

by the copying machines.

7. Other Corporate Social Responsibility

In addition in-process CSR activities, the company recognizes the importance of education and knowledge because the education is the
key foundation to develop nation’s workforce in the future which is the reason why the company focus on education to the workforce to
realize the importance of credible information, working while being capable to solve problems under supervision. Therefore, the company
also supports student’s activities. Those are participation in education of actual work for local, collaboration with educational institutions
with internship program in data entry along with providing our business information to educational institutions so that their student and

faculties have the opportunity and benefits in using for research, teaching and thesis writing.

The company has participated in social and public activities, and support money, necessary materials to other organizations such as:
1. ‘Card for You’ initiative by Better Thailand Foundation:
The company has been supporting this event for 13 consecutive years as part of supporting the education and developing the
quality of life among children in order to prepare for “Knowledge Based Society” based on vision of the foundation through art which
is accessible to all social classes. To provide platform for children with physical disabilities and disadvantages to show their

creativity by doing workshop.

For the year 2015, the employees participated by volunteering in this activity and give the opportunity to show their creativity by
drawing under theme “Share the loves, spread the smiles”. Their pictures convey the meaning of happiness, spirit and sharing, and
the winners are printed as New Year's cards. These can encourage the children to recognize value and affect to develop themselves

in various fields as well. Moreover, we had set the amusement activities to make them happy.

2. Annual CSR activities with schools:
For the year 2015, the employees participated in activity “Game for Children” to help disadvantaged children at Watbandaima

School, Pakchong, Nakornratchasima. We created the amusement activities, happiness and also contribute the financial support.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The company has reported connected transactions with related parties in the Note to Financial Statements as of 31 December 2015,

item 6. The company has entered into connected transactions taking into account the following guidelines:
Necessity and Rationale of Connected Transactions

Connected transactions are necessary and reasonable to create the best benefits to the company and are considered to be transacted
under ordinary course of business, mostly information services and /or copyright services including trading computer equipment. The

transactions, moreover, are priced according to Fair and at arms’ length principle.
Necessity and Justification of transactions with connected persons or business entities.

The Audit Committee reviewed the transactions with connected persons and/or business entities and it is of the opinion that the transactions
are essential and justified and beneficial to the firm at optimum level. The transactions are, therefore, considered as being conducted under

normal business practice and priced at market rates or just price without any favor or arm’s length transaction.
Procedure to Approve Connected Transactions

Every connected transaction has to undergo procedure for approval in compliance with rules and regulations stipulated in the Securities
and Exchange Act (No.4) B.E. 2551 and other related rules, announcements and guidelines made by The Stock Exchange of Thailand
(SET) and The Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) relevant authorities concerning connected transactions entered into by listed

companies. A director who relates to a connected transaction has to be refrained from casting vote on such matter.
Connected Transaction Tendency

Connected transactions that have been made or are to be made in the future shall be according to ordinary course of business with to
transferring of benefits between the company and related parties. The company has appointed the Audit Committee to audit and consider
the disclosure of connected transactions, which may potentially create conflict of interest to comply with Securities and Exchange Act and
other related rules, announcements and guidelines made by relevant authorities concerning connected transactions entered into by listed
companies, as well as in accordance with standard set by the Institute of Certified Accountants and Auditors of Thailand (Federation of

Accounting Professions)
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Significant business transactions incurred during January - December 2015 with connected persons or business entities

2

3

4

Type of person with

potential conflict

Advance Research
Group Co., Ltd.

ARIP Public

Company Limited

Anet Co., Ltd.

SVOA Public
Company Limited

Type of
relationship

Common
shareholders and
directors (ARG is
a major
shareholders with
a21.10% stake
inBOL as of 31
December 2015)

Common
Shareholders

and directors

Common
Shareholders

and directors

Common
Shareholders

and directors

Type of
transaction

Expenses

1. Service fee for system
development, such as data
analytics and database
enhancement, including the
right to use.

2. Other service fees, such 2.15
as back office support,

including payroll system,

legal, and registration fees.

3. Accounting Software
License Fees (Oracle) under
contracts for utilisation and

software service.

Revenue

Revenue from online 1.50
business information

Expenses

1. Advertising expenses- 2.10
printed media

2. Advertising expenses
- other media such as

television and exhibitions

Expenses
Services fee - Internet,
including leased line and

domain

Revenue

Revenue from service 0.75
contracts providing business
information and analytics

data

Expenses

1. Maintenance of computer 0.38
equipments for office use
and customers

2. Purchase of computer 1.20
equipments and software for

office use and customer

Amount (Million Baht)

(Unit : Million Baht)
Necessity and

Justification

Service fee for system development is a transaction
that will incur future revenue for the firm as it is a
value-added service to existing products and

business.

It is more beneficial for the firm to outsource other
services, such as back office support, including
payroll system, legal, and registration fees, compared
with the expense of hiring the professionals as frm’s
full-time employees.

Accounting Software License Fees for Oracle is
needed for business operations.

Audit Committee’s Opinion

The transactions are reasonable and necessary,
given the service fees and payment terms are in line

with market rate, similar to arm’s length transaction.

Revenue from online business information, including
the advertising expenses, are in line with market rate,
similar to arm’s length transaction.

Audit Committee’s Opinion

The transactions are reasonable and necessary,
given the service fees and payment terms are in line

with market rate, similar to arm’s length transaction.

The firm use the Domain and Leased Line to access
internet with the fees and payment terms are in line
with market rate, similar to arm’s length transaction.
Audit Committee’s Opinion

The transactions are reasonable and necessary,
given the service fees and payment terms are in line

with market rate, similar to arm’s length transaction.

Revenue from service contracts providing business
information and analytics data, maintenance of
computer equipments for office uses and customers,
purchase of computer equipments and software for
office use and customer are charged at the rate and
payment terms in line with market rate, similar to
arm’s length transaction.

Audit Committee’s Opinion

The transactions are reasonable and necessary,
given the service fees and payment terms are in line

with market rate, similar to arm’s length transaction.
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6

7

8

Type of person with

potential conflict

National Credit
Bureau Co., Ltd.

DataOne Asia
(Thailand) Co., Ltd.

Venture Profile
Co., Ltd.

ARIT Co., Ltd.

Type of
relationship

Common
shareholders
and directors
(BOL holds a
12.25% share
as of 31
December
2015)

Common
Shareholders and

directors

Common
Shareholders and

directors

Common
Shareholders and

directors

Type of
transaction

Revenue

Service revenue from
contracts, such as
copyrights, system
management, agreements,

and information services

Revenue

Revenue from service
contracts providing
business information and
analytics data

Expenses

1. Maintenance of
equipments and computer
programs

2. Purchase of computer

equipments

Expenses

Rental and services

Expenses
Rental of training rooms for

customers under contracts

Amount (Million Baht)

Revenue |Expenses

19.82

0.45

0.88

0.86

147

(Unit : Million Baht)
Necessity and

Justification

Service revenue from contracts, such as copyrights,
system management, agreements, and information
services are charged at the rate and payment terms
in line with market rate, similar to arm’s length
transaction.

Audit Committee’s Opinion

The transactions are reasonable and necessary,
given the service fees and payment terms are in line

with market rate, similar to arm’s length transaction.

Revenue from service contracts providing business
information and analytics data, maintenance of
equipments and computer programs, and the
purchase of computer equipments for central
storage of the firm’s log management are charged at
the rate and payment terms in line with market rate,
similar to arm’s length transaction.

Audit Committee’s Opinion

The transactions are reasonable and necessary,
given the service fees and payment terms are in line

with market rate, similar to arm’s length transaction.

Rental and services are charged at the rate and
payment terms in line with market rate, similar to
arm’s length transaction.

Audit Committee’s Opinion

The transactions are reasonable and necessary,
given the service fees and payment terms are in line

with market rate, similar to arm’s length transaction.

Rental of training rooms for customers under
contracts are charged at the rate and payment terms
in line with market rate, similar to arm’s length
transaction.

Audit Committee’s Opinion

The transactions are reasonable and necessary,
given the service fees and payment terms are in line

with market rate, similar to arm’s length transaction.
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9

10

11

12

Type of person with

potential conflict

Lease It Public

Company Limited

S PV | Public
Company Limited

Ecart Studio
Co., Ltd.

D&B (Thailand)
Company Limited

Type of
relationship

Common

Shareholders

Common
Shareholders

and directors

Common
shareholders
and directors
(BOL holds a
15.00% share
as of 31
December
2015)

Common
shareholders
and directors
(BOL holds a
99.99% share
as of 31
December
2015)

Type of
transaction

Revenue

Revenue from service 0.42
contracts providing

business information and

analytics data

Revenue

Revenue from online 0.02
business information

Expenses

Marketing expenses.

Purchase of hardware

computer and software

Expenses
System development fees
to provide services to

customers

Revenue

1. Revenue - data 2.61
providing services

2. Revenue - back office 0.10

services

Amount (Million Baht)

(Unit : Million Baht)
Necessity and

Justification

Revenue from service contracts providing business
information and analytics data are charged at the
rate and payment terms in line with market rate,
similar to arm'’s length transaction.

Audit Committee’s Opinion

The transactions are reasonable and necessary,
given the service fees and payment terms are in line

with market rate, similar to arm’s length transaction.

Revenue from online business information and
marketing expenses to buy equipment and computer
software are charged with payment terms in line with
market rate, similar to arm’s length transaction.

Audit Committee’s Opinion

The transactions are reasonable and necessary,
given the service fees and payment terms are in line

with market rate, similar to arm’s length transaction.

System development fees to provide services to
customers will incure future revenue for the firm and
service fees and payment terms are in line with
market rate, similar to arm’s length transaction.
Audit Committee’s Opinion

The transactions are reasonable and necessary,
given the service fees and payment terms are in line

with market rate, similar to arm’s length transaction.

Revenue from providing information and back office
service fees and payment terms are in line with
market rate, similar to arm’s length transaction.
Audit Committee’s Opinion

The transactions are reasonable and necessary,
given the service fees and payment terms are in line

with market rate, similar to arm’s length transaction.
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL POSITION AND OPERATING RESULTS

Statement of financial position comparison as of 31 December 2013 to 2015

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Assets

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade accounts receivable
Accrued income

Other current assets

Total current assets
Non-current assets
Restricted bank deposits
Investments in subsidiary
Investment in associated
company

Other long-term investment
Building improvement and

equipment

Intangible assets

Deferred tax assets

Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets
Total assets

Consolidated financial statements

Separate financial statements
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2015

85,824
80,848
127,740
32,814
327,226

17,200

31,266
80,805

21,569
52,486
6,353
1,798
211,477
538,703

15.93
156.01
23.71

6.09
60.74

3.19

5.80
15.00

4.00
9.74
1.18
0.33
39.26
100.00

2014

64,066
39,101
218,298
13,2562
334,717

17,200

31,017
80,805

21,017
41,448
6,428
1,560
199,475

11.99
7.32
40.87
2.48
62.66

3.22

5.81
15.18

3.93
7.76
1.20
0.29
37.34

534,192 100.00

2013

36,324
39,474
179,749
47,389
302,936

17,000

30,815
27,864

26,433
36,059
6,332
irc95
146,098
449,034

8.08
8.79
40.03
10.55
67.45

379

6.86
6.21

5.89
8.03
1.41
0.36
32.55
100.00

2015

85,152
74,264
130,411
32,803
322,630

17,200
1,000

30,000
80,805

21,569
52,447
6,284
1,798
211,103
533,733

15.95
13.91
24.43

6.15
60.44

3.22
0.19

5.62
15.14

4.04
9.83
1.18
0.34
39.56
100.00

2014

63,700
39,101
218,298
13,238
334,337

17,200
400

30,000
80,805

21,017
41,383
6,428
1,560
198,793
533,130

11.95
7.33
40.95
248
62.71

3.23
0.08

5.63
15.16

3.94
7.76
1.21
0.29
37.29
100.00

35,908
39,474
179,749
47,376
302,507

17,000
600

30,000
27,864

26,433
35,967
6,332
1,595
145,791

8.00
8.81
40.10
10.57
67.48

3.79
0.13

6.69
6.22

5.90
8.02
1.41
0.36
32.52

448,298 100.00
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Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements
2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013

Liabilities and shareholders’

equity
Current liabilities
Short-term loans from financial

institutions = - - - 30,816  6.87 = = = = 30,816  6.86
Bill of exchange = - 40,000 7.49 - - - - 40,000 7.50 - -
Trade and other payables 44,787 831 57,563 10.78 33,329 742 40,925 7.67 57,513 10.79 33279 7.42
Income tax payable 382 0.07 4989 093 5629 1.25 382  0.07 4,989 0.94 5629 1.26
Unearned revenue 72,157 1340 48,907 9.16 47,751 10.63 71,721 13.44 48,907 9.17 47,751 10.65
Information utilization fee

payable 25,000 4.64 20,000 3.74 15,000 3.34 25000 4.68 20,000 3.75 15,000 3.35
Current portion of liabilities under

financial lease agreements ° - 1,157 0.22 1,467  0.33 - - 1,157 0.22 1,467  0.33
Others 13,531 251 15089 282 10583 236 13,505 253 15,089 2.83 10,583 2.36
Total current liabilities 155,857 28.93 187,705 35.14 144,575 3220 151,533 28.39 187,655 35.20 144,525 32.23

Non-current liabilities
Reserve for long-term employee

benefits 9,002  1.67 8,157 1.53 7,021 1.56 9,002 1.69 8,157 1.53 7,021 1.57
Liabilities under financial lease

agreements - net of current

portion = = = = 1,157  0.26 = = = = 1,157  0.26
Total non-current liabilities 9,002 1.67 8,157 {E5S; 8,178  1.82 9,002 1.69 8,157 1.53 8,178  1.83
Total liabilities 164,859 30.60 195,862 36.67 152,753 34.02 160,535 30.08 195,812 36.73 152,703 34.06

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Shareholders’ equity

Share capital Registered 82,600 1533 82,600 1546 78,750 17.54 82,600 1548 82,600 1549 78,750 17.57
Issued and fully paid up 79,399 1474 78,750 14.74 78,750 17.54 79,399 14.88 78,750 14.77 78,750 17.57
Share premium 88,868 16.50 77,150 14.44 77,150 17.18 88,868 16.65 77,150 14.47 77,150 17.21
Capital reserve for share-based

payment transactions 4,276 0.79 2,297 0.43 - - 4,276  0.80 2,297 043 - -

Retained earnings
Appropriated - statutory

reserve 8,260 1.53 7,875 1.47 7,875 1.75 8,260 1.55 7,875 148 7,875 1.76

Unappropriated 193,041 35.83 172,268 3225 132,506 29.51 192,395 36.05 171,246 32.12 131,820 29.40
Equity attributable to owners of

the company 373,844 69.40 338,330 63.33 296,281 65.98 373,198 69.92 337,318 63.27 295595 65.94
Non-controlling interests of the

subsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - -
Total shareholders’ equity 373,844 69.40 338,330 63.33 296,281 65.98 373,198 69.92 337,318 63.27 295595 65.94

Total liabilities and shareholders’
equity 538,703 100.00 534,192 100.00 449,034 100.00 533,733 100.00 533,130 100.00 448,298 100.00
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Management'’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Position and Operating Results

1. Operating Performance

Consolidated financial Increase Separate financial statements Increase
statements Decrease) ease)

(Unit : Thousand Baht) 2015 2014 Amount | % | 2015 2014

Total Revenues 341,710 100% 455,683 100% (113,973) -25% 337,905 100% 455,681 100% (117,776) -26%
Total costs and expenses 270,880 79% 359,848 79% (88,968) -25% 266,391 79% 359,971 79% (93,580) -26%
Profit before tax 71,079 21% 96,037 21% (24,958) -26% 71,514 21% 95,710 21% (24,196) -25%
Tax 9,892 3% 16,910 4%  (7,018) -42% 9,961 3% 16,910 4%  (6,949) -41%
Net Profit 61,187 18% 79,127 17% (17,940) -23% 61,553 18% 78,801 17% (17,248) -22%

In 2015, the company and its subsidiary had 341.71 million Baht of total revenues according to consolidated financial statements which
decreased by 113.97 million Baht or 25% decrease compared to total revenues in 2014. The consolidated financial statements presented
total costs and expenses at 270.88 million Baht which decreased by 88.97 million Baht or 25% decrease compared to total costs and
expenses in 2014. Consolidated profit before tax was 71.08 million Baht which decreased by 24.96 million Baht or 26% decrease compared
to profit before tax in 2014 and consolidated net profit was 61.19 million Baht which decreased by 17.94 million Baht or 23% decrease

compared to net profit last year. Major reasons of significant change are as follows.

Consolidated financial Increase Separate financial statements Increase
statements (Decrease) (Decrease)
(Unit: Thousand Baht) | 2015 | 2014 Amount| % | 2015 2014 |Amount| % |

Online information service

1.1 Total Revenues

income 249,348 73% 230,748 51% 18,600 8% 243,506 72% 230,748 51% 12,758 6%
Other service income 74,420 22% 209,430 46% (135,010) -64% 76,458 23% 209,430 46% (132,972) -63%
Other income 17,942 5% 15,505 3% 2,437  16% 17,941 5% 15,503 3% 2,438 16%
Total 341,710 100% 455,683 100% (113,973) -25% 337,905 100% 455,681 100% (117,776) -26%

1.1.1 The company and its subsidiary had service revenues from online information presenting sales from DBD’s information
amounting to 249.35 million Baht which increased by 18.60 million Baht or 8% increase compared to revenues from online
information in 2014. Main reason of higher income was customers’ expansion; furthermore, revenues from information
services are a major operating revenue of the company.

1.1.2 The company and its subsidiary’s other service income in 2015 was 74.42 million Baht which decreased by 135.01 million
Baht or 64% decrease compared to other service income in 2014 due to significant decline of revenues from special projects
(One-off projects) in 2015 compared to such revenue last year.

1.1.3 The company and its subsidiary had other income including dividend income and interest income in 2015 amounting to

17.94 million Baht which increased by 16% compared to other income last year because of an increase of dividend income.
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1.2 Total costs and expenses

1.2.1 Costs of services

Consolidated financial Increase Separate financial statements Increase
statements (Decrease) Decrease)

(Unit : Thousand Baht) 2015 2014 Amount| % | 2015 2014

Costs of database management

system 69,826  45% 56,919 22% 12,907 23% 66,046 44% 56,919 22% 9,127  16%
Costs of projects 19,439  13% 138,561 55% (119,122) -86% 19,439 13% 138,561 55% (119,122) -86%
Depreciation, salaries, and other

costs 64,558  42% 58,114 23% 6,444 11% 64,557 43% 58,114  23% 6,443 1%
Total 153,823 100% 253,594 100% (99,771) -39% 150,042 100% 253,594 100% (103,552) -41%

According to the consolidated statements of comprehensive income and the separate financial statements of BOL in 2015,
costs of services were 153.82 million Baht which decreased by 99.77 million Baht or 39% decrease compared to its costs in 2014. Major
reasons of decrease in costs of services are as follows.

- Costs of database management system in 2015 were 69.83 million Baht which increased by 12.91 million Baht or 23% increase
compared to its costs in 2014. Major reason of higher costs in 2015 resulted from dramatic increase in annual fee charged by a
governmental enterprise under service agreement. This service fee was the highest fee under the period of contract.

- Cost of projects showed 19.44 million Baht which decreased by 119.12 million Baht or 86% decrease compared to such costs in 2014
resulting from considerable drop of revenue from special projects as mentioned above.

- Depreciation, salaries and others costs were 64.56 million Baht which increased by 6.44 million Baht or 11% increase compared to
such costs in 2014.

1.2.2 Administrative expenses and Finance expenses

Consolidated financial Increase Separate financial statements Increase
statements (Decrease) (Decrease
(Unit: Thousand Baht) | 2015 | 2014  |Amount| % | 2015 2014 Amount | % |

Administrative expenses 116,505 100% 103,425 97% 13,080 13% 115,797 100% 103,548 97% 12,249 12%
Finance cost 552 = 2,829 3% (2,277) -80% 552 = 2,829 3%  (2,277) -80%
Total 117,067 100% 106,254 100% 10,803 10% 116,349 100% 106,377 100% 9,972 9%

According to the consolidated statements of comprehensive income in 2015, a total of administrative expenses was 116.51 million Baht
which increased by 13.08 million Baht or 13% increase compared to administrative expenses in 2014. Significant rising
administrative expenses derived from personnel expenses for the company’s business expansions, estimated provision for penalty delay
and sales & marketing expenses.

Moreover, finance cost was 0.55 million Baht which decreased by 2.28 million Baht or 80% decrease resulting from full

principal and interest repayment of bill of exchange during the year of 2015.
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2. Analysis of Financial Position

Assets
Consolidated financial Increase Separate financial statements Increase
statements (Decrease)

Cash and cash equivalents 25,779 5% 64,066 12% (38,287) -60% 25,107 5% 63,700 12% (38,593) -61%
Short-term investments 60,045 11% = - 60,045 100% 60,045 1% - - 60,045 100%
Trade accounts receivable 80,848 15% 39,101 7% 41,747 107% 74,264 14% 39,101 7% 35,163  90%
Accrued income 127,740  24% 218,298  41% (90,558) -41% 130,411 24% 218,298  41% (87,887) -40%
Other current assets 32,814 6% 13,252 3% 19,662 148% 32,803 6% 13,238 3% 19,565 148%
Total current assets 327,226  61% 334,717 63% (7,491) 2% 322,630 60% 334,337 63% (11,707) -4%
Restricted bank deposits 17,200 3% 17,200 3% - - 17,200 3% 17,200 3% - -
Investments-net 112,071 21% 111,822 21% 249 - 111,805 21% 111,205 21% 600 1%
Building improvement and

equipment 21,569 4% 21,017 4% 552 3% 21,569 4% 21,017 4% 562 3%
Intangible assets 52,486  10% 41,448 8% 11,038 27% 52,447 10% 41,383 8% 11,064 27%
Deferred tax assets 6,353 1% 6,428 1% (75) -1% 6,284 1% 6,428 1% (144) 2%
Other non-current assets 1,798 - 1,560 - 238 15% 1,798 - 1,560 - 238  15%
Total non-current assets 211,477  39% 199,475  37% 12,002 6% 211,108 40% 198,793 37% 12,310 6%
Total assets 538,703 100% 534,192 100% 4,511 1% 533,733 100% 533,130 100% 603 -

As of 31 December 2015, the company and its subsidiary’s total assets amounted to 538.70 million Baht which slightly increased by
4.51 million Baht or 1% increase compared with total assets in 2014. Our current assets showed a bit drop from 2014 amounting to 7.49
million Baht, a decrease of 2%, and non-current assets increased by 12.00 million Baht or 6% increase compared to non-current assets in

2014 as a result of huge investment related to business’ expansion of the company.

Liabilities

Consolidated financial Increase Separate financial statements Increase
statements (Decrease) (Decrease
(Unit : Thousand Baht) 2015 2014 2015 2014 Amount | % |

Bills of exchange - - 40,000 20% (40,000) -100% - 0% 40,000 20% (40,000) -100%
Trade accounts payable and

other payable 44787 27% 57,563 29% (12,776) -22% 40,925 25% 57,513 29% (16,588) -29%
Corporate income tax payable 382 - 4,989 3%  (4,607) -92% 382 0% 4,989 3% (4,607)  -92%
Unearned income 72,157  44% 48,907 25% 23,250 48% 71,721 45% 48,907 25% 22,814  47%
Others 47,533 29% 44,403 23% 3,130 7% 47,507 30% 44,403 23% 3,104 7%
Total liabilities 164,859 100% 195,862 100% (31,003) -16% 160,535 100% 195,812 100% (35,277) -18%

As of 31 December 2015, the company and its subsidiary’s total liabilities were 164.86 million Baht which decreased by 31.00 million

Baht or 16% decrease compared to total liabilities in 2014. Main decrease was that the company had fully paid bill of exchange in 2015.



Annual Report 2015 Business Online Public Company Limited
154
Equity
Consolidated financial Increase Separate financial statements Increase
statements (Decrease) (Decrease)

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

2015 2014

Share Capital - Registered 82,600 - 82,600 - - 82,600 - 82,600 -
Share Capital - Issued and

paid-up 79,399 21% 78,750  23% 649 1% 79,399 21% 78,750 23% 649 1%
Premium on ordinary shares 88,868 24% 77,150  23% 11,718 15% 88,868 24% 77,150  23% 11,718 15%
Capital reserve for share-based

payment transactions 4,276 1% 2,297 1% 1,979 86% 4,276 1% 2,297 1% 1,979  86%
Statutory Reserve 8,260 2% 7,875 2% 385 5% 8,260 2% 7,875 2% 385 5%
Retained earnings-

Unappropriated 193,041  52% 172,258  51% 20,783  12% 192,395 52% 171246 51% 21,149 12%
Total Equity 373,844 100% 338,330 100% 35514 10% 373,198 100% 337,318 100% 35880 11%

According to the consolidated statement of financial position as of 31 December 2015, total shareholders’ equity was 373.85 million

Baht which increased by 35.51 million Baht or 10% increase compared to shareholders’ equity in 2014. Major reasons of increase in

shareholders’ equity are as follows.

1. According to ESOP Scheme, total exercised warrants during the year 2015 is equivalent to 6.49 million shares; therefore, the issued

and paid-up ordinary share during the year ended 31 December 2015 increased by 0.65 million baht together with marked increase

in premium from exercise of warrants of 11.72 million Baht.

2. The adoption of Financial Reporting Standards no.2, “Share-based Payment” in 2015 has affected the company’s capital reserve

increased by 1.98 million Baht.

3. Main increase in retained earnings in the shareholders’ equity as of 31 December 2015 derived from net profit after tax amounting to

61.19 million Baht, but retained earnings was partially deducted 39.38 million Baht of dividend distribution according to a resolution

of the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders in April 2015.

3. Financial Ratio Analysis

3.1 Profitability Ratios
Gross Margin Ratio (%)

100.00%

80.00%

60.00%

53.45% 52.49%
48.96%

46.89% 42.39%

40.00%

20.00%

0.00%

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015

In 2015, the company and its subsidiary’s gross margin ratio
was 52.49% compared to 42.39% of gross margin ratio in
2014. Significant increase in gross margin ratio was that most
of revenues from information services contributed higher
profit than other operating income. Thus, gross margin in
2015 was higher than an average of gross margin ratio for the
period of 5-year. Despite higher revenues from special
projects in 2014 than 2015, its gross margin in 2014 became
lower profit. Since the company had to spend a lot of money
to hire IT consultants and purchase IT equipment from local

and overseas.
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Net Profit Margin Ratio (%)
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Return on Assets Ratio (ROA) (%)

21.74% 10.04% .
14.81%
11.36%
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
Return on Equity Ratio (ROE) (%)
33.20% 0
31.21% 30.39%
23.39%
16.37%
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In 2015, the company and its subsidiary’s net profit margin
ratio was 17.91% and 17.36% in 2014. There was a slight
increase of 3% in net profit margin ratio. It was mainly from
growth of revenues from online services in 2015, but a
significant drop of revenues from special projects in 2015

compared to same revenues in 2014 as explained above.

In 2015, return on assets ratio was 11.36%, a slight decrease
compared to same ratio in 2014. The company’s non-current
assets in 2015 increased by 6% compared to its amount in
2014 due to purchase of computer hardware and software.
On the contrary, the company’s current assets in 2015 slightly
dropped by 2% compared to current assets in 2014. Thus, a
total of assets in 2015 was higher than total assets last year.
In addition, the company’s profit in 2015 dropped from 2014
by 23% approximately. Those reasons had an effect on lower
ROA ratio in 2015.

In 2015, the company and its subsidiary’s return on equity
ratio dropped 30% when compared to ROE in 2014. Major
variance came from a decrease in consolidated profit after
tax of 23% in 2015 compared to net profit in 2014. Moreover,
shareholders’ equity at the end of 2015 rose from the use of
exercised warrants under ESOP Scheme during the year
ended 31 December 2015. Consequently, it showed a
decrease in the company and its subsidiary’s return on equity

ratio in 2015 when compared to ROE last year.
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As of 31 December 2015, the company and its subsidiary’s
current ratio were 2.10 times. It was that the company was
able to easily make current debt payments than last year. A
decrease of 17% in current liabilities as of 31 December 2015
compared to its amount in 2014 because of full repayment of
short term debt in 2015.

As of 31 December 2015, the company and its subsidiary’s
debt to equity ratio was 0.44 times, a decrease of 24.14%
compared to D/E ratio in 2014. It showed that the company’s
financial status was stable and resulted in higher D/E ratio at
the end of 2015 than 2014. Main reason was that the company

fully repaid short term loan in 2015 as described above.

In the past, the company had declared dividend rate at 81%
of an average of dividend payout ratio. In 2014, the company
had a plan to reserve cash for the expansion of business;
therefore, it showed lower dividend payout ratio at that time.
In 2015, the management plans to propose Board of Directors
and shareholders to approve annual dividend payout ratio of
78% from net profit in 2015 which increased by 56%
compared to dividend payout ratio in 2014. (The annual
dividend payment is subject to the approval of the company’s
Annual General Meeting of shareholders 2016 held in March
2016).
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3.4 Asset Management Ratio
As of 31 December 2015, both consolidated statement of financial position and the separate financial statement showed 80.85
million Baht of trade accounts receivable which increased by 42 million Baht from last year. Although it had overdue debts by 31%

of total outstanding debts as at December 31, 2015, most of the outstanding debts were collected in February 2016.

Ml Current
% B 1-30Days
M 31-60Days

91 - 180 Days

3.5 Factors which may affect the company’s future operations and financial position
In 2015, the global economy recovered amid vulnerabilities as the US economy grew at 3.0 — 3.5% while Europe was still burdened
with structural problems which served as an impediment to growth. There were uncertainties in Japan as the effects of economic
stimulus remained to be seen. Meanwhile, the slowdown in the Chinese economy has caused the global decrease in oil and
mineral prices. However, the expansion of middle class with higher purchasing power means that China will remain as one of the
largest market for years to come. CLMV countries (Cambodia, Laos, Myanmar and Vietnam) is Thailand’s main trading partners
and continues to grow while the establishment of AEC at the end of 2015 will reduce trade restrictions and give member states
more bargaining power. Government spending is expected to increase as the private sector rushes to invest in mega projects that
are recently approved while the Bank of Thailand is providing relief on some monetary policies to aid the economic recovery.
Nonetheless, the slowing export, lack of labour, fear of political instability and reduction in private consumption remain a hindrance
to growth as household debt remains at a high level while financial institutions are more cautious in loan approvals which puts the

country at a relatively low growth of 0.7% compared to the previous year.

As a result of the economic conditions explained above, the company pursues marketing strategy both domestically and regionally
by developing infrastructure that support the use of information which coincides with the government’s initiatives in reducing cost
and enhancing competitiveness of businesses that use digital technology. In addition, the company has employed the use of big
data in developing solutions that helps with decisions on risk management, cost reduction and new opportunities that can be
linked on a regional level. By this, the company has already begun with employee training for service support, finding funding in
order to maintain liquidity and investing in new technologies and other large projects as part of the company’s strategy for

sustainable growth.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ DUTIES ON FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE 2015

The Board of Directors of Business Online Public Company Limited understands the responsibility of ensuring integrity, sufficient, relevant and
transparent disclosure of the company’s fiscal year 2015 financial statements. Such disclosure abides by the generally accepted accounting principles,
ensuring the integrity of the company’s operations/ appropriate accounting policies have been put in place and adhered to on a consistent basis while
due consideration has been placed on the process of preparing the company and the company’s consolidated fiscal year 2015 financial statements
including other information that has been included in this year’'s annual report.

To enhance stakeholder trust, the Board appointed an Audit Committee comprising of Independent Directors with qualifications as stipulated by the
guidelines of Stock Exchange of Thailand. Ensuring that the company provides sufficient, transparent, correct and appropriate financial disclosure
along with information regarding related party transactions is a key function of the committee. Ensuring appropriate, sufficient and effective risk
management guidelines, appropriate internal control procedures along with robust internal audit processes are also the functions of the committee.
Legal compliance is at the forefront of the Board’s concerns therefore the committee is also charged with ensuring that the company’s operations
adheres to all relevant external and internal legal, guidelines and policies.

The Board of Directors believes that the company and the company’s consolidated fiscal year 2015 financial statements ending 31 December 2015,
which has been reviewed by the Audit Committee, management and the company’s financial auditor to be correct, complete, appropriate, in
compliance with generally accepted accounting practices and employs appropriate accounting policies on a consistent basis. The financial disclosure
is deemed to be transparent, provides an appropriate level of disclosure and is in compliance with all the relevant legal, guidelines and policies.

(Mr. Noravat Suwarn) (Mr. Jack Min Intanate)

Chairman of the Board Executive Chairman
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AUDIT COMMITTEE’S REPORT

Dear Shareholders

The Audit Committee (“The Audit Committee”) of Business Online Public Company Limited (“The company”) comprises of 4 independent
Directors as follows:

1. Mr. Anant Tangtatswas* Independent Director and Chairman of Audit Committee
2. Ms. Manida Zimmerman Independent Director and Audit Committee Member
3. Ms. Suteera Sripaibulya Independent Director and Audit Committee Member
4. Asst.Prof. Karndee  Leopairote Independent Director and Audit Committee Member

* Director with experience in accounting, finance, and auditing

Each of the Directors meets the qualification mandated therein the Audit Committee Charter in accordance with the Good Governance Guideline from
the SEC.

In 2015, the Audit Committee had quarterly meetings with Internal Auditors and Auditors, together with the management and the accounting team
in attendance as appropriate, to audit the financial statements and exchange recommendations to ensure the financial statements are prepared in
accordance with the Generally Accepted Accounting Standard with sufficient information disclosure. The Audit Committee does not found any practice
conflicting with the regulations and law related to the company. In 2015, there were 4 Audit Committee meetings. The Audit Committee informed the
Board of Directors of the result of the work conducted by the Audit Committee in every Board of Director meeting. The key areas are as follows:

-

.Financial statements audit
The Audit Committee audited the quarterly, annual, and consolidated financial statements with the auditors, management, and Internal Audit to
present to the Board of Directors. The Audit Committee also meet with the auditors without the management team in attendance at least once a

year.

N

. Potential conflict of interest
The Audit Committee reviewed the list of potential conflict of interests between the company and its subsidiaries based on the reasonableness
principle and considered the benefits of stakeholders, including the sufficient disclosure in accordance to the rules from the SEC.

w

.Internal control and risk management

The Audit Committee reviewed the internal control adequacy of the company’s and its subsidiaries from the report prepared by Internal Audit
Department, and Auditors to assess the sufficiency and effectiveness of the internal control and the management of key risks.

4.Law and regulations

The Audit Committee reviewed the business conducted in compliance with the law and regulations.

o

Good Governance

The Audit Committee audited the company to ensure good governance for transparency and confidence of stakeholders.

(o2}

.Internal Audit

The Audit Committee reviewed the objective and scope of the work and approved the Internal Audit plan for 2016. The Audit Committee also
provided recommendations and acknowledged the result of the audit and recommendations for 2015 from both the auditors and Internal Audit.
The Audit Committee presented Audit Committee report to the Board of Directors every time after the meeting and provided recommendations to
the management team, which the management have implemented as appropriate according to the guideline provided by the Audit Committee and
SEC.
7. Appointment of the company’s auditor and remuneration
The consideration and appointment of the auditor and the remuneration was conducted based on the qualification and expertise of the auditors in
accordance to the amount of work required for the fiscal year 2016. The Audit Committee proposed to the Board of Directors to appoint EY
Company Limited to be the company’s Auditor with the following auditors:

Mr. Wichart Lokatekrawee C.P.A. Registration No. 4451 and/or
Ms. Kamontip Lertwitworatep C.P.A. Registration No. 4377 and/or
Mrs. Sarinda Hirunprasurtwutti C.P.A. Registration No. 4799

The 3 auditors has never signed on the financial statement of the company and its subsidairy.

The Audit Committee believed that, in 2015, the company reported financial statements and operations with sufficient internal control and business
conduct in compliance with the law and regulations mandated by the SEC. The internal control and risk management is appropriate and effective.
The company provided appropriate and sufficient disclosure of the interconnectivity and conducted of business within reliable means and good

governance.

Mr. Anant Tangtatswas
Chairman of the Audit Committee



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

161
162
164
166
168
170



Independent Auditor’s Report

161

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Business Online Public Company Limited

| have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Business Online Public Company Limited and its subsidiary, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015, and the related consolidated statements of
comprehensive income, changes in shareholders’ equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information, and have also audited the separate financial statements of Business Online Public Company

Limited for the same period.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with Thai Financial
Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’'s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. | conducted my audit in accordance with Thai
Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that | comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating

the overall presentation of the financial statements.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Business Online

Public Company Limited and its subsidiary and of Business Online Public Company Limited as at 31 December 2015, and their financial

performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards.

Siriwan Suratepin
Certified Public Accountant (Thailand) No. 4604

EY Office Limited
Bangkok: 17 February 2016
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Business Online Public Company Limited and Its Subsidiary
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at 31 December 2015

(Unit : Baht)

statements statements
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7 25,779,380 64,066,276 25,106,672 63,699,711
Short-term investments 8 60,045,004 - 60,045,004 =
Trade accounts receivable 9 80,848,115 39,101,199 74,263,898 39,101,199
Accrued income 127,740,286 218,298,371 130,410,735 218,298,371
Other current assets 32,813,082 13,250,796 32,803,585 118,287 519
Total current assets 327,225,867 334,716,642 322,629,894 334,336,800
Non-current assets
Restricted bank deposits 10 17,200,100 17,200,100 17,200,100 17,200,100
Investments in subsidiary 11 - - 999,930 399,930
Investment in associated company 12 31,265,992 31,016,864 30,000,000 30,000,000
Other long-term investment 13 80,805,288 80,805,288 80,805,288 80,805,288
Building improvement and equipment 14 21,568,506 21,017,304 21,568,506 21,017,303
Intangible assets 15 52,485,848 41,448,433 52,446,544 41,382,879
Deferred tax assets 23 6,353,271 6,427,786 6,284,345 6,427,786
Other non-current assets 1,798,423 1,659,778 1,798,423 1,559,778
Total non-current assets 211,477,428 199,475,553 211,103,136 198,793,064
Total assets 538,703,295 534,192,195 533,733,030 533,129,864

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
As at 31 December 2015
(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements
Note 2015 2014 2015 2014

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity

Current liabilities

Bill of exchange 16 - 40,000,000 = 40,000,000
Trade and other payables 17 44,787,322 57,562,533 40,924,606 57,512,533
Income tax payable 382,235 4,989,235 382,235 4,989,235
Other current liabilities
Unearned revenue 72,157,064 48,906,747 71,721,233 48,906,747
Information utilization fee payable 25,000,000 20,000,000 25,000,000 20,000,000
Current portion of liabilities under financial
lease agreements 18 = 1,156,924 - 1,156,924
Others 13,530,050 15,089,796 13,504,832 15,089,796
Total current liabilities 155,856,671 187,705,235 151,532,906 187,655,235
Non-current liabilities
Reserve for long-term employee benefits 19 9,002,084 8,157,231 9,002,084 8,157,231
Total non-current liabilities 9,002,084 8,157,231 9,002,084 8,157,231
Total liabilities 164,858,755 195,862,466 160,534,990 195,812,466
Shareholders’ equity
Share capital 20
Registered
826,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 0.10 each 82,600,000 82,600,000 82,600,000 82,600,000

Issued and fully paid up
793,993,250 ordinary shares of Baht 0.10 each
(31 December 2014: 787,500,000 ordinary shares of

Baht 0.10 each) 79,399,325 78,750,000 79,399,325 78,750,000
Share premium 20 88,867,513 77,149,671 88,867,513 77,149,671
Capital reserve for share-based payment transactions 20 4,276,327 2,296,560 4,276,327 2,296,560
Retained earnings

Appropriated - statutory reserve 21 8,260,000 7,875,000 8,260,000 7,875,000

Unappropriated 193,041,353 172,258,470 192,394,875 171,246,167
Equity attributable to owners of the company 373,844,518 338,329,701 373,198,040 337,317,398
Non-controlling interests of the subsidiary 22 28 - -
Total shareholders’ equity 373,844,540 338,329,729 373,198,040 337,317,398
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity 538,703,295 534,192,195 533,733,030 533,129,864

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Business Online Public Company Limited and Its Subsidiary
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2015

(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements

Note 2015 2014 2015 2014

Profit or loss:

Revenues
Online information service income 249,347,810 230,748,404 243,506,318 230,748,404
Other service income 74,420,060 209,429,784 76,458,180 209,429,784
Other income 17,941,918 15,504,843 17,940,451 15,502,818
Total revenues 341,709,788 455,683,031 337,904,949 455,681,006
Expenses 22
Costs of services 153,822,686 253,594,265 150,041,976 253,594,265
Administrative expenses 116,505,214 103,425,080 115,797,200 103,547,595
Total expenses 270,327,900 357,019,345 265,839,176 357,141,860
Profit before share of profit from investment in associate,

finance cost and income tax expenses 71,381,888 98,663,686 72,065,773 98,539,146
Share of profit from investment in associate 249,128 201,862 - -
Profit before finance cost and income tax expenses 71,631,016 98,865,548 72,065,773 98,539,146
Finance cost (552,085) (2,828,821) (552,085) (2,828,821)
Profit before income tax expenses 71,078,931 96,036,727 71,513,688 95,710,325
Income tax expenses 23 (9,891,874) (16,909,541) (9,960,800) (16,909,541)
Profit for the year 61,187,057 79,127,186 61,552,888 78,800,784

Profit attributable to:
Equity holders of the company 61,187,063 79,127,191 61,552,888 78,800,784
Non-controlling interests of the subsidiary (6) (5)

61,187,057 79,127,186

Earnings per share 24

Basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to equity holders of the company 0.08 0.10 0.08 0.10
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (shares) 790,706,697 787,500,000 790,706,697 787,500,000

Diluted earnings per share
Profit attributable to equity holders of the company 0.08 0.10 0.08 0.10
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (shares) 796,745,628 792,621,560 796,745,628 792,621,560

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Unit : Baht)
Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements
\[o] =} 2015 2014 2015 2014
Profit for the year 61,187,057 79,127,186 61,552,888 78,800,784
Other comprehensive income:
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Actuarial loss 19 (805,225) - (805,225) -
Less: Income tax effect 23 161,045 - 161,045 -
Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods - net of income tax (644,180) - (644,180) -
Other comprehensive income for the year (644,180) - (644,180) -
Total comprehensive income for the year 60,542,877 79,127,186 60,908,708 78,800,784
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Equity holders of the company 60,542,883 79,127,191 60,908,708 78,800,784

Non-controlling interests of the subsidiaries (6) (5)
60,542,877 79,127,186

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Business Online Public Company Limited and Its Subsidiary
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
For the year ended 31 December 2015

(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial statements

Equity attributable to owner of the company Equity
: Retained earnings Total [attributable
Capital

equity
Appropri- attribut-
ated - | Unappro- able to

Statutory | priated su
reserve the com- | laries

pany

Issued reserve for
and paid Share share-
up share | premium based

capital payment

Balance as at 1 January

2014 78,750,000 77,149,671 = 7,875,000 132,506,279 296,280,950 33 296,280,983
Profit for the year - - - - 79,127,191 79,127,191 (5) 79,127,186
Other comprehensive income

for the year - - - - - - - -

Total comprehensive income

for the year - - - - 79,127,191 79,127,191 (5) 79,127,186
Recognition of expenses

against capital reserve for

share-based payment

transactions 20 - - 2,296,560 - - 2,296,560 - 2,296,560
Dividend paid 28 - = = = (39,375,000) (39,375,000) - (39,375,000)
Balance as at 31 December

2014 78,750,000 77,149,671 2,296,560 7,875,000 172,258,470 338,329,701 28 338,329,729

Balance as at 1 January

2015 78,750,000 77,149,671 2,296,560 7,875,000 172,258,470 338,329,701 28 338,329,729
Profit for the year - - - = 61,187,063 61,187,063 (6) 61,187,057
Other comprehensive income

for the year - - - - (644,180)  (644,180) - (644,180)
Total comprehensive income

for the year - - - - 60,542,883 60,542,883 (6) 60,542,877
Ordinary share issued from

excersied warrants 20 649,325 11,717,842 (1,003,979) - - 11,363,188 - 11,363,188

Recognition of expenses
against capital reserve for

share-based payment

transactions 20 - - 2,983,746 - - 2,983,746 - 2,983,746
Legal reserve 21 - - - 385,000 (385,000) - - -
Dividend paid 28 - - - - (39,375,000) (39,375,000) - (39,375,000)
Balance as at 31 December
2015 79,399,325 88,867,513 4,276,327 8,260,000 193,041,353 373,844,518 22 373,844,540

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Unit : Baht)

Balance as at 1 January 2014

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for

the year

Total comprehensive income for

the year

Recognition of expenses against capital

reserve for share-based payment

transactions
Dividend paid

20
28

Balance as at 31 December 2014

Balance as at 1 January 2015

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for

the year

Total comprehensive income for

the year

Ordinary share issued from excersied

warrants

20

Recognition of expenses against capital

reserve for share-based payment

transactions
Legal reserve
Dividend paid

20
21
28

Balance as at 31 December 2015

Separate financial statements

Capital
Issued and
aid Up Share reserve for : Total
P premium |share-based |APPropriated | | - |shareholders’
share _ Statut HEappIO)
capital payment autoy 1 priated equity
transactions |  reserve
78,750,000 77,149,671 - 7,875,000 131,820,383 295,595,054
- - - = 78,800,784 78,800,784
- - - = 78,800,784 78,800,784
- - 2,296,560 ® - 2,296,560
- - - - (39,375,000) (39,375,000)
78,750,000 77,149,671 2,296,560 7,875,000 171,246,167 337,317,398
78,750,000 77,149,671 2,296,560 7,875,000 171,246,167 337,317,398
- - = = 61,552,888 61,552,888
- - - = (644,180) (644,180)
- . - - 60,908,708 60,908,708
649,325 11,717,842  (1,003,979) - - 11,363,188
- - 2,983,746 = - 2,983,746
- - - 385,000 (385,000) .
- - = - (39,375,000)  (39,375,000)
79,399,325 88,867,513 4,276,327 8,260,000 192,394,875 373,198,040

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Business Online Public Company Limited and Its Subsidiary
CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2015

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to
net cash provided by (paid from) operating activities:
Gain on changes in value of short-term investments
Depreciation and amortisation
Share of profit from investment in associated company
Expenses for share-based payment transactions
Provision for long-term employee benefits
Unrealised loss on exchange
Provision for penalty delay
Allowance for doubtful accounts (reversal)
Allowance for impairment loss on investment in subsidiary (reversal)
(Gain) loss on sales of equipment
Gain on sales of computer software
Dividend income
Interest expenses
Interest income
Profit from operating activities before changes
in operating assets and liabilities
Decrease (increase) in operating assets:
Trade accounts receivable
Accrued income
Other current assets
Other non current assets
Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Trade and other payables
Unearned revenue
Information utilization fee payable
Other current liabilities
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash paid for long-term employee benefits
Cash paid for interest expenses
Cash paid for corporate income tax

Net cash flows from operating activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements

2015 2014 2015 2014

71,078,931 96,036,727 71,513,688 95,710,325
(45,004) = (45,004) =
19,788,531 18,408,681 19,762,281 18,382,431
(249,128) (201,862) = =
2,983,746 2,296,560 2,983,746 2,296,560
1,145,628 1,135,586 1,145,628 1,135,586
260,867 67,744 250,382 67,744
11,520,655 1,047,800 11,520,655 1,047,800
(1,415,113) 1,415,113 (1,415,113) 1,415,113
= = (600,000) 200,000
(1,351) 10,039 (1,302) 10,039
(1,557) = (1,557) =
(17,456,250) (15,006,250)  (17,456,250)  (15,006,250)
552,085 2,828,821 552,085 2,828,821
(460,468) (471,643) (459,050) (469,617)
87,701,572 107,567,316 87,750,189 107,618,552
(40,376,674) (1,015,532)  (33,792,457) (1,015,532)
90,558,085 (38,549,060) 87,887,636  (38,549,060)
(19,571,645) 34,117,102 (19,575,425) 34,117,111
(238,645) 35,644 (238,645) 35,644
(30,860,272) 23,593,155  (34,662,503) 23,593,155
23,250,317 1,155,470 22,814,486 1,155,470
5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000 5,000,000
(1,578,773) 4,488,960 (1,603,991) 4,488,960
113,883,965 136,393,055 113,579,290 136,444,300
(1,106,000) = (1,106,000) =
(5652,085) (2,828,821) (552,085) (2,828,821)
(14,263,314) (17,645111)  (14,263,314)  (17,645,111)
97,962,566 115,919,123 97,657,891 115,970,368
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2015
(Unit : Baht)

Consolidated financial Separate financial
statements statements
2015 2014 2015 2014

Cash flows from investing activities

Increase in short-term investments (60,000,000) - (60,000,000) -
Increase in restricted bank deposits - (200,000) - (200,000)
Cash paid for investment in other company - (52,941,177) - (52,941,177)
Cash paid for purchase of building improvement and equipment (8,236,588) (5,882,066) (8,236,588) (5,882,066)
Cash received from sales of equipment 16,347 9,907 16,297 9,907
Cash paid for purchase of computer software (16,807,156) (13,022,901)  (16,807,156)  (13,022,901)
Cash received from sales of computer software 1,567 - 1,567 -
Dividend received 17,456,250 15,006,250 17,456,250 15,006,250
Interest received 469,827 493,271 468,409 491,245
Net cash flows used in investing activities (67,099,753) (56,536,716)  (67,101,221)  (56,538,742)
Cash flows from financing activities

Cash received from exercised warrants 11,363,188 = 11,363,188 -
Increase (decrease) in bills of exchange (40,000,000) 40,000,000  (40,000,000) 40,000,000
Decrease in short-term loans from financial institutions - (30,816,000) - (30,816,000)
Cash paid for liabilities under financial agreement (1,156,924 (1,466,757) (1,156,924) (1,466,757)

)

Dividend paid (39,355,973)  (39,356,999)  (39,355,973)  (39,356,999)
)
)

Net cash flows used in financing activities (69,149,709 (31,639,756) (69,149,709) (31,639,756)
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (38,286,896 27,742,651 (38,593,039) 27,791,870
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 64,066,276 36,323,625 63,699,711 35,907,841
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 25,779,380 64,066,276 25,106,672 63,699,711

Supplemental cash flow information:

Non-cash related transactions from operating activities

Increase in payable for purchase of building improvement and equipment 4,217,916 643,317 4,217,916 643,317
Increase (decrease) in payable for puchase of computer software 2,130,494 (1,145,337) 2,130,494 (1,145,337)
Increase in dividend payable 19,027 18,001 19,027 18,001

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Business Online Public Company Limited and Its Subsidiary
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2015

1. General information

Business Online Public Company Limited (“the company”) is a public company incorporated and domiciled in Thailand. Its major
shareholders are Advanced Research Group Co., Ltd., which is incorporate in Thailand, and Keppel Communications Pte. Ltd., which is
incorporated in Singapore. Its principal activity is service provider and developer of local and global financial information system and as
an online and offline business information service provider as well as consulting service and database management. The registered office

of the company is at 900/8-10 SVOA Tower, Rama Ill Road, Kwang Bangpongpang, Khet Yannawa, Bangkok.

2. Basis of preparation

2.1 The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Thai Financial Reporting Standards enunciated under the Accounting
Professions Act B.E. 2547 and their presentation has been made in compliance with the stipulations of the Notification of the Department
of Business Development dated 28 September 2011, issued under the Accounting Act B.E. 2543.
The financial statements in Thai language are the official statutory financial statements of the company. The financial statements in
English language have been translated from the Thai language financial statements.
The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where otherwise disclosed in the accounting policies.
2.2 Basis of consolidation

a) The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of Business Online Public Company Limited (“the company”)

and the following subsidiary company (“the subsidiary”):

Nat f TR GF Percentage of shareholding

g ature o ountry o

Company’s name business incorporation 2015 2014
Percent Percent

D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd. Business Information Service Thai 99.99 99.99

b) The company is deemed to have control over an investee or subsidiary if it has rights, or is exposed, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee, and it has the ability to direct the activities that affect the amount of its return.

c) Subsidiary is fully consolidated, being the date on which the company obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date when such control ceases.

d) The financial statements of the subsidiary are prepared using the same significant accounting policies as the company.

e) Material balances and transactions between the company and its subsidiary company have been eliminated from the
consolidated financial statements.

f)  Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets of the subsidiary that are not held by the company
and are presented separately in the consolidated profit or loss and within equity in the consolidated statement of financial position.

2.3 The separate financial statements present investments in subsidiary and associates under the cost method.

3. New financial reporting standards

Below is a summary of financial reporting standards that became effective in the current accounting year and those that will become
effective in the future.
(a) Financial reporting standard that became effective in the current year

The company has adopted the revised (revised 2014) and new financial reporting standards issued by the Federation of Accounting

Professions which become effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2015. These financial reporting standards were
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aimed at alignment with the corresponding International Financial Reporting Standards, with most of the changes directed towards
revision of wording and terminology, and provision of interpretations and accounting guidance to users of standards. The adoption of
these financial reporting standards does not have any significant impact on the company’s financial statements. However, some of
these standards involve changes to key principles, which are summarised below:
TAS 19 (revised 2014) Employee Benefits
This revised standard requires that the entity recognize actuarial gains and losses immediately in other comprehensive income while
the former standard allowed the entity to recognise such gains and losses immediately in either profit or loss, or other comprehensive
income, or to recognise them gradually in profit or loss.
The company has changed the recognition of actuarial gains and losses in the current year from an immediate recognition in profit or
loss to an immediate recognition in other comprehensive income. This transaction does not have any significant impact to financial
statements, presented as comparative information, because the company did not recognise actuarial gains and losses in prior year.
TFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
TFRS 10 prescribes requirements for the preparation of consolidated financial statements and replaces the content of TAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements dealing with consolidated financial statements. This standard changes the principles
used in considering whether control exists. Under this standard, an investor is deemed to have control over an investee if it has rights,
or is exposed, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and it has the ability to direct the activities that affect the amount
of its returns, even if it holds less than half of the shares or voting rights. This important change requires the management to exercise a
lot of judgement when reviewing whether the company has control over investees and determining which entities have to be included
in preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
This standard does not have any impact on the company’s and its subsidiary’s financial statements.
TFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
This standard stipulates disclosures relating to an entity’s interests in subsidiary, joint arrangements and associates, including structured
entities. This standard therefore has no financial impact on the financial statements of the company and its subsidiary.
TFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
This standard provides guidance on how to measure fair value and stipulates disclosures related to fair value measurement. Entities
are to apply the guidance under this standard if they are required by other financial reporting standards to measure their assets or liabilities
at fair value. The effects of the adoption of this standard are to be recognised prospectively.
This standard does not have any significant impact on the company’s and its subsidiary’s financial statements.

(b) Financial reporting standard that will become effective in the future
During the current year, the Federation of Accounting Professions issued a number of the revised (revised 2015) and new financial
reporting standards and accounting treatment guidance which is effective for fiscal years beginning on or after 1 January 2016. These
financial reporting standards were aimed at alignment with the corresponding International Financial Reporting Standards. The company’s
management believes that the revised and new financial reporting standards and accounting treatment guidance will not have any

significant impact on the financial statements when it is initially applied.

4. Significant accounting policies

4.1 Revenue recognition

Rendering of services

Revenues from purchases of limited numbers of hours of access to the company’s information services by customers, granting
users access to information on juristic persons and business news, are generally recognised on a straight-line basis over the period
of usage stipulated in the agreement. This method is used because such revenues are derived from sales made direct to customers
rather than through distribution agents and because several types of service are provided to customers simultaneously over a
period which has a fixed termination date. The company therefore believes that there is no material difference between recognising
revenue based on a straight-line basis and recognising it on hours actually used.

Service income under long-term contracts is recognised on the basis of percentage of completion. The percentage of completion

is determined based on services performed to date as a percentage of total services to be performed.
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4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

Interest income
Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis based on the effective interest rate.
Dividends
Dividends are recognised when the right to receive the dividends is established
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and at banks, and all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three
months or less and not subject to withdrawal restrictions.
Trade accounts receivable
Trade accounts receivable are stated at the net realisable value. Allowance for doubtful accounts is provided for the estimated
losses that may be incurred in collection of receivables. The allowance is generally based on collection experience and analysis
of debt aging.
Investments
a) Investments in non-marketable equity securities, which the company classifies as other investments, are stated at cost net of

allowance for loss on diminution in value (if any).
b) Investments in associates are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method.
c) Investments in subsidiary and associates are accounted for in the separate financial statements using the cost method.
Building improvement and Equipment/Depreciation
Building improvement and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and allowance for loss on impairment of
assets (if any). Depreciation of building improvement and equipment is calculated by reference to their costs, on the straight-line
basis over the following estimated useful lives:
Building improvement 5 years
Equipment and others 3 -5years
Depreciation is included in determining income.
No depreciation is provided on building under improvement and assets under installation.
An item of building improvement and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on disposal of an asset is included in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
Intangible assets
Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses (if any).
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised on a systematic basis over the economic useful life and tested for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method of
such intangible assets are reviewed at least at each financial year end. The amortisation expense is charged to profit or loss.
A summary of the intangible assets with finite useful lives is as follows:

Useful lives

Computer software 3, 5and 10 years
Related party transactions
Related parties comprise enterprises and individuals that control, or are controlled by, the company, whether directly or indirectly,
or which are under common control with the company.
They also include associated companies and individuals which directly or indirectly own a voting interest in the company that
gives them significant influence over the company, key management personnel, directors, and officers with authority in the planning
and direction of the company’s operations.
Long-term leases
Leases of equipment which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance
leases are capitalised at the lower of the fair value of the leased assets and the present value of the minimum lease payments. The

outstanding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included in long-term payables, while the interest element is charged to
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4.9

4.10

412

4.13

profit or loss over the lease period. The assets acquired under finance leases is depreciated over the useful life of the assets.
Leases of equipment which do not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating leases.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in profit or loss on a straight line basis over the lease term.

In cases where assets are sold and then leased back, whereby the transaction is a kind of finance lease, any excess of sales
proceeds over the carrying amount of the assets is recorded as deferred revenue and amortised over the lease term.

Foreign currencies

The consolidated and separate financial statements are presented in Baht, which is also and measured using the company’s
functional currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into Baht at the exchange rate ruling at the end of reporting
period.

Gains and losses on exchange are included in determining income.

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the company performs impairment reviews in respect of the building improvement and
equipment and other intangible assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that an asset may be impaired.
An impairment loss is recognised when the recoverable amount of an asset, which is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use, is less than the carrying amount.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The company recognises share-based payment transactions when services from employees are rendered, based on the fair
value of the share options on the grant date. The expenses are recorded over the vesting period, in accordance with the conditions
regarding length of service rendered by employees stipulated in the share-based payment plan, together with a corresponding
increase in “Capital reserve for share-based payment transactions” in shareholders’ equity.

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

Salaries, wages, bonuses and contributions to the social security fund are recognised as expenses when incurred.
Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

The company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund. The fund is monthly contributed by employees and
by the company. The fund’s assets are held in a separate trust fund and the company’s contributions are recognised as
expenses when incurred.

Defined benefit plans

The company has obligations in respect of the severance payments it must make to employees upon retirement under labor law.
The company treats these severance payment obligations as a defined benefit plan.

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined by a professionally qualified independent actuary based on actuarial
techniques, using the projected unit credit method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from post-employment benefits are recognised immediately in other comprehensive income.
The defined benefits liability comprises the present value of the defined benefit obligation less unrecognised past service cost
and unrecognised actuarial gains or losses.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the company has a present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.
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4.14 Income tax
Income tax expense represents the sum of corporate income tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax
Current income tax is provided in the accounts at the amount expected to be paid to the taxation authorities, based on taxable
profits determined in accordance with tax legislation.
Deferred tax
Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts at the end of each reporting period, using the tax rates enacted at the end of the reporting period.
The company and its subsidiaries recognise deferred tax liabilities for all taxable temporary differences while they recognise
deferred tax assets for all deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profit will be available against which such deductible temporary differences and tax losses carried forward can be
utilised.
At each reporting date, the company and its subsidiaries review and reduce the carrying amount of deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised.
The company and its subsidiaries record deferred tax directly to shareholders’ equity if the tax relates to items that are recorded
directly to shareholders’ equity.
4.15 Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between buyer
and seller (market participants) at the measurement date. The company and its subsidiary apply a quoted market price in an
active market to measure their assets and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value by relevant financial reporting
standards. Except in case of no active market of an identical asset or liability or when a quoted market price is not available, the
company and its subsidiary measure fair value using valuation technique that are appropriate in the circumstances and
maximises the use of relevant observable inputs related to assets and liabilities that are required to be measured at fair value.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair

value hierarchy into three levels based on categorise of input to be used in fair value measurement as follows:

Level 1 - Use of quoted market prices in an observable active market for such assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Use of other observable inputs for such assets or liabilities, whether directly or indirectly
Level 3 - Use of unobservable inputs such as estimates of future cash flows

At the end of each reporting period, the company and its subsidiary determine whether transfers have occurred between levels
within the fair value hierarchy for assets and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period that are measured at fair value on a

recurring basis.

5. Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with financial reporting standards at times requires management to make subjective

judgements and estimates regarding matters that are inherently uncertain. These judgements and estimates affect reported amounts and

disclosures; and actual results could differ from these estimates. Significant judgements and estimates are as follows:

Leases

In determining whether a lease is to be classified as an operating lease or finance lease, the management is required to use judgement

regarding whether significant risk and rewards of ownership of the leased asset has been transferred, taking into consideration terms and

conditions of the arrangement.

Allowance for doubtful accounts

In determining an allowance for doubtful accounts, the management needs to make judgement and estimates based upon, among other

things, past collection history, aging profile of outstanding debts and the prevailing economic condition.
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Impairment of investments

The company treats investments as impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below their cost or
where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement of the
management.

Building improvement and equipment/Depreciation

In determining depreciation of building improvement and equipment, the management is required to make estimates of the useful lives and
residual values of the building improvement and equipment and to review estimate useful lives and residual values when there are any
changes.

In addition, the management is required to review building improvement and equipment for impairment on a periodical basis and record
impairment losses when it is determined that their recoverable amount is lower than the carrying amount. This requires judgements
regarding forecast of future revenues and expenses relating to the assets subject to the review.

Intangible assets

The initial recognition and measurement of intangible assets, and subsequent impairment testing, require management to make estimates
of cash flows to be generated by the asset or the cash generating units and to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences and losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of estimate future taxable
profits.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

In estimation fair value for share-based payment transactions, the management is required to exercise judgment and to apply various
assumptions, including the expected life of the share options, share price volatility and dividend yield.

Post-employment benefits under defined benefit plans

The obligation under the defined benefit plan is determined based on actuarial techniques. Such determination is made based on various

assumptions, including discount rate, future salary increase rate, mortality rate and staff turnover rate.
6. Related party transactions

During the years, the company and its subsidiary had significant business transactions with related parties. Such transactions, which are
summarized below, arose in the ordinary course of business and were concluded on commercial terms and bases agreed upon between

the company and those related parties.
(Unit : Million Baht)

Consolidated Separate financial
financial statements statements Pricing policy
2015 2014 2015 2014

Transaction with subsidiary
(eliminated from the consolidated
financial statements)
Service income = = 8 = Mutually agreed prices as stipulated in the
agreements

Transaction with related parties

Services income 23 24 23 24 Market price, Cost plus margin, Mutually
agreed prices as stipulated in the agreements

Services fee expense 9 1 8 1M Mutually agreed prices as stipulated in the
agreements

Cost of services 8 86 8 88 Mutually agreed prices as stipulated in the
agreements

Purchase of equipment 4 - 4 - Market price
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As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the balances of accounts between the company and those related companies are as follows:

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate financial
financial statements statements
2015 2014 2015 2014

Trade accounts receivable (Note 9)

Parent company = 1,310 = 1,310
Related companies (Common shareholders and/or directors) 6,566 4,846 6,566 4,846
Total trade accounts receivable 6,566 6,156 6,566 6,156

Accrued income
Related companies (Common shareholders and/or directors) 1,468 1,463 4,178 1,463
1,468 1,463 4,178 1,463

Trade and other payables (Note 17)

Parent company 1,088 2,452 1,088 2,452
Related companies (Common shareholders and/or directors) 4,761 1,468 4,758 1,468
Total trade and other payables 5,849 3,920 5,846 3,920

Directors and management’s benefits
During the year ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, the company and its subsidiary had employee benefit expenses payable to their

directors and management as below.

(Unit : Million Baht)

Consolidated / Separate
financial statements

Short-term employee benefits 19.5 19.7
Post-employment benefits 0.2 0.4
Share-based payment 1.6 1.0
Total 213 21.1

7. Cash and cash equivalents
(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate financial
financial statements statements
2015 2014 2015 2014

Cash 112 17 112 112
Bank deposits 25,667 63,949 24,995 63,588
Total 25,779 64,066 25,107 63,700

As at 31 December 2015, bank deposits carried interests between 0.1 and 0.80 percent per annum (2014: between 0.30 and 2.50 percent per
annum).
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8. Short-term investments

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the company had short-term investments in trading securities are summarised below.
(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated / Separate financial statements

2015 2014
Cost Fair value Cost Fair value
Short-term investments in Fixed Income Fund 60,000 60,045 = =
Add: Gain on change in value 45 =
Total short-term investments in trading securities 60,045 -

Movement of short-term investments in trading securities for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 summarised below.
(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated / Separate
financial statements

2015 2014

Balance at beginning of year - -

Purchases 60,000 -
Gain on change in value 45 -
Balance at end of year 60,045 -

9. Trade accounts receivable

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate financial
financial statements statements

Trade accounts receivable - related parties
Aged on the basis of due dates

Not yet due 3,606 4,444 3,606 4,444

Past due

Up to 3 months 2,960 1,712 2,960 1,712
Total 6,566 6,156 6,566 6,156

Trade accounts receivable - unrelated parties
Aged on the basis of due dates

Not yet due 52,185 25,464 45,601 25,464

Past due

Up to 3 months 16,768 7,417 16,768 7,417

6 - 12 months 51829 1,479 58620 1,479
Total 74,282 34,360 67,698 34,360
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts - (1,415) - (1,415)
Total trade accounts receivable - unrelated parties, net 74,282 32,945 67,698 32,945

Total trade accounts receivable - net 80,848 39,101 74,264 39,101
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10. Restricted banks deposits

As at 31 December 2015, the company pledged fixed deposits at banks approximately Baht 17.2 million (2014: Baht 17.2 million) with three
banks to secure bank overdrafts and letter of guarantees issued by the banks on behalf of the company in respect of the purchase of goods

and services as required in the ordinary course of business of the company.
11. Investment in subsidiary

Details of investment in subsidiary as presented in separate financial statements are as follows:
(Unit : Thousand Baht)

: Allowance for Carrying amounts
Paid-up capital Shareholding impairment of based on cost

Company’s name percentage investment method - net

2015 | 2014 29/35 2(3/:4 - 2014 -- 2015 | 2014

D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd. 1,000 1,000 99.99 99.99 1,000 1,000 o (600) 1,000

During the year 2015, the company reversed the allowance for impairment loss on investment in subsidiary of Baht 0.6 million (2014:
recorded the allowance for impairment loss on investment in subsidiary of Baht 0.2 million). Since the subsidiary has commenced its
trading business and the company believes that it will profit in the future.

On 23 September 2015, the company’s Board of Directors Meeting No. 4/2015 passed a resolution to approve the establishment of two
subsidiaries under defined terms, to support the expansion of business in ASEAN. As at 31 December 2015, the company has not yet

established such new subsidiaries.
12. Investment in associated company

12.1 Details of associates:
(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate
financial statements | financial statements

Percentage of Carrying amount

Nature of Country of shareholding based on equity Cost method

Company’s name : : :
pany business incorporation method

- 2014 | 2015 | 2014 | 2015 | 2014

Abiks Development Co., Ltd. Property Development Thai 31,266 31,017 30,000 30,000

12.2 Share of comprehensive income and dividend received
During the years, the company has recognised its share of profit from investment in associate company in the consolidated
financial statements and dividend income in the separate financial statements as follows:

(Unit : Thousand Baht)
financial statements financial statements
Share of profit from

Dividend received
during the year

investment in associate
Company’s name during the year

Abiks Development Co., Ltd.
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12.3 Summarised financial information about material associates

Summarised information about financial position
(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Abiks Development

Co., Ltd.
| 2015 | 2014
Current assets 38,776 37,259
Non-current assets 117,713 117,981
Current liabilities (159) (156)
Net assets 156,330 155,084
Shareholding percentage 20% 20%
Share of net assets 31,266 31,017

Elimination entries - -

Carrying amounts of associates based on equity method 31,266 31,017

Summarised information about comprehensive income
(Unit : Thousand Baht)

For the year ended
31 December
2015 2014

Revenue 2,192 1,873
Profit 1,246 1,009

13. Other long-term investment

Shareholding Dividend
Company'sname | Natweof | Type ot
2

2014 | 2015 | 2014 15
(%) (Thousand | (Thousand |(Thousand | (Thousand
Baht) Baht) Baht) Baht)

National Credit Bureau Credit information
Co., Ltd. provider Direct holding 250,000 250,000 12.25 1225 27,864 27,864 17,456 15,006
Ecart Studio Co., Ltd. Designing, developing,

consulting for Web-
Based Applications Direct holding 11,765 11,765 15.00 15.00 52,941 52,941 - -
80,805 80,805 17,456 15,006

On 8 May 2014, the company’s Board of Directors Meeting No.2/2014 passed a resolution to approve a negotiation to be conducted by
the management to invest in about 15% of shareholding in Ecart Studio Co., Ltd. This investment is anticipated to support the company’s
business expansion in the future and it is a long-term investment.

Later, on 3 June 2014, the company signed on the contract investment with the existing shareholders of that company for purchase a newly
share capital 176,471 ordinary shares, or a total of approximately Baht 52.94 million (as stipulated in the contract investment). Subsequently,

on 16 June 2014, the company paid up the shares in full.
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14. Building improvement and equipment

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated financial statemen

Building Office R Vehicta | Assets under

improvement equipment sqUipmant EHee installation
Cost
1 January 2014 20,263 10,670 89,362 14,077 = 134,372
Additions 41 290 6,194 = = 6,525
Disposals (31) (339) (848) - - (1,218)
31 December 2014 20,273 10,621 94,708 14,077 = 139,679
Additions 103 760 8,966 = 2,626 12,455
Disposals - (1,069) (5,126) - - (6,195)
31 December 2015 20,376 10,312 98,548 14,077 2,626 145,939
Accumulated depreciation:
1 January 2014 16,564 8,274 76,165 6,936 = 107,939
Depreciation for the year 658] 674 8,221 2,071 = 11,921
Depreciation on disposals (12) (338) (848) - - (1,198)
31 December 2014 17,507 8,610 83,538 9,007 = 118,662
Depreciation for the year 951 755 8,111 2,071 = 11,888
Depreciation on disposals - (1,068) (5,112) - - (6,180)
31 December 2015 18,458 8,297 86,537 11,078 = 124,370
Net book value:
31 December 2014 2,766 2,011 11,170 5,070 = 21,017
31 December 2015 1,918 2,015 12,011 218 2,626 21,569

Depreciation for the year
2014 (8.2 included in services cost, and the balance in administrative expenses) 11,921

2015 (8.1 included in services cost, and the balance in administrative expenses) 11,888
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(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Separate financial statements

Building Office S L Assets under

improvement equipment equipment Slistic installation
Cost
1 January 2014 20,190 10,574 87,866 14,077 - 132,707
Additions 41 290 6,194 - - 6,525
Disposals (31) (339) (848) - - (1,218)
31 December 2014 20,200 10,525 93,212 14,077 - 138,014
Additions 103 760 8,966 - 2,626 12,455
Disposals - (1,047) (5,126) - - (6,173)
31 December 2015 20,303 10,238 97,052 14,077 2,626 145,939
Accumulated depreciation:
1 January 2014 16,491 8,178 74,669 6,936 - 106,274
Depreciation for the year 955 674 8,221 2,071 - 11,921
Depreciation on disposals (12) (338) (848) - - (1,198)
31 December 2014 17,434 8,514 82,042 9,007 - 116,997
Depreciation for the year 951 755 8,111 2,071 - 11,888
Depreciation on disposals - (1,046) (5,112) - - (6,158)
31 December 2015 18,385 8,223 85,041 11,078 - 122,727
Net book value:
31 December 2014 2,766 2,011 11,170 5,070 - 21,017
31 December 2015 1,918 2,015 12,011 2,999 2,626 21,569
Depreciation for the year
2014 (8.2 included in services cost, and the balance in administrative expenses) 11,921
2015 (8.1 included in services cost, and the balance in administrative expenses) 11,888

As at 31 December 2015, certain equipment items have been fully depreciated but are still in use. The gross carrying amount before
deducting accumulated depreciation of those assets amounted to approximately Baht 99.15 million (2014: Baht 133.47 million).

As at 31 December 2015, the company had computer and equipment under finance lease agreements with net book values amounting
to Baht 0.1 million (2014: Baht 1.2 million).
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15. Intangible assets

The net book value of intangible assets as at 31 December 2015 and 2014 is presented below.

Consolidated financial statements Separate financial statements

Software Software
Computer
under under

Computer

software software
development development

31 December 2015

Cost 80,267 32,542 112,809 80,135 32,542 112,677
Transfers in/(out) 25,267 (25,267) - 25,267 (25,267) -
Leﬁ Accumulated amortisation (60,323) - (60,323) (60,230) - (60,230)
Net book value 45,211 7,275 52,486 45,172 7,275 52,447
31 December 2014

Cost 72,705 21,225 93,930 72,573 21,225 93,798
Transfers in/(out) 5,483 (5,483) - 5,483 (5,483) -
Less Accumulated amortisation (52,482) - (52,482) (52,415) - (52,415)
Net book value 25,706 15,742 41,448 25,641 15,742 41,383

A reconciliation of the net book value of intangible assets for the years 2015 and 2014 is presented below.
(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate financial
flnanC|aI statements statements
| 2014 | 2015 | 2014

Net book value at beginning of year 41,448 36,059 41,383 35,967
Acquisition of computer software 2,137 567 2,137 567
Acquisition of computer software under development 16,801 11,311 16,801 11,311
Amortisation charged for the year (7,900) (6,489) (7,874) (6,462)
Net book value at end of year 52,486 41,448 52,447 41,383

16. Bills of exchange

As at 31 December 2014, the company had outstanding balance of bills of exchange of Baht 40 million. The bills of exchange carried
interest at the fixed rate per annum and were repayable within 3 months. Later in May 2015, the company had fully paid such bill of

exchange.
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17. Trade and other payables
(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate financial
financial statements statements
2015 2014 2015 2014

Trade accounts payable - related parties

Trade accounts payable - unrelated parties 4,695 2,964 2,852 2,964
Accrued cost - related parties 766 2,102 766 2,102
Accrued cost - unrelated parties 12,475 41,973 10,528 41,973
Accrued expenses - related parties 14 - 14 -

Accrued expenses - unrelated parties 15,449 4,412 15,449 4,412
Other payables - related parties 4,746 1,798 4,743 1,798
Other payables - unrelated parties 6,319 4,294 6,250 4,244
Total trade and other payables 44,787 57,563 40,925 57,513

18. Liabilities under finance lease agreements

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated / Separate
financial statements

Liabilities under finance lease agreements = 1,185
Less : Deferred interest expenses - (28)
Total = 1,157
Less : Portion due within one year - (1,157)

Liabilities under finance lease agreements - net of current portion = =

The company had entered into the finance lease agreements with leasing companies for rental of equipment for use in their operations,
whereby they were committed to pay rental on a monthly basis. The terms of the agreements were generally 3 years.

Future minimum lease payments required under the finance lease agreements were as follows:

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

As at 31 December 2014

Future minimum lease payments -

Deferred interest expenses (0.1) - (0.1)

Present value of future minimum lease payments 1.1 - 1.1
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19. Provision for long-term employee benefits

Provision for long-term employee benefits, which represents compensation payable to employees after they retire, was as follows:
(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated / Separate
financial statements

2015 2014

Provision for long-term employee benefits at beginning of year

Included in profit or loss: 8,157 7,022
Current service cost 849 840
Interest cost 297 295

Included in other comprehensive income:

Actuarial loss arising from

Financial assumptions changes 805 =
Benefits paid during the year (1,106) -
Provision for long-term employee benefits at end of year 9,002 8,157

Line items in profit or loss under which long-term employee benefit expenses are recognised are as follows:

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated / Separate
financial statements
201 2014

4 395

Cost of services 47
Administrative expenses 672 740
Total expenses recognised in profit or loss 1,146 1,135

As at 31 December 2014, the company and its subsidiary expected to pay Baht 1.1 million of long-term employee benefits during the next
year (Separate financial statements: Baht 1.1 million) (2015: nil).
As at 31 December 2015, the weighted average duration of the liabilities for long-term employee benefit is 15 years (Separate financial
statements: 15 years) (2014: 15 years, separate financial statements: 15 years).
Significant actuarial assumptions are summarised below:

(Unit: percent per annum)

Consolidated/Separate
financial statements

2015 2014

Discount rate 4.2 4.2
Salary increase rate 5.0-9.0 5.0-9.0
Turnover rate (depending on age) 0-25.0 0-25.0
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The result of sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions that affect the present value of the long-term employee benefit obligation as at 31

December 2015 are summarised below:

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated / Separate
flnan0|al statements

increase (decrease

Increase 1% |Decrease 1%

Discount rate (841) 970

Salary increase rate 1,125 (980)

20. Share capital and warrants

On 27 March 2014, the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders passed a resolution to approve the issuance of warrants of not
exceeding 38,500,000 units or 5 percent of paid-up capital to the directors and/or employees of the company (ESOP Scheme) at free-of-
charge. However, no one received more than 5 percent of allotted the ESOP warrants. The warrants are exercisable in a ratio of 1 warrant
to 1 new ordinary share and the exercise price is Baht 1.75 per share. The Annual General Meeting of the shareholders approved the
increase in the company’s registered share capital of Baht 3,850,000 from Baht 78,750,000 (787,500,000 ordinary shares of Baht 0.1 each)
to Baht 82,600,000 (826,000,000 ordinary shares of Baht 0.1 each) to reserve for the exercise of the warrants of ESOP Scheme.
On 9 April 2014, the company registered such share capital with the Ministry of Commerce, resulting in share capital increase to Baht
82,600,000.
On 19 May 2014, the company allocated and issued 38,500,000 warrants to the directors and/or employees of the company at free-of-
charge. The exercise period is within 4 years, commencing on the allocation date. The exercise ratio is 1 warrant per 1 new ordinary share,
and the exercise price is Baht 1.75 per share. The first exercise date is 31 May 2015 and the following exercise dates fall on the last working
days of May and November. The last exercise date is 30 November 2017.
Warrant holders may exercise their warrants under the following conditions.
- Not exceeding 30 percent of all allotted warrants of each warrant holder are exercisable after 12 months but not later than 24 months
after the allotted date.
- Additional 30 percent of all allotted warrants of each warrant holders are exercisable after 24 months but not later than 36 months
after the allotted date.
- Additional 40 percent of all allotted warrants of each warrant holders are exercisable after 36 months from the allotted date until the
warrants expire.
Any remaining unexercised warrants of each exercise period can be carried forward to the subsequent exercise periods throughout the
term of the warrants.
However, the exercise price and/or ratio may be adjusted according to the stipulated right adjustment conditions. If directors or employees
of the company resign, are removed from their position, or are otherwise no longer directors or employees of the company, the company
can re-allot the warrants to other directors and employees of the company.
The estimated fair value of each share option granted is Baht 0.18 - 0.29, which was calculated by applying the Black-Scholes-Merton
formula. The model inputs were the share price at price determination date of Baht 1.56 and Baht 1.70, exercise price of Baht 1.75,
expected volatility of 30.61% - 43.33%, expected dividend yield of 5.79%, contractual life of 1 - 4 years, and a risk-free interest rate of
2.14% - 2.80% per annum.
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Movements in the issued and paid-up ordinary share during the year ended 31 December 2015 are summarised as below.

Paid-up share capital Premium on ordinary shares

Adjustment of

Premium from | capital reserve Registration
- Number of Amount exercise of for share- date with the
Description shares warrants  |based payment Ministry of

transaction Commerce

(Thousand (Thousand (Thousand (Thousand (Thousand
shares) Baht) Baht) Baht) Baht)

At the beginning of the year 787,500 78,750 77,150 77,150

Exercise of warrants ESOP No. 1 5,396 540 8,904 853 9,757 4 June 2015
Exercise of warrants ESOP No. 2 1,097 109 1,810 150 1,960 3 December 2015
At the end of the year 793,993 79,399 87,864 1,003 88,867

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the company recorded expenses of Baht 3.0 million (2014: Baht 2.3 million) related to the ESOP
scheme as personnel expenses, together with a corresponding increase in “Capital reserve for share-based payment transactions” in the
shareholder’s’ equity.

Presented below is a summary of movements in the number of the company’s warrants.
(Unit: Thousand Units)

2015 2014

Warrants issued as at 19 May 2014 38,500 38,500
Less: Warrants exercised during the year (6,493) -
Warrants at the end of year 32,007 38,500

21. Statutory reserve

Pursuant to Section 116 of the Public Limited Companies Act B.E. 2535, the company is required to set aside to a statutory reserve at least
5 percent of its net income after deducting accumulated deficit brought forward (if any), until the reserve reaches 10 percent of the regis-
tered capital. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution. During the year ended 31 December 2015, the company
transferred unappropriated retained earnings of Baht 0.4 million to statutory reserve. At present, the statutory reserve has fully been set

aside.

22. Expenses by nature

Significant expenses by nature are as follows:

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate financial
financial statements statements

Costs of database management system 69,826 56,919 66,046 56,919
Cost of projects 19,439 138,561 19,439 138,561
Salaries and wages and other employee benefits 95,968 87,304 95,968 87,304
Directors’ remuneration and consultant fee 13,539 14,359 13,539 14,359
Depreciation 11,887 11,921 11,887 11,921
Amortisation expenses 7,899 6,489 7,874 6,462
Rental expenses from operating lease agreements 8587 8,816 BIoSId 8,816
Marketing expenses 5,464 5,220 5,464 5,220

Electricity charges 4,584 4,297 4,584 4,297
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23. Corporate income tax

Income tax expenses for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014 are made up as follows:

(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate financial
financial statements statements

2015 2014 2014
Current income tax:

Current income tax charge 9,656 17,005 9,656 17,005
Deferred tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 236 (96) 305 (96)

Income tax expense reported in the statement of comprehensive income 9,892 16,909 9,961 16,909

The amounts of income tax relating to each component of other comprehensive income for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014

are as follows:
(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated / Separate
financial statements

2015 2014

Deferred tax relating to actuarial loss (161) -

The reconciliation between accounting profit and income tax expense is shown below.
(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate financial
financial statements statements
2015 2014 2015 2014

Accounting profit before tax 71,079 96,037 71,514 95,710
Applicable tax rate 20% 20% 20% 20%
Accounting profit before tax multiplied by applicable tax rate 14,216 19,207 14,303 19,142
Effects of:
Promotional privileges (Note 25) (3,146) - (3,146) -
Utilisation of tax loss carried forward (52) - - -
Income not subject to tax (3,541) (3,066) (3,491) (3,001)
Add back expenses not deductible for tax purposes 2,672 1,100 2,672 1,100
Additional expense deductions allowed (520) (237) (520) (237)
Other 263 (95) 143 (95)
Total (4,324) (2,298) (4,342) (2,233)
Income tax expenses reported in the statement of comprehensive income 9,892 16,909 9,961 16,909

The components of deferred tax assets are as follows:
(Unit : Thousand Baht)

Consolidated Separate financial
financial statements statements
2015 2014 2015 2014

Deferred tax assets

Allowance for share reduction of investment 4,003 4,123 4,003 4,123
Accumulated amortisation - Computer software 481 674 481 674
Provision for long-term employee benefits 1,800 1,631 1,800 1,631
Unused tax losses 69 = = =

Total 6,353 6,428 6,284 6,428
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24. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the company (excluding other com-
prehensive income) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the company (excluding other com-
prehensive income) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year plus the weighted average number of
ordinary shares which would need to be issued to convert all dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. The calculation as-
sumes that the conversion took place either at the beginning of the year or on the date the potential ordinary shares were issued.

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share:

Consolidated financial ements

Weighted average :
number of ordinary shares Earnings per share

2015 2014
2015 2014
(Thousand (Thousand (Thousand (Thousand
Baht) Baht) Shares) Shares) B (et

the company 61,187 79,127 790,707 787,500 0.08 0.10

Basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to equity holders of

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary
shares
Warrants - ESOP 32,006,750 Units
(2014: 38,500,000 Units) - - 6,039 5,122

Diluted earnings per share

Profit attributable to ordinary

shareholders assuming the

conversion of warrants to ordinary

shares 61,187 79,127 796,746 792,622 0.08 0.10

Profit for the year number of ordinary shares Earnings per share

2015
(Thousand (Thousand (Thousand (Thousand %E?alt? %Bg:]t‘;r

Baht) Baht) Shares) Shares)

Basic earnings per share

Profit attributable to equity holders of

the company 61,553 78,801 790,707 787,500 0.08 0.10
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary

shares

Warrants - ESOP 32,006,750 Units
(2014: 38,500,000 Units) - - 6,039 5,122
Diluted earnings per share

Profit attributable to ordinary

shareholders assuming the

conversion of warrants to ordinary

shares 61,553 78,801 796,746 792,622 0.08 0.10
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25. Promotional privileges

On 9 October 2013, the company has been granted promotional privileges under the Investment Promotion Act B.E. 2520 by the Board of

Investment under certain significant conditions. Significant privileges of the company are as follows:

Details The company
1. Certificate No. 2423(7)/2556
2. Promotional privileges for Software

3. The significant privileges are:
3.1 Exemption from corporate income tax on net income from promoted operations for a period of 8 years 8 years
commencing as from the date of first earning operating income. Furthermore, accumulated losses (will expire on 15 December 2022)
incurred during the corporate income tax exemption period, the subsidiary allowed to utilise the losses
as a deduction against net income for a period of 5 years after the expiry of the tax exemption period,
whether from any one year or from several years.
3.2 Exemption from income tax on dividends paid from the income of the promoted operations for which Granted
corporate income tax is exempted, throughout the corporate income tax exemption.
3.3 Exemption from import duty on imported machinery for use in production as approved by the Board. Throughout the period of promoted
4. Date of first earning operating income 16 December 2014 (effective date of the

first agreement)

The company’s operating revenues for the years ended 31 December 2015 and 2014, dividend between promoted and non-promoted

operations, are summarised below
(Unit: Thousand Baht)

Promoted operations 32,092 788
Non-promoted operations 287,872 439,390
Total service income 319,964 440,178

26. Financial information by segment

Operating segment information is reported in a manner consistent with the internal reports that are regularly reviewed by the chief operating
decision maker in order to make decisions about the allocation of resources to the segment and assess its performance.

The company and its subsidiary are principally engaged in an online and offline information service provider and developer of financial
news and other information services their operations are carried on only in Thailand. Segment performance is measured based on
operating profit or loss, on a basis consistent with that used to measure operating profit or loss in the financial statements. As a result, all of
the revenues and operating profits as presented in the comprehensive income statements and assets as reflected in these financial
statements pertain to the aforementioned reportable operating segment and geographical area.

Major customers

In 2015, the company and its subsidiary have no major customer with revenue of 10 percent or more of its consolidated revenue (2014: 1

major customer).

27. Provident fund

The company and its employees have jointly established a provident fund in accordance with the Provident Fund Act B.E. 2530. Both
employees and the company contribute to the fund monthly at the rate of 3 percent of basic salary. The fund, which is managed by BBL
Asset Management Company Limited, will be paid to employees upon termination in accordance with the fund rules. The contributions for

the year 2015 amounting to approximately Baht 2.2 million (2014: Baht 1.9 million) were recognised as expenses.
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28. Dividends
o Total dividends Dividend per share
Approved by (Mllllon Baht) (Baht per Share)
Final dividends for 2013 Annual General Meeting of the shareholders on
27 March 2014 39 0.05
Total dividends paid in 2014 39 0.05
Final dividends for 2014 Annual General Meeting of the shareholders on
1 April 2015 39 0.05
Total dividends paid in 2015 39 0.05

29. Commitments and contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the company and its subsidiary have commitments and contingent liabilities other than these disclosed

in other notes to financial statements as follows:

29.1 Service agreements

The company has entered into agreement with a government enterprise to obtain the right to operate an online business
information service and on 23 April 2012, the company extended the agreement for 5 years with a government enterprise (2016
- 2020) to obtain the right to operate an online business information service. The agreement will be terminated in December 2020.
In addition, the company signed in the memorandum of understanding of the cooperation of business information service which
the term of such memorandum is 15 years (2021 - 2035). The company has to pay the fee at the fixed rate of service income or
minimum guarantee for per year as specified in the agreements and such memorandum in order to continue the project.
During the year 2015, D&B (Thailand) Co., Ltd., a subsidiary company, entered into an agreement with an overseas company to
obtain the trademark license to provide services to customers. The subsidiary company is liable to a fee as specified in the
agreement. The agreement is for the period of 5 years.
In addition, the company and its subsidiary entered into service agreements related to cost of providing services with other
companies.

As at 31 December 2015 and 2014, the future payments under these service agreements are due as follow:

(Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated Separate financial
financial statements statements

2015 2014 2015 2014

Payable:

Inup to 1 year 70.84 59.49 50.57 59.49
In over 1 and up to 5 years 173.32 75.75 92.09 75.75
In over 5 years 206.50 221.25 206.50 221.25

29.2 Capital expenditure agreement
As at 31 December 2015, the company and its subsidiary have outstanding commitment which has entered into agreements for
development of the computer system and has other capital expenditure amounting to Baht 14.42 million (2014: Baht 12.2 million).
29.3 License agreements
An agreement with a related company and an overseas company granting the company for the rights to utilize software
applications to another related company. Under the agreement, the company is obliged to pay a fee at a certain percentage of
revenues earned from the use of such service as stipulated in the agreement. The agreement does not stipulate a definite term.
29.4 Bank guarantees
There were outstanding bank guarantees of Baht 39.70 million (2014: Baht 39.89 million) of certain performance bonds as

required in the normal course of business to guarantee contractual performance.
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30. Fair value hierarchy

As at 31 December 2015, the company and its subsidiary had the assets and liabilities that were measured at fair value using different

levels of inputs as follows:

(Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated and separate financial statements

Level 2

Assets measured at fair value

Held for trade investments - Fixed Income Fund 60

31. Financial instruments

31.1

Financial risk management

The company and its subsidiary’s financial instruments, as defined under Thai Accounting Standard No.107 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosure and Presentations”, principally comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade accounts receivable, short-
term investments, investments and short-term loan. The financial risks associated with these financial instruments and how they
are managed is described below.

Credit risk

The company and its subsidiary are exposed to credit risk primarily with respect to trade accounts receivable, and other
receivable. The company and its subsidiary manage the risk by adopting appropriate credit control policies and procedures and
therefore do not expect to incur material financial losses. In addition, the company and its subsidiary do not have high
concentrations of credit risk since they have has a large customer base and the major customers are almost financial institutes,
state enterprises and government unit. The maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amounts of receivables and
other receivables as stated in the statement of financial position

Interest rate risk

The company and its subsidiary’s exposure to interest rate risk relates primarily to its cash at banks, bank overdrafts, bill of
exchange and short-term borrowings. However, since most of the company and its subsidiary’s financial assets and liabilities
bear floating interest rates or fixed interest rates which are close to the market rate, the interest rate risk is expected to be minimal.
Significant financial assets and liabilities classified by type of interest rate are summarized in the table below, with those financial
assets and liabilities that carry fixed interest rates further classified based on the maturity date, or the repricing date if this occurs

before the maturity date.
(Unit: Million Baht)

Consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 201

Fixed interest rat -

Floating ; interest rate
o interest
Within interest rate e (% per
9
1 year annum)

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalent - - - 21.09 4.69 25.78 0.10-0.80

Short-term investments - - - - 60.05 60.05 -

Trade accounts receivable = = = = 80.85 80.85 =

Deposits at banks with restrictions 17.20 - - - - 17.20 1.00
17.20 - - 21.09 145.59 183.88

Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables - - - - 44.79 44.79 -

- - - - 44.79 44.79
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(Unit: Million Baht)
al statements as at 31 December 2015

Fixed interest rates Effective
Non-

Floating : interest rate
Within Over interest rate | rorest (% per
1 year 5years bearing annum)

Cash and cash equivalent - - - 20.42 4.69 2511 0.10-0.80
Short-term investments - - - - 60.05 60.05 -
Trade accounts receivable - - - - 74.26 74.26 -
Deposits at banks with restrictions 17.20 - - - - 17.20 1.00
17.20 - - 20.42 139.00 176.62
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables - - - - 40.92 40.92 -
- - - - 40.92 40.92

Financial Assets

(Unit: Million Baht)
C i inancial statements as at 31 December 20

Fixed interest Effective
Non- interest rate

Floating :
Within 1-5 Over interest rate |  'Mterest (% per

1 year years 5 years bearing annum)

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalent - - - 61.03 3.03 64.06 0.30 - 2.50

Trade accounts receivable = = = = 39.10 39.10 =

Deposits at banks with restrictions 17.20 - - - - 17.20 1.10 - 2.00
17.20 - - 61.03 42.13 120.36

Financial liabilities = =

Bill of exchange 40.00 - - 40.00 fixed rate

Trade and other payables = = = = 57.56 57.56 =
40.00 - - - 57.56 97.56

(Unit: Million Baht)
Separate financial statements as at 31 December 20

Fixed interest rates Effective

Floating Non- interest rate

Within 1-5 Over interest rate | Interest (% per
1 year years 5 years bearing annum)

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalent - - - 60.67 3.03 63.70 0.30 - 2.50

Trade accounts receivable - - - - 39.10 39.10 -

Deposits at banks with restrictions 17.20 - - - - 17.20 1.10 - 2.00
17.20 - - 60.67 42.13 120.00

Financial liabilities - -

Bill of exchange 40.00 - - 40.00 fixed rate

Trade and other payables - - - - 57.51 57.51 -

40.00 = = = 57.51 97.51
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Foreign currency risk
The company and its subsidiary’s exposure to foreign currency risk arises mainly from purchasing or rendering services
transactions that are denominated in foreign currencies. The company and its subsidiary have not entered into any contract in

order to protect such foreign currency risk.

The balances of financial assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are summarised below.

Consolidated financial statements

Financial assets Financial liabilities Average exchange rate
Foreign currency as at 31 December as at 31 December as at 31 December

2015 2014 2015 2014
(Million) i i (Million) (Baht per 1 foreign currency unit)

US dollar 0.22 0.14 0.25 0.06 36.0886 32.9630

Separated financial statements

Financial assets Financial liabilities Average exchange rate
Foreign currency as at 31 December as at 31 December as at 31 December

20 2014 2015 2014

(Million) (Baht per 1 foreign currency unit)

US dollar 0.22 0.14 0.20 0.06 36.0886 32.9630

31.2 Fair values of financial instruments
Since the majority of the company and its subsidiary’s financial instruments are short-term in nature or bear floating interest rates,
their fair value is not expected to be materially different from the amounts presented in statement of financial position.
32. Capital management
The primary objective of the company’s capital management is to ensure that it has appropriate capital structure in order to support its
business and maximise shareholder value. As at 31 December 2015, the group’s debt-to-equity ratio was 0.44:1 (2014: 0.58:1) and the
company’s was 0.43:1 (2014 0.58:1).
33. Events after the reporting period
On 17 February 2016, the Board of Director Meeting of the company No. 1/2016 passed a resolution to propose of dividend payment at a
rate of Baht 0.06 per share from the net profit of 2015, totaling of Baht 47.6 million. The company will propose these matters for approval in
the Annual General Meeting of the company’s shareholders.

34. Approval of financial statements

These financial statements have been approved by the Board of Directors of the company on 17 February 2016.
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